

Tortoise Essential Assets Income Term Fund

Common Shares of Beneficial Interest \$20.00 per Share

Investment Objective. Tortoise Essential Assets Income Term Fund (the "Fund," "we," "us" or "our") is a newly organized, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company. Our investment objective is to provide our common shareholders with a high level of total return with an emphasis on current distributions. We cannot assure you that we will achieve our investment objective.

Investment Strategies. We seek to achieve our investment objective by investing, under normal conditions, at least 80% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in issuers operating in essential asset sectors. We consider essential assets to be assets and services that are indispensable to the economy and society. Essential asset sectors include the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors. We may invest across all levels of an issuer's capital structure and emphasize income-generating investments, particularly in social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure. (continued on following page)

No Prior History. Prior to this offering, there has been no public or private market for our common shares. Our common shares have been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading or "ticker" symbol "TEAF," subject to notice of issuance.

Investing in our securities involves certain risks. You could lose some or all of your investment. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 34 of this prospectus. You should consider carefully these risks, together with all of the other information contained in this prospectus before making a decision to purchase our securities.

Shares of closed-end management investment companies frequently trade at prices lower than their net asset value or initial offering price. This discount risk may be greater for investors expecting to sell shares shortly after the completion of this offering.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

otal ⁽¹⁾
,000,000
lone
,000,000
,00 101

(notes on following page)

The underwriters expect to deliver the common shares to purchasers on or about March 29, 2019.

Morgan Stanley BofA Merrill Lynch UBS Investment Bank Wells Fargo Securities **Oppenheimer & Co. RBC Capital Markets**

B. Riley Wealth Management D.A. Davidson & Co. JonesTrading Newbridge Securities Corporation

Stifel **BB&T** Capital Markets Incapital Ladenburg Thalmann Pershing LLC

Wedbush Securities Inc.

Brookline Capital Markets Janney Montgomery Scott Maxim Group LLC U.S. Capital Advisors

The date of this prospectus is March 26, 2019.

(notes from previous page)

- (1) The underwriters named in this prospectus have the option to purchase up to 1,789,178 additional common shares at the public offering price within 45 days from the date of this prospectus solely to cover overallotments, if any. If the over-allotment option is exercised in full, the total public offering price and proceeds to us will be \$295,783,560 and \$295,783,560, respectively. See "Underwriters."
- (2) Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., our investment adviser (and not the Fund), has agreed to pay, from its own assets (a) compensation of \$0.60 per share to the underwriters in connection with this offering, and separately (b) an upfront structuring and syndication fee to Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, an upfront structuring fee to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, UBS Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and an upfront fee to Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated and Wedbush Securities Inc. These fees and compensation are not reflected under "Sales load" in the table above. See "Underwriters—Compensation to Be Paid by Our Adviser."
- (3) Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. has agreed to pay all organizational expenses of the Fund and all offering costs associated with this offering. The Fund is not obligated to repay any such organizational expenses or offering costs paid by Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C.

Investment Strategies.

(continued from previous page)

Our investment portfolio generally will be comprised of the following:

- *Direct investments*. We may make direct equity and debt investments in issuers operating in essential asset sectors, which investments may include: (1) directly originated securities and obligations of governmental entities or other qualifying issuers of states, municipalities, territories and possessions of the United States and the District of Columbia and their political subdivisions, agencies and instrumentalities, private nonprofit organizations, 501(c)(3) organizations, public nonprofit organizations and other entities authorized to issue private activity and municipal bonds that will generally be high yield debt securities or unrated as further described below; (2) common or preferred equity investments in private clean energy related issuers, including issuers holding or owning power purchase agreements; (3) private investments in energy-related issuers, including securities of issuers with public equity, commonly referred to as "PIPES," and structured preferred securities; and (4) other privately structured investments.
- *Listed equity securities.* We may invest in listed equity securities of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, including common stock, common units of master limited partnerships ("MLPs") and of limited liability companies ("LLCs") and preferred equity. We may invest in securities of any market capitalization. We currently intend to write (sell) call options on a portion of our listed equity securities portfolio.
- *Corporate debt securities.* We may invest in corporate debt securities, including corporate bonds and notes, project finance debt securities, bank loans and loan participations, of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, with an initial emphasis on high yield debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our adviser or subadvisers deem to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. Our investments in corporate debt securities may include Rule 144A securities. We may invest in corporate debt securities of any maturity.

Market Opportunity. In a world increasingly prone to rapid change, our adviser believes that essential assets and services such as social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure will continue to experience growth throughout cycles. Our adviser believes there is currently a significant need for capital investment in social infrastructure projects to expand and enhance education and healthcare, housing and human services systems, sustainable infrastructure projects to enhance and/or replace the U.S. electrical grid, particularly through wind and solar power, and to improve global water systems and energy infrastructure projects to build out the critical pipeline network. Our adviser believes that the need for such investment in

essential assets also creates an opportunity for investors to participate in the ongoing growth of these sectors while achieving attractive income potential. These assets are generally long-lived with low obsolescence risk, high barriers to entry and relatively inelastic demand across the business cycle. The Fund is intended to provide investors with exposure to essential assets in a range of sectors and across the capital structure, including access to direct investments that may not otherwise be widely available to many investors. The Fund will emphasize income-generating investments in social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure. It will provide investors with access to the skill and experience of the Tortoise platform with deep expertise in essential assets and income investing. By providing access to assets that our adviser or subadvisers believe are generally less correlated to the broader market, the Fund seeks to reduce volatility and produce better risk adjusted returns with a steady income stream.

Term. Our Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund will have a limited period of existence and will dissolve as of the close of business twelve years from the effective date of the initial registration statement of the Fund (such date, including any extension, the "Termination Date"); provided, that our Board of Trustees (the "Board" or "Board of Directors") may vote to extend the Termination Date (1) for one period that may in no event exceed one year following the Termination Date, and (2) for one additional period that may in no event exceed one year, in each case without a vote of our shareholders. On or before the Termination Date, we will cease our investment operations, retire or redeem our leverage facilities, liquidate our investment portfolio (to the extent possible) and distribute all of our liquidated net assets to common shareholders of record in one or more distributions on or after the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if our Board of Directors determines to cause the Fund to conduct an Eligible Tender Offer (as defined herein) and the Eligible Tender Offer is completed, our Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion and without any action by the shareholders of the Fund, eliminate the Termination Date and provide for our perpetual existence, subject to the terms and conditions described herein.

Our Declaration of Trust provides that an eligible tender offer (an "Eligible Tender Offer") is a tender offer by the Fund to purchase up to 100% of the then-outstanding common shares of beneficial interest ("common shares") of the Fund as of a date within the 12 months preceding the Termination Date. It is anticipated that shareholders who properly tender common shares in the Eligible Tender Offer will receive a purchase price equal to the net asset value per share as of a date following the expiration date of the Eligible Tender Offer and prior to the payment date. Our Declaration of Trust provides that, following an Eligible Tender Offer, the Fund must have at least \$100 million of net assets to ensure our continued viability (the "Termination Threshold"). If the number of properly tendered common shares would result in our net assets totaling less than the Termination Threshold, the Eligible Tender Offer. Instead, we will begin (or continue) liquidating our investment portfolio and proceed to terminate on the Termination Date. If the number of properly tendered the termination Threshold, we will purchase all common shares properly tendered and not withdrawn pursuant to the terms of the Eligible Tender Offer. Following the completion of an Eligible Tender Offer, our Board of Directors may vote to eliminate the Termination Date without a vote of our shares and cause the Trust to have a perpetual existence.

Our final distribution to common shareholders on the Termination Date and the amount paid to participating common shareholders upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer will be based upon our net asset value at such time. Depending on a variety of factors, including the performance of our investment portfolio over the period of our operations, the amount distributed to common shareholders in connection with our termination or paid to participating common shareholders upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer may be less, and potentially significantly less, than an investor's original investment. Additionally, given the nature of certain of our investments, the amount actually distributed upon our termination may be less than our net asset value per share on the Termination Date, and the amount actually paid upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer. See "Risk Factors— Investment Risks—General—Limited Term and Tender Offer Risks."

Distributions. We intend to make monthly cash distributions to common shareholders. In addition, on an annual basis, we intend to distribute in the last calendar quarter realized net capital gains, if any. Our monthly

distributions may include return of capital, which represents a return of a shareholder's original investment in the Fund. See "Distributions."

Leverage. The borrowing of money and issuance of preferred shares of beneficial interest ("preferred shares") and debt securities represent the leveraging of our common shares. We reserve the right at any time to use financial leverage to the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. We anticipate that our leverage will consist of borrowings pursuant to a credit facility, fixed- or floating-rate notes and preferred shares. See "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Leverage Risks."

Investment Adviser and Subadvisers. Our investment adviser is Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. (the "Adviser"), a registered investment adviser specializing in energy investing with expertise across the energy value chain, including infrastructure and MLPs, dating back more than 15 years. Our Adviser will be responsible for overseeing our overall investment strategy and its implementation. An Investment Committee of our Adviser will provide strategic oversight and determine the allocation of our investment portfolio across the social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure asset classes, and between direct investments, listed equity securities and corporate debt securities, based on prevailing market conditions, available investment opportunities and other factors, and may change the allocation of our total assets among these asset classes or security types from time to time without prior approval from or notice to our common shareholders.

The portion of our total assets invested from time to time in directly originated social infrastructure securities will be managed by our investment subadviser, Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC, and a portion of our total assets invested from time to time in listed sustainable infrastructure securities will be managed by our investment subadviser, Tortoise Advisors UK Limited (together, the "Subadvisers"). Our Adviser will manage the remaining portion of our total assets. Our Subadvisers are affiliates of our Adviser.

This prospectus sets forth the information about the Fund that you should know before investing. You should read this prospectus before deciding whether to invest in our securities. You should retain this prospectus for future reference. A statement of additional information, dated March 26, 2019, as supplemented from time to time, containing additional information, has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and is incorporated by reference in its entirety into this prospectus. You may request a free copy of the statement of additional information (the table of contents of which is on page 98 of this prospectus), our annual, semi-annual and quarterly reports (when available), and other information about the Fund or make shareholder inquiries, by calling toll-free at 1-866-362-9331 or by writing to us at 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211. Certain information about the Fund also will be available for free on our Adviser's website at http://www.tortoiseadvisors.com (information included on such website does not form part of this prospectus) or from the SEC's website (http://www.sec.gov).

Our securities do not represent a deposit or obligation of, and are not guaranteed or endorsed by, any bank or other insured depository institution and are not federally insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Reserve Board or any other government agency.

IMPORTANT NOTE: Beginning on January 1, 2021, as permitted by regulations adopted by the SEC, paper copies of the Fund's shareholder reports will no longer be sent by mail, unless you specifically request paper copies of the shareholder reports from the Fund or from your financial intermediary, such as a broker-dealer or bank. Instead, shareholder reports will be available on the Fund's website at http://www.tortoiseadvisors.com, and you will be notified by mail each time a report is posted and provided with a website link to access the report.

You may request current, and also elect to continue receiving all future, shareholder reports and other communications in paper free of charge by contacting the Fund at 1-866-362-9331 if you hold your shares directly with the Fund, or if you hold your shares through a financial intermediary by contacting your financial intermediary. Your election to receive reports in paper will apply to all shares you hold directly with the Fund or through your financial intermediary, as applicable.

CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the statement of additional information contain "forward-looking statements." Forward-looking statements can be identified by the words "may," "will," "intend," "expect," "estimate," "continue," "plan," "anticipate," "could," "should" and similar terms and the negative of such terms. By their nature, all forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements. Several factors that could materially affect our actual results are the performance of the portfolio of securities and other investments that we hold from time to time; the time necessary to fully invest the proceeds of this offering; the conditions in the U.S. and international financial, infrastructure, energy, municipal and other markets; the level and volatility of commodity prices and interest rates; the effectiveness of our covered call option overlay strategy; the price at which our shares will trade in the public markets; and other factors.

Although we believe that the expectations expressed in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results could differ materially from those projected or assumed in our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties, such as those disclosed in the "Risk Factors" section of this prospectus. All forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus are made as of the date of this prospectus. Except for our ongoing obligations under the federal securities laws, we do not intend, and we undertake no obligation, to update any forward-looking statement. The forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus are excluded from the safe harbor protection provided by section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Currently known risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not limited to, the factors described in the "Risk Factors" section of this prospectus. We urge you to review that section carefully for a more detailed discussion of the risks of an investment in our securities.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	1
SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES	15
THE FUND	17
USE OF PROCEEDS	17
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT STRATEGIES	17
RISK FACTORS	34
LEVERAGE	56
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	59
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	67
DISTRIBUTIONS	69
AUTOMATIC DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN	71
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES	74
CERTAIN PROVISIONS IN OUR DECLARATION OF TRUST AND BYLAWS	
CLOSED-END COMPANY STRUCTURE	80
MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	
UNDERWRITERS	92
ADMINISTRATOR, CUSTODIAN AND FUND ACCOUNTANT	
LEGAL MATTERS	97
AVAILABLE INFORMATION	97
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	98

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The Fund has not, and the underwriters have not, authorized anyone to provide you with different or inconsistent information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. The Fund is not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer of these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in this prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this prospectus. The Fund's business, financial condition and prospects may have changed since that date.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following summary contains basic information about us and our securities. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information you may want to consider. You should review the more detailed information contained elsewhere in this prospectus and in the statement of additional information, especially the information set forth under the heading "Risk Factors" beginning on page 34 of this prospectus.

THE FUND

We are a newly organized, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company. Our investment objective is to provide our common shareholders with a high level of total return with an emphasis on current distributions. We cannot assure you that we will achieve our investment objective.

Our Adviser and Subadvisers

Through its family of registered investment advisers, including our investment adviser, Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. (the "Adviser"), and our investment subadvisers, Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC and Tortoise Advisors UK Limited (together, the "Subadvisers"), Tortoise Investments, LLC (collectively, "Tortoise") invests in essential assets—those assets and services that are indispensable to the economy and society. With a steady wins approach and a long-term perspective, Tortoise strives to make a positive impact on clients and communities. Tortoise, through its family of registered investment advisers, had \$20.6 billion assets under advisement as of January 31, 2019.

Our investment adviser is Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a registered investment adviser specializing in energy investing with expertise across the energy value chain, including infrastructure and master limited partnerships ("MLPs"), dating back more than 15 years. Our Adviser will be responsible for overseeing our overall investment strategy and its implementation.

The portion of our total assets invested from time to time in directly originated social infrastructure securities will be managed by our investment subadviser, Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC, and a portion of our total assets invested from time to time in listed sustainable infrastructure securities will be managed by our investment subadviser, Tortoise Advisors UK Limited. Our Adviser will manage the remaining portion of our total assets. Our Subadvisers are affiliates of our Adviser.

For more information about our Adviser and Subadvisers, see "Management of the Fund—Investment Adviser and Subadvisers."

The Offering

We are offering 13,000,000 common shares of beneficial interest ("common shares") at \$20.00 per share through a group of underwriters (the "Underwriters") led by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, UBS Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC. You must purchase at least 100 common shares (\$2,000.00) in this offering. We have given the Underwriters an option to purchase up to 1,789,178 additional common shares within 45 days of the date of this prospectus solely to cover over-allotments, if any. See "Underwriters." Our Adviser has agreed to pay all of our organizational expenses and all offering costs associated with this offering.

Who May Want to Invest

Investors should consider their financial situation and needs, investment goals, time horizons and risk tolerance before investing in our common shares. An investment in our common shares is not appropriate for all

investors and is not intended to be a complete investment program. We may be an appropriate investment for investors who are seeking:

- A high level of total return with an emphasis on current distributions;
- Exposure to essential asset issuers in a range of sectors and across the capital structure;
- Access to direct investments that may not otherwise be widely available to many investors;
- A fund with daily liquidity on secondary markets and a term fund with a potential liquidity event at net asset value occurring within 12 years, subject to extensions;
- Potential for lower correlation to the broader market;
- Professional securities selection and active management by an experienced investment team that has managed essential asset investments across various business cycles;
- A fund managed by a market leader in essential asset and income investing; and
- A fund with socially responsible investment strategies.

An investment in our common shares involves a high degree of risk. Investors could lose some or all of their investment. See "Risk Factors."

Investment Strategies

We seek to achieve our investment objective by investing, under normal conditions, at least 80% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in issuers operating in essential asset sectors. We consider essential assets to be assets and services that are indispensable to the economy and society. Essential asset sectors include the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors. We may invest across all levels of an issuer's capital structure and emphasize income-generating investments, particularly in social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure. Our investment portfolio generally will be comprised of the following:

- Direct investments. We may make direct equity and debt investments in issuers operating in essential asset sectors, which investments may include: (1) directly originated securities and obligations of governmental entities or other qualifying issuers of states, municipalities, territories and possessions of the United States and the District of Columbia and their political subdivisions, agencies and instrumentalities, private nonprofit organizations, 501(c)(3) organizations, public nonprofit organizations and other entities authorized to issue private activity and municipal bonds that will generally be high yield debt securities or unrated; (2) common or preferred equity investments in private clean energy-related issuers, including issuers holding or owning power purchase agreements; (3) private investments in energy-related issuers, including securities of issuers with public equity, commonly referred to as "PIPES," and structured preferred securities; and (4) other privately structured investments (collectively, "Direct Investments").
- *Listed equity securities.* We may invest in listed equity securities of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, including common stock, common units of MLPs and of limited liability companies ("LLCs") and preferred equity. While we may invest across a broad range of essential asset sectors, and the allocation of our investments among such sectors may change from time to time, we currently expect that a significant portion of our investments in listed equity securities will be in securities of companies in the renewable energy, power delivery, energy infrastructure and broader energy and water sectors. We may invest in securities of any market capitalization, including small- and mid-capitalization companies. We currently intend to write (sell) call options on a portion of our listed equity securities portfolio.

• *Corporate debt securities.* We may invest in corporate debt securities, including corporate bonds and notes, project finance debt securities, bank loans and loan participations, of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, with an initial emphasis on high yield debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated at the time of investment either BB+, Ba1 or below (or an equivalent rating) by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization ("NRSRO") or, if unrated, determined by our Adviser or Subadvisers to be of comparable credit quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. Our investments in corporate debt securities may include Rule 144A securities. We may invest in corporate debt securities of any maturity.

We consider an issuer to be operating in an essential asset sector if: (1) at least 50% of its assets are dedicated to, or at least 50% of its cash flow or revenue is derived from, one or more essential asset sectors, including the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors; or (2) it is otherwise determined by our Adviser or our Subadvisers to be an issuer in one of the sectors mentioned above by (a) its classification or inclusion in an index related to that industry or sector, (b) its Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") classification, (c) its assignment under the North American Industry Classification System ("NAICS"), or (d) its assignment of a related code under the Standard Industrial Classification ("SIC") system.

An Investment Committee of our Adviser will provide strategic oversight and determine the allocation of our investment portfolio across the social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure asset classes, and between Direct Investments, listed equity securities and corporate debt securities, based on prevailing market conditions, available investment opportunities and other factors, and may change the allocation of our total assets among these asset classes or security types from time to time without prior approval from or notice to our common shareholders. Portfolio management teams of our Adviser and Subadvisers will be responsible for the day-to-day management of their respective sleeves of our investment portfolio.

Direct Investments

Directly Originated Social Infrastructure Securities. Social infrastructure assets and services include primary, secondary and post-secondary education facilities; hospitals and other healthcare facilities; senior, student, affordable, military and other housing facilities; industrial infrastructure and utility projects; and nonprofit and civic facilities. Issuers of social infrastructure securities and obligations may include governmental entities or other qualifying issuers of states, municipalities, territories and possessions of the United States and the District of Columbia and their political subdivisions, agencies and instrumentalities, private nonprofit organizations, 501(c)(3) organizations, public nonprofit organizations and other entities or unrated. Our investment focus will generally be on high yield securities or the unrated equivalent. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Subadviser deems to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments.

Securities in the education sectors include those issued in connection with PreK-12, post-secondary, and job training institutions (including private, parochial, charter, vocational and technical, community/junior colleges, and small private colleges and universities). Securities in the healthcare sectors include those issued in connection with senior care and housing, hospitals and medical care providers (including rehabilitation, psychiatric and substance-abuse) and long-term care facilities (including the entire continuum from independent living to assisted living to skilled nursing, palliative care and hospice). Securities in the industrial infrastructure sectors include those issued in connection with industrial plants and projects, including solid waste disposal,

recycling and waste-to-energy. Securities in the housing sectors include those issued in connection with seniors, students, affordable housing (including apartments, multi-family and single family), military, and mobile-home park builders and operators.

Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC, our investment subadviser, will manage our investments in directly originated social infrastructure securities and will seek to invest in social infrastructure providers that have: (1) seasoned management teams with industry expertise and independent governance structures using best practices; (2) operating profiles with operational effectiveness and favorable statutory and regulatory environments; (3) financial resources and flexibility with an ability to manage debt; and (4) demonstrated demand. Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC currently intends to generally focus on structures with relatively low duration and strong covenants.

Equity and Debt Investments in Private Clean Energy-Related Issuers. We may make equity and debt investments in private clean energy-related issuers. These issuers may include: (1) private, middle-market companies whose activities focus on the generation of power from renewable sources, such as utility-scale and distributed solar power; utility-scale wind, hydroelectric and geothermal power; the generation of power from natural gas; the development of other clean energy sources, such as landfill gas; the provision of storage and transmission services in connection with the provision of clean energy; the development of sustainable energy infrastructure; and efforts to increase energy efficiency; (2) joint ventures and special purpose vehicles established with such companies to design, develop and operate specific projects relating to the generation, storage and transmission of clean energy; and (3) special purposes vehicles established to own or operate power purchase agreements.

Our Adviser will seek to invest in private clean energy-related companies that have (1) high-quality, longlived, sustainable assets using proven technologies; (2) regulatory mandates, favorable growth trends and longterm revenue contracts with creditworthy counterparties; (3) assets with competitive cost positions that provide essential services; and (4) proven management teams, operators, developers and investment partners. Our Adviser currently intends to generally focus on structures with long-term contracts and performance warranties.

Direct Placement Energy Investments. We may make direct placements, also known as private energy investments, in securities of issuers with public equity ("PIPES") and structured preferred securities in essential asset sectors, with an expected emphasis on the energy and energy infrastructure sectors. These securities generally will consist of common units of MLPs and common units of LLCs, preferred equity and common stock. These transactions generally will result either in our directly acquiring restricted stock or in our acquiring a restricted security or other instrument that is convertible into restricted or registered stock. In evaluating opportunities for direct placements, our Adviser generally will use the same criteria it uses to seek investments in listed equity securities, as discussed below.

Listed Equity Securities

Our investments in listed equity securities will include securities that are publicly traded on an exchange or in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market. These securities may consist typically of common stock, common units of MLPs and common units of LLCs and preferred equity. While we may invest across a broad range of essential asset sectors, and the allocation of our investments among such sectors may change from time to time, we currently expect that a significant portion of our investments in listed equity securities will be in securities of companies in the renewable energy, power delivery, energy infrastructure and broader energy and water sectors. We may invest in securities of any market capitalization, including small- and mid-capitalization companies. We may invest up to 25% of our total assets in securities of MLPs and other entities treated as qualified publicly traded partnerships for federal income tax purposes.

Our Adviser's investment strategy targets listed equity securities of essential asset issuers with experienced, efficient, operations-focused management teams possessing successful track records and substantial knowledge,

experience and focus in one or more essential asset sectors. Our Adviser generally seeks listed equity securities of companies that provide a current cash return at the time of investment, providing a source of current income, as well as the potential for price appreciation.

With respect to listed sustainable infrastructure companies, our investment subadviser Tortoise Advisors UK Limited invests primarily in public equities of companies focusing on power delivery and/or water that are significantly benefiting from the transition towards a low carbon economy and the drive to use resources more efficiently and reduce emissions. Tortoise Advisors UK Limited employs fundamental bottom-up analysis with a focus on quality metrics, detailed asset/project modelling and attractive valuations. An analysis of environmental, social and governance ("ESG") factors is fully integrated in the investment process.

We will seek to provide current income from gains earned through an option overlay strategy. We currently intend to write (sell) call options on a portion of our listed equity securities portfolio ("covered calls"). The notional amount of such covered calls is expected to initially be approximately 10% to 30% of our listed equity investments, although this percentage may vary over time depending on the cash flow requirements of our investment portfolio and on our Adviser's and Subadvisers' assessment of market conditions. We currently intend to write out-of-the-money covered calls with strike prices above the market prices of the underlying securities. As the writer of such covered calls, in effect, during the term of the covered call, in exchange for the premium we receive, we give up the potential appreciation above the exercise price in the market value of the security or securities underlying the covered calls. Therefore, we may forego the potential appreciation for part of our listed equity investments in exchange for the call premium received.

Corporate Debt Securities

We may invest in corporate debt securities, including corporate bonds and notes, project finance debt securities, bank loans and loan participations, of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, with an emphasis on high yield debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Adviser or Subadvisers deem to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in non-directly originated corporate debt securities that are, at the time of purchase, rated CCC+ or lower by S&P Global Ratings ("S&P") and Fitch Ratings Inc. ("Fitch") and Caa1 or lower by Moody's Investors Services, Inc. ("Moody's").

We may invest in corporate debt securities that are purchased and sold in private offerings pursuant to Rule 144A or other applicable exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). We may purchase or sell corporate debt securities on a when-issued, delayed-delivery or forward commitment basis. We may invest in corporate debt securities of any maturity.

Our Adviser's securities selection process includes a comparison of quantitative, qualitative and relative value factors. Although our Adviser uses research provided by broker dealers and investment firms when available, primary emphasis is placed on proprietary analysis and risk, financial and valuation models conducted and maintained by our Adviser's in-house investment professionals. To determine whether a company meets its investment criteria, our Adviser will generally look for the targeted investment characteristics as described herein.

For more information about our investment strategies, see "Investment Objective and Principal Investment Strategies."

Subsidiaries

If our Adviser determines it to be appropriate or necessary, we may form one or more wholly owned subsidiaries in one or more jurisdictions (each, a "Subsidiary," and together, the "Subsidiaries"), each of which

would be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Any Subsidiary will share the same portfolio management team as the Fund. We may invest either directly or indirectly through the Subsidiaries. We may invest an aggregate of up to 25% of our total assets in Subsidiaries. We typically expect to invest indirectly through one or more Subsidiaries if our Adviser believes it is desirable to do so to comply with the requirements for qualification as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"). We initially anticipate investing in certain private clean energy-related issuers indirectly through the Subsidiaries. Any Subsidiary organized in the United States will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax at corporate rates. The Subsidiaries will not be registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"), and will not be subject to all of the investor protections of the 1940 Act. Investments held through a Subsidiary will be managed by our Adviser. There will not be a separate management fee or investment advisory agreement at the Subsidiary level. See "Investment Objective and Principal Investment Strategies—Investment Securities—Subsidiaries" and "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Subsidiary Risks."

Term

Our Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund will have a limited period of existence and will dissolve as of the close of business twelve years from the effective date of the initial registration statement of the Fund (such date, including any extension, the "Termination Date"); provided that our Board of Trustees (the "Board" or "Board of Directors") may, in its sole discretion and without any action by the shareholders of the Fund, vote to extend the Termination Date (1) for one period that may in no event exceed one year following the Termination Date, and (2) for one additional period that may in no event exceed one year . Notwithstanding the foregoing, if our Board of Directors determines to cause the Fund to conduct an Eligible Tender Offer (as defined below), and the Eligible Tender Offer is completed, our Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion and without any action by the shareholders of the Fund, eliminate the Termination Date and provide for our perpetual existence, subject to the terms and conditions described below.

Eligible Tender Offer. Our Declaration of Trust provides that an eligible tender offer (an "Eligible Tender Offer") is a tender offer by the Fund to purchase up to 100% of the then-outstanding common shares as of a date within the 12 months preceding the Termination Date. It is anticipated that shareholders who properly tender common shares in the Eligible Tender Offer will receive a purchase price equal to the net asset value per share as of a date following the expiration date of the Eligible Tender Offer and prior to the payment date. In an Eligible Tender Offer, we will offer to purchase all outstanding common shares held by each shareholder. Our Declaration of Trust provides that, following an Eligible Tender Offer, the Fund must have at least \$100 million of net assets to ensure our continued viability (the "Termination Threshold").

If the number of common shares properly tendered in an Eligible Tender Offer would result in our net assets totaling greater than the Termination Threshold, we will purchase all common shares properly tendered and not withdrawn pursuant to the terms of the Eligible Tender Offer and following the completion of such Eligible Tender Offer, our Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion and without any action by the shareholders of the Fund, eliminate the Termination Date and cause us to have a perpetual existence. See "Risk Factors—Investment Risks—General—Limited Term and Tender Offer Risks." In making a decision to eliminate the Termination Date to provide for our perpetual existence, our Board of Directors will take such actions with respect to our continued operations as it deems to be in the best interests of the Fund, based on market conditions at such time, the extent of common shareholder participation in the Eligible Tender Offer and all other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors in consultation with our Adviser, taking into account that our Adviser may have a potential conflict of interest in seeking to convert the Fund to a perpetual fund.

If the number of properly tendered common shares would result in our net assets totaling less than the Termination Threshold, the Eligible Tender Offer will be terminated, no common shares will be repurchased pursuant to the Eligible Tender Offer and we will begin (or continue) liquidating our investment portfolio and proceed to terminate on the Termination Date.

Our Adviser will pay all costs and expenses associated with the making of an Eligible Tender Offer, other than brokerage and related transaction costs associated with disposition of portfolio investments in connection with the Eligible Tender Offer, which will be borne by us and our common shareholders. An Eligible Tender Offer would be made, and common shareholders would be notified thereof, in accordance with our Declaration of Trust, the 1940 Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the applicable tender offer rules thereunder (including Rule 13e-4 and Regulation 14E under the Exchange Act).

Termination, Liquidation. On or before the Termination Date, we will cease our investment operations, retire or redeem our leverage facilities, liquidate our investment portfolio (to the extent possible) and distribute all of our liquidated net assets to common shareholders of record in one or more distributions on or after the Termination Date. In determining whether to extend the term, our Board of Directors may consider a number of factors, including, without limitation, whether we would be unable to sell our assets at favorable prices in a time frame consistent with the Termination Date due to lack of market liquidity or other adverse market conditions, or whether market conditions are such that it is reasonable to believe that, with an extension, our remaining assets would appreciate and generate income in an amount that, in the aggregate, is meaningful relative to the cost and expense of continuing our operations.

Our Adviser and Subadvisers will seek to manage our investment portfolio consistent with our obligation to cease operations on the Termination Date. To that end, our Adviser and Subadvisers intend to seek Direct Investments that they reasonably expect can be sold or otherwise exited at favorable prices on or before the Termination Date. However, there is no assurance that a market or other exit strategy will be available for our less liquid investments, including Direct Investments. As the Termination Date approaches, we expect that our Adviser and Subadvisers will seek to liquidate our less liquid investments. As a result, based on prevailing market conditions, available investment opportunities and other factors, we may invest the proceeds from the sale of such investments in corporate debt securities or in listed equity securities, thereby increasing the portion of our total assets invested in those types of securities, or our Adviser may invest the proceeds in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities. As a result, as the Termination Date approaches, our monthly cash distributions may decline, and there can be no assurance that we will achieve our investment objective or that our investment strategies will be successful.

Depending on a variety of factors, including the performance of our investment portfolio over the period of our operations, the amount distributed to common shareholders in connection with our termination or paid to participating common shareholders upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer may be less, and potentially significantly less, than your original investment. Our final distribution to common shareholders on the Termination Date and the amount paid to participating common shareholders upon completion of this offering may receive less, and potentially significantly less, than their original investment. Additionally, given the nature of certain of our investments, the amount actually distributed upon our termination may be less than our net asset value per share on the Termination Date, and the amount actually paid upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer may be less than our net asset value per share on the Termination Date, and the amount actually paid upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer may be less than our net asset value per share on the Eligible Tender Offer may be less than our net asset value per share on the Eligible Tender Offer.

Because our assets will be liquidated in connection with our termination or to pay for common shares tendered in an Eligible Tender Offer, we may be required to sell portfolio securities when we otherwise would not, including at times when market conditions are not favorable, which may cause us to lose money. We will make a distribution on the Termination Date of all cash raised from the liquidation of our assets prior to that time. However, given the nature of certain of our investments, particularly our Direct Investments, we may be unable to liquidate certain of our investments until well after the Termination Date. In this case, we may make one or more additional distributions after the Termination Date of any cash received from the ultimate liquidation of those investments. This would delay distribution payments, perhaps for an extended period of time, and there can be no assurance that the total value of the cash distribution made on the Termination Date and such subsequent distributions, if any, will equal our net asset value on the Termination Date, depending on the ultimate results of such post-Termination Date asset liquidations. If, as a result of lack of market liquidity or other adverse market conditions, our Board of Directors determines it is in the best interests of the Fund, we may transfer any portfolio investments that remain unsold on the Termination Date to a liquidating trust and distribute interests in such liquidating trust to common shareholders as part of our final distribution. Interests in the liquidating trust are expected to be nontransferable, except by operation of law. The liquidating trust will seek to liquidate such remaining investments for the benefit of our common shareholders as soon as practicable following the Termination Date. However, there can be no assurance as to the timing of or the value obtained from such liquidation. See "Risk Factors—Investment Risks—General—Limited Term and Tender Offer Risks."

Listing and Symbol

Our common shares have been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the trading or "ticker" symbol "TEAF," subject to notice of issuance.

Use of Proceeds

We expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of our common shares to invest in accordance with our investment objective and policies and for working capital purposes. We expect to fully invest the net proceeds of this offering in an initial portfolio of primarily publicly listed investments within three to six months after the closing of this offering. Pending such investment, we expect that the net proceeds of this offering will be invested in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities.

In addition, under current market conditions, we will seek to reinvest a portion of the initial portfolio of publicly listed investments into Direct Investments over an approximate targeted 12-month period after the closing of this offering. See "Use of Proceeds" and "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Delay in Use of Proceeds Risk."

Market Opportunity

In a world increasingly prone to rapid change, our Adviser believes that essential assets and services such as social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure will continue to experience growth throughout cycles. Our Adviser believes there is currently a significant need for capital investment in social infrastructure projects to expand and enhance education, healthcare, housing and human services systems, sustainable infrastructure projects to enhance and/or replace power grids, particularly through wind and solar power, and to improve global water systems and energy infrastructure projects to build out and support the critical pipeline network, including related to natural gas. Our Adviser believes that the need for such investment in essential assets also creates an opportunity for investors to participate in the ongoing growth of these sectors while achieving attractive income potential. These assets are generally long-lived with low obsolescence risk, high barriers to entry and relatively inelastic demand across the business cycle.

The Fund is intended to provide investors with exposure to essential assets in a range of sectors and across the capital structure, including access to direct investments that may not otherwise be widely available to many investors. The Fund will emphasize income-generating investments in social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure. It will provide investors with access to the skill and experience of the Tortoise platform with deep expertise in essential assets and income investing. By providing access to assets that our Adviser or Subadvisers believe are generally less correlated to the broader market, the Fund seeks to reduce volatility and produce better risk-adjusted returns with a steady income stream.

Additionally, we seek to make a positive impact on society through our investments. Social infrastructure supports and facilitates services such as healthcare, housing and education. An aging population has created a need for senior living facilities, rural hospitals and long-term care facilities, and an underfunded education system has resulted in the need for charter schools for underserved neighborhoods, community colleges for more affordable college education and vocational and technical schools for individuals wanting to learn a trade or skill. Sustainable infrastructure investments can address key societal challenges such as climate change, water scarcity and economic development through investments in renewable energy and low-carbon energy infrastructure. Energy infrastructure investments with a focus on natural gas can provide infrastructure for what we believe is a clean and reliable energy source. Our long-term impact investing discipline seeks to deliver competitive returns while managing risk for our investors who appreciate socially responsible investment strategies.

Fees

Pursuant to our investment advisory agreement with our Adviser, we will pay our Adviser a fee for its investment management services equal to an annual rate of 1.35% of our average monthly "Managed Assets" (defined as our total assets minus the sum of accrued liabilities (other than debt entered into for purposes of leverage and the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares of beneficial interest ("preferred shares")).

Our Adviser will enter into a subadvisory agreement with each of our Subadvisers and pay each of our Subadvisers a subadvisory fee based on our average monthly Managed Assets. The subadvisory fees payable to our Subadvisers will be paid by our Adviser out of the investment management fee it receives from us; accordingly, decisions to increase or decrease the portion of our assets allocated to each Subadviser will not affect the fees we pay for portfolio management services.

Each of the investment management fee that we will pay our Adviser and the subadvisory fees that our Adviser will pay our Subadvisers will be calculated and accrued daily and paid quarterly in arrears. See "Management of the Fund—Compensation and Expenses."

Federal Income Tax Status

We intend to elect to be treated, and to qualify each year, as a RIC under the Code. Assuming that we qualify as a RIC, we generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on income and gains that we distribute each taxable year to common shareholders if we meet certain minimum distribution requirements. To qualify as a RIC and maintain our RIC status, we will be required to meet asset diversification tests and annual qualifying income and distribution tests. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Investment Policies

We seek to achieve our investment objective by investing, under normal conditions, at least 80% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in issuers operating in essential asset sectors. This investment policy is non-fundamental.

We have adopted the following additional non-fundamental investment policies:

- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 40% of our total assets in directly originated loans;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in direct placements in restricted equity securities in listed companies;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in direct equity investments in unlisted companies;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 30% of our total assets in securities of non-U.S. issuers, including Canadian issuers. An issuer of a security generally will be considered to be a non-U.S. issuer if it is organized under the laws of, or maintains its principal place of business in, a country other than the United States;
- As a RIC, we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in securities of entities treated as qualified publicly traded partnerships for federal income tax purposes, which generally includes MLPs;
- We will not engage in short sales of securities;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets in securities of emerging market issuers; and
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets in non-directly originated corporate debt securities that are, at the time of purchase, rated CCC+ or lower by S&P and Fitch and Caa1 or lower by Moody's.

As used for the purpose of each non-fundamental investment policy above, the term "total assets" includes any assets obtained through leverage. Our Board of Directors may change our non-fundamental investment policies without shareholder approval and will provide notice to shareholders of material changes (including notice through shareholder reports), although a change in the policy of investing at least 80% of our total assets in issuers operating in essential asset sectors will require at least 60 days' prior written notice to shareholders. Unless otherwise stated, these investment restrictions apply at the time of purchase. Furthermore, we will not be required to reduce a position due solely to market price fluctuations.

In addition, to comply with federal income tax requirements for qualification as a RIC, our investments will be limited so that at the close of each quarter of each taxable year (1) at least 50% of the value of our total assets is represented by cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, the securities of other RICs and other securities, with such other securities limited for purposes of such calculation, in respect of any one issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of our total assets and not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (2) not more than 25% of the value of our total assets is invested in the securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. government securities or the securities of other RICs), the securities (other than the securities of other RICs) of any two or more issuers that we control and that are determined to be engaged in the same business or similar or related trades or businesses or the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships (which generally includes MLPs). These tax-related limitations may be changed by the Board of Directors to the extent appropriate in light of changes to applicable tax requirements.

During the period in which we are investing the net proceeds of this offering, we may deviate from our investment policies by investing the net proceeds in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities. Under adverse market or economic conditions, we may invest up to 100% of our total assets in these securities. In addition, as we approach the Termination Date, we may invest a portion of our assets, which may be significant, in these securities. To the

extent we invest in these securities on a temporary basis or for defensive purposes, we may not achieve our investment objective. See "Investment Objective and Principal Investment Strategies—Investment Policies."

Distributions

We intend to make monthly cash distributions to common shareholders. We expect to declare the initial distribution approximately 45 to 60 days, and to pay such distribution approximately 60 to 90 days, from the completion of this offering, depending upon market conditions. In addition, on an annual basis, we intend to distribute realized net capital gains, if any.

We expect that the source of the cash payments we receive from our investments will constitute investment company taxable income, as well as long-term capital gains or return of capital from such investments. Investment company taxable income includes, among other items, dividends, interest (including any tax-exempt interest), operational income from MLPs and net short-term capital gains, less expenses. Long-term capital gains reflect the realized market price received in the sale of an investment security in excess of its cost basis, less net capital losses, including any capital loss carryforwards. A portion of distributions received from our investments may be sourced as return of capital.

For federal income tax purposes, distributions of investment company taxable income are generally taxable as ordinary income. However, it is expected that part (but not all) of the distributions to our common shareholders may be eligible for qualified dividend income treatment for individual and other non-corporate shareholders and the dividend-received deduction for corporate shareholders, assuming the shareholder meets certain holding period and other requirements with respect to its Fund shares. Any distributions in excess of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated first, as a tax-deferred return of capital, which is applied against and will reduce the adjusted tax basis of shares and, after such adjusted basis is reduced to zero, will generally constitute capital gains. Any long-term capital gain distributions are taxable to shareholders as long-term capital gains regardless of the length of time shares have been held. Net capital gain distributions are not eligible for qualified dividend income treatment or the dividend received deduction. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" for a discussion regarding federal income tax requirements as a RIC, as well as the potential tax characterization of our distributions to shareholders.

Various factors will affect the level of our income, such as our asset mix, security mix and covered call option overlay strategy. We may not be able to make distributions in certain circumstances. To permit us to maintain a more stable distribution, our Board of Directors may from time to time cause us to distribute less than the entire amount of income earned in a particular monthly period. The undistributed income would be available to supplement future distributions. As a result, the distributions paid by us for any particular monthly period may be more or less than the amount of income actually earned by us during that period. Undistributed income will add to our net asset value, and correspondingly, distributions from undistributed income will deduct from our net asset value. If distributions paid to common shareholders exceed the amount of income and gains actually earned by us during a period, the excess of such distribution will generally constitute, for federal income tax purposes, a return of capital to the extent of the shareholder's basis in the shares and capital gain thereafter. A return of capital, which represents a return of a shareholder's original investment in the Fund, reduces the basis of the shares held by a shareholder, which may increase the amount of gain recognized upon the sale of such shares. See "Distributions" and "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Distribution Risks."

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan

We intend to have an automatic dividend reinvestment plan for our shareholders that will be effective upon completion of this offering. Our plan will be an "opt out" dividend reinvestment plan. Registered holders of our common shares will automatically be enrolled and entitled to participate in the plan. As a result, if we declare a distribution after the plan is effective, a registered holder's cash distribution will be automatically reinvested in additional common shares, unless the registered holder specifically "opts out" of the dividend reinvestment plan so as to receive cash distributions. Taxable distributions are subject to federal income tax whether received in cash or additional common shares. See "Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan" and "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Leverage

The borrowing of money and the issuance of preferred shares and debt securities represent the leveraging of our common shares. We may use financial leverage to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act, or we may elect to reduce the use of leverage or use no leverage at all. We expect that our leverage as a percentage of our total assets will normally range between 10% and 15%, but the actual amount of leverage that we use will vary depending on market conditions. We consider market conditions at the time leverage is incurred and monitor for asset coverage ratios relative to 1940 Act requirements and our financial covenants on an ongoing basis. Based on current market conditions, we expect our initial leverage to be approximately 10% of our total assets. The timing and terms of any leverage transactions will be determined by our Board of Directors. In addition, the percentage of our assets attributable to leverage may vary significantly during periods of extreme market volatility and may increase during periods of declining market prices of our portfolio holdings. Common shareholders will bear the costs associated with leverage.

Currently under the 1940 Act, we are not permitted to issue preferred shares unless immediately after such issuance, the value of our total assets (including the proceeds of such issuance) less all liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities is at least equal to 200% of the total of the aggregate amount of senior securities representing indebtedness plus the aggregate liquidation value of any outstanding preferred shares. Stated another way, we may not issue preferred shares that, together with outstanding preferred shares and debt securities, have a total aggregate liquidation value and outstanding principal amount of more than 50% of the value of our total assets, including the proceeds of such issuance, less liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities. Currently under the 1940 Act, we are not permitted to issue debt securities or incur other indebtedness) less all liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities unless immediately thereafter, the value of our total assets (including the proceeds of the amount of the outstanding indebtedness. Stated another way, we may not issue debt securities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities unless immediately thereafter, the value of our total assets (including the proceeds of the indebtedness) less all liabilities and indebtedness. Stated another way, we may not issue debt securities or incur other indebtedness or incur other indebtedness constituting senior securities and indebtedness. Stated another way, we may not issue debt securities or incur other indebtedness constituting senior securities and indebtedness. Stated another way, we may not issue debt securities or incur other indebtedness constituting senior securities with an aggregate principal amount of more than 33 1/3% of the value of our total assets, including the amount borrowed, less all liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities.

There can be no assurance that a leveraging strategy will be successful during any period in which it is used. The use of leverage creates an opportunity for increased income and capital appreciation for common shareholders, but at the same time creates special risks that may adversely affect common shareholders. Because our management fee is based upon a percentage of our Managed Assets, our management fee is higher when we are leveraged. Therefore, our Adviser has a financial incentive to use leverage, which will create a conflict of interest between our Adviser and our common shareholders, who will bear the costs of our leverage. See "Leverage" and "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Leverage Risks."

Allocation of Investment Opportunities

As a general matter, there can be no assurances that all investment opportunities identified as suitable by our Adviser and Subadvisers will be made available to us. Our Adviser and Subadvisers expect, from time to time, to be presented with investment opportunities that fall within our investment objective and other Adviser- and Subadviser-sponsored investment funds, vehicles and accounts, joint ventures and similar partnerships or arrangements (collectively, "Other Tortoise Accounts"), and in such circumstances, our Adviser or Subadvisers, as applicable, will allocate such opportunities (including, subject to the 1940 Act and the exemptive relief described below, any related co-investment opportunities) to us and Other Tortoise Accounts (including, without limitation, an allocation of 100% of such an opportunity to such Other Tortoise Accounts) on a basis that our Adviser or Subadvisers, as applicable, determines in its sole discretion to be fair and reasonable over time in accordance with its allocation policy and procedures.

Further, prospective investors should note that our Adviser or Subadvisers may establish additional Other Tortoise Accounts with investment objectives, mandates and policies that are substantially similar to ours. Our Adviser or Subadvisers may allocate investment opportunities to such Other Tortoise Accounts, and such Other Tortoise Accounts may compete with us for specific transactions.

Our Adviser or Subadvisers may give advice and recommend securities to buy or sell for us, which advice or securities may differ from advice given to, or securities recommended or bought or sold for, Other Tortoise Accounts, even though their investment objectives may be the same as, or similar to, our investment objective.

From time to time, our Adviser or Subadvisers may seed proprietary accounts for the purpose of evaluating a new investment strategy that eventually may be available to investors through one or more product structures. Such accounts also may serve the purpose of establishing a performance record for the strategy. Our Adviser's or Subadvisers' management of accounts with proprietary interests and nonproprietary client accounts may create an incentive to favor the proprietary accounts in the allocation of investment opportunities, and the timing and aggregation of investments. Our Adviser and Subadvisers have adopted various policies to mitigate these conflicts, including policies that require them to avoid favoring any account. Our Adviser's and Subadvisers' policies also require transactions in proprietary accounts to be placed after client transactions.

We and our Adviser have received exemptive relief from the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") that permits certain co-investment transactions. In this regard, our Adviser has the ability to allocate investment opportunities of certain negotiated transactions between the Fund, other funds registered under the 1940 Act and other accounts managed by our Adviser pro rata based on available capital, up to the amount proposed to be invested by each. All accounts generally are required to participate on the same terms. Pursuant to the exemptive order, our Adviser will be required to provide the board of directors of each participating registered fund with certain information concerning the relevant investment. A majority (as defined in section 57(o) of the 1940 Act) of the directors eligible to consider the co-investment transaction of each participating registered fund must approve such registered fund's participation in the co-investment transaction.

Hedging and Risk Management

In addition to writing covered call options as part of our investment strategy, we may utilize derivative instruments for hedging and risk management purposes.

We may utilize hedging techniques such as interest rate transactions to mitigate potential interest rate risk on all or a portion of our leverage. Such interest rate transactions would be used to protect us against higher costs on our leverage resulting from increases in short-term interest rates. We anticipate that the majority of such interest rate hedges would be interest rate swap contracts and interest rate caps and floors purchased from financial institutions.

We may in the future, but do not currently intend to, use other hedging and risk management strategies, including futures, forward contracts, options, options on such contracts and interest rate, credit default and total return swaps, to seek to manage other market risks. Such hedging strategies may be utilized to seek to protect against possible adverse changes in the market prices of securities held in our investment portfolio, exposure to commodities prices and non-U.S. currencies or to otherwise protect the value of our investment portfolio. See

"Leverage—Hedging and Risk Management" and "Risk Factors—Investment Risks—Other Investment Risks— Hedging and Derivatives Risks."

Adviser's and Subadvisers' Information

The principal offices of our Adviser and Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC are located at 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211. The toll-free telephone number of our Adviser and Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC is 1-866-362-9331. The principal offices of Tortoise Advisors UK Limited are located at Burdett House, 15 Buckingham Street, London WC2N 6DU, United Kingdom. Our Adviser's and Subadvisers' website is <u>http://www.tortoiseadvisors.com</u>. Information posted to the websites of our Adviser or Subadvisers, or the websites of any of their affiliates, should not be considered part of this prospectus.

Risks

Investing in our common shares involves risk, including the risk that you may receive little or no return on your investment, or even that you may lose part or all of your investment. Our strategy of investing typically in issuers in essential asset sectors means that our performance will be closely tied to the performance of issuers in sectors such as the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors. Our emphasis on these investments may present more risk than if we were broadly diversified over numerous industries and sectors of the economy. An investment in our common shares will also be subject to the risks inherent to investing in private investments and other illiquid securities. These risks, along with other risks applicable to an investment in our common shares, you should consider carefully all of these risks.

Our common shares are not an appropriate investment for a short-term trading strategy. An investment in our securities should not constitute a complete investment program for any investor and involves a high degree of risk. Due to the uncertainty in all investments, there can be no assurance that we will achieve our investment objective.

SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES

The following table and example contain information about the costs and expenses that common shareholders will bear directly or indirectly. In accordance with SEC requirements, the expenses shown in the table under "Other Expenses," "Total Annual Expenses" and "Net Annual Expenses" are based on estimated amounts for our first full year of operations and assume that we issue 13,000,000 common shares (\$260 million). The table below shows our expenses, including leverage costs, as a percentage of our net assets attributable to common shares and not as a percentage of gross assets or Managed Assets. The Fund's actual expenses may vary from the estimated expenses shown in the table.

Shareholder Transaction Expenses (as a percentage of offering price):

Sales Load	None
Offering Expenses Borne by the Shareholders	None ⁽¹⁾
Dividend Reinvestment Plan Fees (in dollars)	None ⁽²⁾
Total Shareholder Transaction Expenses Paid	None

Annual Expenses (as a percentage of net assets attributable to common shares)⁽³⁾

Management Fee ⁽⁴⁾	1.50%
Interest Payments on Borrowed Funds ⁽⁵⁾	0.50%
Other Expenses ⁽⁶⁾	0.28%
Total Annual Expenses	2.28%
Less Fee and Expense Reimbursement ⁽⁷⁾	(0.28)%
Net Annual Expenses	2.00%

- (1) Our Adviser (and not the Fund) has agreed to pay, from its own assets, all organizational expenses of the Fund and all offering costs associated with this offering. The Fund is not obligated to repay any such organizational expenses or offering costs paid by our Adviser.
- (2) There are no brokerage charges with respect to common shares issued by the Fund. You will pay brokerage charges if you direct your broker to sell common shares that you acquired pursuant to a dividend reinvestment plan. You may also pay a pro rata share of brokerage commissions incurred in connection with open-market purchases pursuant to the Fund's dividend reinvestment plan. For more details about the plan, see "Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan."
- (3) The table presented above estimates what our annual expenses would be stated as a percentage of our net assets attributable to common shares for our first full year of operations. This results in a higher percentage than the percentage attributable to our estimated expenses for our first full year of operations stated as a percentage of our Managed Assets. Please see "Leverage—Annual Expenses as a Percentage of Managed Assets" for additional information.
- (4) "Management Fee" includes fees payable to our Adviser pursuant to an investment advisory agreement with the Fund. There is no investment advisory agreement with, or management fees charged to, any Subsidiary.
- (5) Assumes that we borrow approximately \$28.9 million, assuming an annual interest rate of 4.50% on the amount borrowed, which represents leverage of approximately 10% of our total assets.
- (6) "Other Expenses" includes our estimated overhead expenses, including payments to our transfer agent, administrator, custodian, fund accountant and legal and accounting expenses for our first year of operations. "Other Expenses" include estimated expenses of our Subsidiaries, if any, which are not expected to exceed 0.01% of our total expenses, during our first year of operations. The holders of our common shares indirectly bear the costs associated with such other expenses as well as all other costs not specifically assumed by our Adviser and incurred in connection with our operations.

(7) Our Adviser has agreed to waive a portion of its investment advisory fee in the amount of 0.25% of our average monthly Managed Assets for one year following the effective date of this registration statement. This waiver will not apply after this one year period.

Example

The following example demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses that would be incurred over various periods with respect to a hypothetical investment in our common shares. These amounts are based upon the annual operating expenses at the levels set forth in the table above, including the fee waiver for one year in each period.

	1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
You would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000				
investment, assuming a 5% annual return.	\$20	\$68	\$119	\$260

The example above is intended to assist you in understanding the various costs and expenses an investor in our common shares may bear directly or indirectly and should not be considered a representation of our future expenses. Actual expenses may be greater or less than those shown. Moreover, while the example assumes, as required by the applicable rules of the SEC, a 5% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return greater or less than 5%. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all distributions at net asset value, participants in our dividend reinvestment plan may receive common shares valued at the market price in effect at that time. This price may be at, above or below net asset value. See "Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan" for additional information regarding our automatic dividend reinvestment plan.

For additional information with respect to our expenses, see "Management of the Fund" and "Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan."

THE FUND

We are a newly organized, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company registered under the 1940 Act. We were organized as a Maryland corporation on February 17, 2017 pursuant to articles of incorporation. On July 19, 2018, we converted from a Maryland corporation to a Maryland statutory trust. Our fiscal year ends on November 30. Our common shares have been approved for listing on the NYSE under the trading or ticker symbol "TEAF," subject to notice of issuance.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of our common shares to invest in accordance with our investment objective and policies and for working capital purposes. We expect to fully invest the net proceeds of this offering in an initial portfolio of primarily publicly listed investments within three to six months after the closing of this offering. Pending such investment, we expect that the net proceeds of this offering will be invested in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities. The three- to six-month timeframe expected to fully invest the proceeds of this offering could lower returns and reduce the amount of cash available to make distributions. See "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Delay in Use of Proceeds Risk."

In addition, under current market conditions, we will seek to reinvest a portion of the initial portfolio of publicly listed investments into Direct Investments over an approximate targeted 12-month period after the closing of this offering.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

Investment Objective and Strategies

Our investment objective is to provide our common shareholders with a high level of total return with an emphasis on current distributions. Our investment objective is not fundamental and may be changed by our Board of Directors without shareholder approval. We cannot assure you that we will achieve our investment objective.

We seek to achieve our investment objective by investing, under normal conditions, at least 80% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in issuers operating in essential asset sectors. We consider essential assets to be assets and services that are indispensable to the economy and society. Essential asset sectors include the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors. We may invest across all levels of an issuer's capital structure and emphasize income-generating investments, particularly in social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure. Our investment portfolio generally will be comprised of the following types of investments:

• Direct Investments. We may make direct equity and debt investments in issuers operating in essential asset sectors, which investments may include: (1) directly originated securities and obligations of governmental entities or other qualifying issuers of states, municipalities, territories and possessions of the United States and the District of Columbia and their political subdivisions, agencies and instrumentalities, private nonprofit organizations, 501(c)(3) organizations, public nonprofit organizations and other entities authorized to issue private activity and municipal bonds that will generally be high yield debt securities or are unrated; (2) common or preferred equity investments in

private clean energy-related issuers, including issuers holding or owning power purchase agreements; (3) private investments in energy-related issuers, including securities of issuers with public equity, commonly referred to as "PIPES," and structured preferred securities; and (4) other privately structured investments.

- Listed equity securities. We may invest in listed equity securities of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, including common stock, common units of MLPs and of LLCs and preferred equity. While we may invest across a broad range of essential asset sectors, and the allocation of our investments among such sectors may change from time to time, we currently expect that a significant portion of our investments in listed equity securities will be in securities of companies in the renewable energy, power delivery, energy infrastructure and broader energy and water sectors. We may invest in securities of any market capitalization, including small-and mid-capitalization companies. We currently intend to write (sell) call options on a portion of our listed equity securities portfolio.
- *Corporate debt securities.* We may invest in corporate debt securities, including corporate bonds and notes, project finance debt securities, bank loans and loan participations, of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, with an initial emphasis on high yield debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Adviser or Subadvisers deem to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. Our investments in corporate debt securities may include Rule 144A securities. We may invest in corporate debt securities of any maturity.

We consider an issuer to be operating in an essential asset sector if: (1) at least 50% of its assets are dedicated to, or at least 50% of its cash flow or revenue is derived from, one or more essential asset sectors, including the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors; or (2) it is otherwise determined by our Adviser or Subadvisers to be an issuer in one of the sectors mentioned above by (a) its classification or inclusion in an index related to that industry or sector, (b) its GICS classification, (c) its assignment under the NAICS or (d) its assignment of a related code under the SIC system.

An Investment Committee of our Adviser will provide strategic oversight and determine the allocation of our investment portfolio across the social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure asset classes, and between direct investments, listed equity securities and corporate debt securities, based on prevailing market conditions, available investment opportunities and other factors, and may change the allocation of our total assets among these asset classes or security types from time to time without prior approval from or notice to our common shareholders. Portfolio management teams of our Adviser and our Subadvisers will be responsible for the day-to-day management of their respective sleeves of our investment portfolio.

Direct Investments

We may make direct equity and debt investments in issuers operating in essential asset sectors, which investments may include: (1) directly originated securities and obligations of governmental entities or other qualifying issuers of states, municipalities, territories and possessions of the United States and the District of Columbia and their political subdivisions, agencies and instrumentalities, private nonprofit organizations, 501(c)(3) organizations, public nonprofit organizations and other entities authorized to issue private activity and municipal bonds that will generally be high yield debt securities or unrated; (2) common or preferred equity investments in private clean energy-related issuers, including issuers holding or owning power purchase agreements; (3) private investments in energy-related issuers, including securities of issuers with public equity, commonly referred to as "PIPES," and structured preferred securities; and (4) other privately structured investments.

Directly Originated Social Infrastructure Securities. Social infrastructure assets and services include primary, secondary and post-secondary education facilities; hospitals and other healthcare facilities; senior,

student, affordable, military and other housing facilities; industrial infrastructure and utility projects; and nonprofit and civic facilities. Issuers of social infrastructure securities and obligations may include governmental entities or other qualifying issuers of states, municipalities, territories and possessions of the United States and the District of Columbia and their political subdivisions, agencies and instrumentalities, private nonprofit organizations, 501(c)(3) organizations, public nonprofit organizations and other entities authorized to issue private activity and municipal bonds that will generally be high yield debt securities or unrated. Our investment focus will generally be on high yield securities or the unrated equivalent. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Subadviser deems to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments.

Securities in the education sectors include those issued in connection with PreK-12, post-secondary, and job training institutions (including private, parochial, charter, vocational and technical, community/junior colleges, and small private colleges and universities). Securities in the healthcare sectors include those issued in connection with senior care and housing, hospitals and medical care providers (including rehabilitation, psychiatric and substance-abuse) and long-term care facilities (including the entire continuum from independent living to assisted living to skilled nursing, palliative care and hospice). Securities in the industrial infrastructure sectors include those issued in connection with industrial plants and projects, including solid waste disposal, recycling and waste-to-energy. Securities in the housing sector include those issued in connection with seniors, students, affordable housing (including apartments, multi-family and single family), military and mobile home park builders and operators.

Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC, our investment subadviser, will manage our investments in directly originated social infrastructure securities and will seek to invest in social infrastructure providers that have (1) seasoned management teams with industry expertise and independent governance structures using best practices; (2) operating profiles with operational effectiveness and favorable statutory and regulatory environments; (3) financial resources and flexibility with an ability to manage debt; and (4) demonstrated demand. Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC currently intends to generally focus on structures with relatively low duration and strong covenants.

We may invest in debt securities of any maturity and credit quality but expect to typically invest in "high yield" debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated at the time of investment either BB+, Ba1 or below (or an equivalent rating) by a NRSRO or, if unrated, determined by our Adviser or Subadvisers to be of comparable credit quality.

Equity and Debt Investments in Private Clean Energy-Related Issuers. We may make equity and debt investments in private clean energy-related issuers. These issuers may include (1) private, middle-market companies whose activities focus on the generation of power from renewable sources, such as utility-scale and distributed solar power; utility-scale wind, hydroelectric and geothermal power; the generation of power from natural gas; the development of other clean energy sources, such as landfill gas; the provision of storage and transmission services in connection with the provision of clean energy; the development of sustainable energy infrastructure; and efforts to increase energy efficiency; (2) joint ventures and special purpose vehicles established with such companies to design, develop and operate specific projects relating to the generation, storage and transmission of clean energy; and (3) special purpose vehicles or other vehicles that hold or invest in power purchase agreements. In a power purchase agreements, a purchaser such as a municipality, university, hospital or utility, is contractually obligated to purchase power from the project for the life of the contract.

Our Adviser will seek to invest in private clean energy-related companies that have (1) high-quality, longlived, sustainable assets using proven technologies; (2) regulatory mandates, favorable growth trends and longterm revenue contracts with creditworthy counterparties; (3) assets with competitive cost positions that provide essential services; and (4) proven management teams, operators, developers and investment partners. Our Adviser currently intends to generally focus on structures with long-term contracts and performance warranties. Direct Placement Energy Investments. We may make direct placements, also known as private energy investments, in securities of issuers with public equity ("PIPEs") and structured preferred securities in essential asset sectors, with an expected emphasis on the energy and energy infrastructure sectors. These securities generally will consist of common units of MLPs and common units of LLCs, preferred equity and common stock. These transactions generally will result either in our directly acquiring restricted stock or in our acquiring a restricted security or other instrument that is convertible into restricted or registered stock. In evaluating opportunities for direct placements, our Adviser generally will use the same criteria it uses to seek investments in listed equity securities, as discussed below.

Listed Equity Securities

Our investments in listed equity securities will include securities that are publicly traded on an exchange or in the OTC market. These securities may consist typically of common stock, common units of MLPs and common units of LLCs and preferred equity. While we may invest across a broad range of essential asset sectors, and the allocation of our investments among such sectors may change from time to time, we currently expect that a significant portion of our investments in listed equity securities will be in securities of companies in the renewable energy, power delivery, energy infrastructure and broader energy and water sectors. We may invest in securities of any market capitalization, including small- and mid-capitalization companies. We may invest up to 25% of our total assets in securities of MLPs and other entities treated as qualified publicly traded partnerships for federal income tax purposes.

Our Adviser's investment strategy targets listed equity securities of essential asset companies with experienced, efficient, operations-focused management teams possessing successful track records and substantial knowledge, experience and focus in one or more essential asset sectors. Our Adviser generally seeks listed equity securities of companies that provide a current cash return at the time of investment, providing a source of current income, as well as the potential for price appreciation.

Our Adviser's investment process utilizes fundamental analysis and a comparison of quantitative, qualitative and relative value factors. Investment decisions are driven by proprietary financial, risk and valuation models developed and maintained by our Adviser which assist in the evaluation of investment decisions and risk. Financial models, based on business drivers with historical and multi-year operational and financial projections, quantify growth, facilitate sensitivity and credit analysis and aid in peer comparisons. The risk models assess a company's asset quality, management, stability of cash flows and operational and financial performance. Our Adviser also uses traditional valuation metrics such as cash flow multiples and net asset value in its investment process.

An investment team consisting of portfolio managers of our Adviser is responsible for approving investment decisions and monitoring investments with respect to the portion of our investment portfolio managed by our Adviser. In conducting due diligence, our Adviser relies on first-hand sources of information, such as company filings, meetings and conference calls with management, site visits and government information. Although our Adviser intends to use research provided by broker-dealers and investment firms, primary emphasis will be placed on proprietary analysis and valuation models conducted and maintained by our Adviser's in-house investment analysts. To determine whether a company meets its investment criteria, our Adviser generally will look for the targeted investment characteristics described herein. With respect to the portion of our investment portfolio managed by our Adviser's due diligence process is comprehensive and generally includes, among other things, review of historical and prospective financial information, participation in quarterly updates and conference calls and analysis of financial models and projections.

With respect to the portion of our listed equity portfolio managed by our investment subadviser Tortoise Advisors UK Limited, Tortoise Advisors UK Limited invests primarily in public equities of companies focusing on power delivery and/or water that are significantly benefiting from the transition towards a low carbon economy and the drive to use resources more efficiently and reduce emissions. Tortoise Advisors UK Limited employs fundamental bottom-up analyses with a focus on quality metrics, detailed asset/project modelling and attractive valuations. An analysis of ESG factors is fully integrated in the investment process.

We will seek to provide current income from gains earned through an option overlay strategy. We currently intend to write (sell) call options on a portion of listed equity securities portfolio (previously defined as "covered calls"). The notional amount of such covered calls is expected to initially be approximately 10% to 30% of our listed equity investments, although this percentage may vary over time depending on the cash flow requirements of our investment portfolio and on our Adviser's and Subadvisers' assessment of market conditions. We currently intend to write out-of-the-money covered calls with strike prices above the market prices of the underlying securities. As the writer of such covered calls, in effect, during the term of the covered call, in exchange for the premium we receive, we give up the potential appreciation above the exercise price in the market value of the security or securities underlying the covered calls. Therefore, we may forego the potential appreciation for part of our listed equity investments in exchange for the call premium received.

Corporate Debt Securities

We may invest in corporate debt securities, including corporate bonds and notes, project finance debt securities, bank loans and loan participations, of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, with an initial emphasis on high yield debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Adviser or Subadvisers deem to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in non-directly originated corporate debt securities that are, at the time of purchase, rated CCC+ or lower by S&P and Fitch and Caa1 or lower by Moody's.

We may invest in corporate debt securities that are purchased and sold in private offerings pursuant to Rule 144A or other applicable exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. We may purchase or sell corporate debt securities on a when-issued, delayed-delivery or forward commitment basis. We may invest in corporate debt securities of any maturity.

Our Adviser's securities selection process includes a comparison of quantitative, qualitative and relative value factors. Although our Adviser uses research provided by broker dealers and investment firms when available, primary emphasis is placed on proprietary analysis and risk, financial and valuation models conducted and maintained by our Adviser's in-house investment professionals. To determine whether a company meets its investment criteria, our Adviser will generally look for the targeted investment characteristics as described herein.

Investment Policies

We seek to achieve our investment objective by investing, under normal conditions, at least 80% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in issuers operating in essential asset sectors. This investment policy is non-fundamental.

We have adopted the following additional non-fundamental investment policies:

- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 40% of our total assets in directly originated loans;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in direct placements in restricted equity securities in listed companies;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in direct equity investments in unlisted companies;

- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 30% of our total assets in securities of non-U.S. issuers, including Canadian issuers. An issuer of a security generally will be considered to be a non-U.S. issuer if it is organized under the laws of, or maintains its principal place of business in, a country other than the United States;
- As a RIC, we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in securities of entities treated as qualified publicly traded partnerships for federal income tax purposes, which generally includes MLPs;
- We will not engage in short sales of securities;
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets in securities of emerging market issuers; and
- Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets in non-directly originated corporate debt securities that are, at the time of purchase, rated CCC+ or lower by S&P and Fitch and Caa1 or lower by Moody's.

As used for the purpose of each non-fundamental investment policy above, the term "total assets" includes any assets obtained through leverage. Our Board of Directors may change our non-fundamental investment policies without shareholder approval and will provide notice to shareholders of material changes (including notice through shareholder reports), although a change in the policy of investing at least 80% of our total assets in issuers operating in essential asset sectors will require at least 60 days' prior written notice to shareholders. Unless otherwise stated, these investment restrictions apply at the time of purchase and we will not be required to reduce a position due solely to market price fluctuations.

In addition, to comply with federal income tax requirements for qualification as a RIC, our investments will be limited so that at the close of each quarter of each taxable year (1) at least 50% of the value of our total assets is represented by cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, securities of other RICs and other securities, with such other securities limited for purposes of such calculation, in respect of any one issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of our total assets and not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer, and (2) not more than 25% of the value of our total assets is invested in the securities of any one issuer (other than U.S. government securities or the securities of other RICs), the securities (other than the securities of other RICs) of any two or more issuers that we control and that are determined to be engaged in the same business or similar or related trades or businesses or the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships (which includes MLPs). These tax-related limitations may be changed by the Board of Directors to the extent appropriate in light of changes to applicable tax requirements.

During the period in which we are investing the net proceeds of this offering, we may deviate from our investment policies by investing the net proceeds in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities. Under adverse market or economic conditions, we may invest up to 100% of our total assets in these securities. In addition, as the Termination Date approaches, we may invest a portion of our assets, which may be significant, in these securities. To the extent we invest in these securities on a temporary basis or for defensive purposes, we may not achieve our investment objective.

Investment Securities

The types of securities in which we may invest include, but are not limited to, the following:

Equity Securities

Equity investments generally represent an ownership interest, or the right to acquire an ownership interest, in an issuer. Different types of equity securities provide different voting and dividend rights and priority in the event of an issuer's bankruptcy. Prices of equity securities fluctuate for several reasons, including because of changes, or perceived changes, in the business, financial condition or prospects of the issuer or because of changes in financial or political conditions that may affect particular industries or the economy in general.

Common Stock. Holders of common stock generally have voting rights with respect to the issuer, however, we do not expect to have voting control with respect to any of the issuers of listed equity securities in which we invest, and we may not have voting control with respect to some or all of our private equity investments. Upon the liquidation or winding up of the issuer, holders of common stock are entitled to the assets of the issuer that remain after satisfying all obligations owed to the issuer's creditors, including holders of debt securities, and holders of the issuer's preferred stock. Holders of common stock also may receive dividends, however, unlike the dividends payable with respect to preferred stock (which is described below), dividends payable with respect to common stock are not fixed but are declared at the discretion of the issuer's board of directors.

Preferred Equity. Upon the liquidation or winding up of the issuer, holders of preferred equity have a preference over holders of the issuer's common equity, however, their claims to the assets of the issuer are subordinated to the claims of the issuer's creditors, including holders of debt securities. Holders of preferred equity also receive distributions or dividends at a specified annual rate, although this rate may be changed or omitted by the issuer under certain circumstances. Market prices of preferred equities generally fluctuate with changes in market interest rates. Under normal conditions, holders of preferred equity usually do not have voting rights with respect to the issuer.

Convertible preferred equity is preferred equity that may be exchanged or converted into a predetermined number of shares of the issuer's common equity or another equity security at the option of the holder under specified circumstances. The investment characteristics of convertible preferred equity vary widely, which allows convertible preferred equity to be employed for a variety of investment strategies. We will exchange or convert convertible preferred equity into shares of common equity when, in the opinion of our Adviser, the investment characteristics of the common equity or other equity security will assist us in achieving our investment objective. We also may elect to hold or trade convertible preferred equity. In selecting convertible preferred equities, our Adviser evaluates the investment characteristics of the convertible preferred equity as well as the investment potential of the common equity or other equity security into which it may be converted for capital appreciation.

Common Units of MLPs and LLCs. An MLP is a publicly traded company organized as a limited partnership or LLC and treated as a qualified publicly traded partnership for federal income tax purposes. Common units represent an equity ownership interest in an MLP, however, MLP common unit holders generally have limited voting rights, compared to the voting rights of holders of a corporation's common stock, and play a limited role in the MLP's operations and management. Common units of an LLC represent an equity ownership in an LLC. LLC common unit holders typically have broader voting rights than common unit holders of entities organized as limited partnerships. Interests in MLP or LLC common units entitle the holder to a share of the company's success through distributions and/or capital appreciation. As a RIC, we may invest no more than 25% of our total assets in securities of entities treated as qualified publicly traded partnerships for federal income tax purposes, which generally includes MLPs.

Equity Securities of MLP Affiliates. In addition to common units of MLPs, we also may invest in equity securities issued by MLP affiliates, such as shares of common stock of corporations that own MLP general partner interests. General partner interests often confer direct board participation rights and, in many cases, operating control with respect to the MLP.

Other Equity Securities. We may invest in all types of equity securities, including, but not limited to, those described above, as well as depository receipts, which represent interests in equity securities of non-U.S. issuers; limited partnership interests; rights and warrants; and shares of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment trusts ("REITs").

Debt Securities

Debt securities represent an interest in a borrower's indebtedness. Different types of debt securities provide different terms for the payment of principal and interest and priority in the event of an issuer's default or bankruptcy. Prices of debt securities fluctuate for several reasons, including in response to changes in market interest rates and changes, or perceived changes, in the creditworthiness of the borrower.

Corporate Debt Securities. We may invest in corporate debt securities, including corporate bonds and notes, project finance debt securities, and bank loans and loan participations, of issuers operating in essential asset sectors, with an emphasis on high yield debt securities. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Adviser or Subadvisers deem to be of comparable quality. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. Our investments in corporate debt securities may include Rule 144A securities. We may invest in corporate debt securities of any maturity. Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in non-directly originated corporate debt securities that are, at the time of purchase, rated CCC+ or lower by S&P and Fitch and Caa1 or lower by Moody's.

Corporate Bonds and Notes. Our investments in corporate debt securities will include corporate bonds and notes. Corporate bonds and notes are debt securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. businesses to borrow money from investors for a variety of reasons, including to finance operations, provide working capital, refinance existing debt, engage in acquisitions, pay dividends or finance stock buy-backs or recapitalize. The issuer of a bond or note pays the investors a fixed, variable or floating rate of interest and normally must repay the amount borrowed on or before a stated maturity date. Certain bonds and notes in which we may invest may be convertible into equity securities of the issuer or its affiliates. We may invest in corporate bonds and notes of any credit quality. The corporate bonds and notes in which we invest will typically be unsecured but may be secured by a lien on specified assets of the issuer and/or its affiliates. Any such lien may be subordinated to liens securing the issuer's senior debt. The corporate bonds or notes in which we invest may pay interest in cash or in kind. With respect to payment-in-kind securities, the issuer pays interest in the form of additional securities rather than cash.

The investment return of a corporate bond or note reflects the interest payments received and changes in the market price of the bond or note during the holding period. The market price of a corporate bond or note may be expected to rise and fall inversely with market interest rates generally and in response to actual or perceived changes in the creditworthiness of the issuer. Because of the wide range of types and maturities of corporate bonds and notes, as well as the range of creditworthiness of their issuers, the risk-return profiles of corporate bonds and notes vary widely. For example, notes issued by a large established corporation that is rated investment grade may offer a modest return but carry relatively limited risk. On the other hand, a long-term bond issued by a smaller, less established corporation that is rated below investment grade may have the potential for relatively large returns but carries a relatively high degree of risk.

Project Finance Debt Securities. We may invest in the debt securities issued to finance specific projects focused typically in essential asset areas, which may include both investment grade and high yield project finance bonds. Project finance is the financing of long-term infrastructure, industrial projects and public services using a non-recourse or limited-recourse financial structure. The debt and equity used to finance the project are paid back from the cash flow generated by the project. Project financing is a loan structure that relies typically on the project's cash flow for repayment, with the project's assets, rights and interests held as secondary collateral.

Bank Loans and Loan Participations. Our investments in corporate debt securities may include investments in senior and subordinated bank loans to U.S. and non-U.S. businesses. Companies may borrow money from banks for a variety of reasons, including those set forth above under "Corporate Bonds and Notes." The borrower under a bank loan typically pays interest at rates that are determined periodically on the basis of a floating base lending rate, plus a spread, during the term of the loan. The amount borrowed under a bank loan is typically repaid during the term of the loan in accordance with an agreed amortization schedule, but certain bank loans may permit interest-only payments during all or a portion of the loan term.

The bank loans in which we invest will generally be secured by a lien on specified assets of the borrower and/or its affiliates. Senior loans occupy the highest position in the borrower's capital structure and entitle the lender to a first-priority lien on the collateral securing the loan. The lien securing a subordinated loan is contractually subordinated to the rights of the borrower's senior lenders. The terms governing bank loans typically impose restrictive covenants on the borrower intended to protect the economic interest of the lender.

We may invest in bank loans through assignments, whereby we assume the position of the lender to the borrower, or loan participations, whereby we purchase all or a portion of the economic interest in a loan. The purchaser of a loan participation typically has a contractual relationship with the lender selling the participation but not with the borrower and will generally have rights that are more limited than the rights of a lender or of a person who acquires a loan by assignment.

The investment return of a bank loan or loan participation reflects the interest payments received and changes in the market price of the loan or participation during the holding period. Similar to corporate bonds and notes, the market price of a bank loan or loan participation may be expected to rise and fall inversely with market interest rates generally and in response to actual or perceived changes in the creditworthiness of the issuer. However, the floating-rate feature of many bank loans serves to lower the loans' effective duration and prevent significant price fluctuations in response to changes in market interest rates.

Municipal-Related Securities. We expect that most of our investments in the social infrastructure sector will be comprised of municipal-related securities. Municipal-related securities are debt securities issued either by U.S. state and local governmental entities or by non-governmental entities, including private nonprofit, 501(c)(3) and for-profit entities, to raise funds to support activities with a public or, in certain circumstances, a private purpose that will generally be high yield debt securities or unrated. Public purposes for which municipal-related securities may be issued include the construction of a wide range of public infrastructure and facilities (including housing), essential social, health and/or public service sector programs and initiatives, refunding of outstanding obligations and obtaining funds for general operating expenses and loans to other public institutions and facilities. In addition, certain types of securities are issued by or on behalf of public authorities, such as to finance privately owned or operated facilities. In addition, other private activity securities, the proceeds of which are used, for example, for the construction, equipment or improvement of privately operated industrial or commercial facilities, may constitute municipal securities, but current federal tax laws place substantial limitations on the size of such issues. Private activities that may be funded by municipal-related securities include housing, medical and educational facility construction, or privately owned industrial development and pollution control projects.

The two principal classifications of municipal-related securities are "general obligation" and "revenue" or "special obligation" securities (including private activity securities). General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit, or taxing authority, of the issuer and may be repaid from any revenue source. Revenue bonds are backed by the revenues of a project or facility, or from the proceeds of a specific revenue source and may be repaid only from the revenues of a specific facility or source. We also may purchase securities that represent lease obligations, municipal notes, pre-refunded municipal bonds, private activity bonds, tender option bonds and other forms of municipal bonds and securities.

The interest on our investments in municpal-related securities may bear a fixed rate or be payable at a variable or floating rate. The yields on municipal-related securities depend on a variety of factors, including prevailing interest rates and the condition of the general money market and the municipal bond market, the size of a particular offering, the maturity of the obligation and the rating of the issue. The market value of municipal-related securities will vary with changes in interest rate levels and as a result of changing evaluations of the ability of their issuers to meet interest and principal payments.

The municipal-related securities in which we invest will generally be directly originated municipal securities. Directly originated securities represent obligations structured directly by a single purchaser, or a limited number of institutional purchasers, and the issuer, and are typically not rated by credit rating agencies. We expect that the directly originated securities in which we invest generally will be deemed by our Adviser to be of comparable quality to securities rated below investment grade and that such securities will belong to relatively small issues.

Private issuers of municipal-related securities in the education sector include charter schools, student housing and other education subsectors, including, for example, private schools, parochial schools and vocational and technical schools. Private issuers of municipal-related securities in the healthcare sector include issuers in the senior care and housing, hospitals and providers and other healthcare subsectors, including, for example, assisted living and skilled nursing facilities. We also may invest in municipal-related securities of private issuers in the industrial and infrastructure sectors as well as in municipal-related securities of general nonprofit organizations, human services providers and issuers in the non-student and non-senior housing subsectors. In addition, we may invest in municipal-related securities to finance or refinance privately owned or operated facilities, including in respect of electric energy or gas, sewage, solid waste disposal and other specialized facilities. Other private activity securities, the proceeds of which may be used for, as an example, the construction, equipment or improvement of privately operated industrial or commercial facilities, may constitute municipal-related securities, but current federal tax laws place substantial limitations on the size of such issues.

Municipal Leases and Certificates of Participation. We may purchase securities that represent lease obligations and certificates of participation in such leases. These securities carry special risks because the issuer of the securities may not be obligated to appropriate money annually to make payments under the lease. A municipal lease is an obligation in the form of a lease or installment purchase which is issued by a state or local government to acquire equipment and facilities. Income from such obligations is generally exempt from U.S. federal income tax, as well as from state and local income taxes in the state of issuance. Leases and installment purchase or conditional sale contracts (which normally provide for title to the leased asset to pass eventually to the governmental issuer) have evolved as a means for governmental issuers to acquire property and equipment without meeting the constitutional and statutory requirements for the issuance of debt. The debt issuance limitations are deemed to be inapplicable because of the inclusion in many leases or contracts of "non-appropriation" clauses that relieve the governmental issuer of any obligation to make future payments under the lease or contract unless money is appropriated for such purpose by the appropriate legislative body on a yearly or other periodic basis. In addition, such leases or contracts may be subject to the temporary abatement of payments in the event the issuer is prevented from maintaining occupancy of the leased premises or utilizing the leased equipment or facilities. Although the obligations may be secured by the leased equipment or facilities, the disposition of the property in the event of non-appropriation or foreclosure might prove difficult, time consuming and costly, and result in a delay in recovering, or the failure to recover fully, our original investment. To the extent that we invest in unrated municipal leases or participate in such leases, the credit quality rating and risk of cancellation of such unrated leases will be monitored on an ongoing basis. In order to reduce this risk, we will purchase securities representing lease obligations only where our Subadvisers believes the issuer has a strong incentive to continue making appropriations until maturity.

A certificate of participation represents an undivided interest in an unmanaged pool of municipal leases, an installment purchase agreement or other instruments. The certificates are typically issued by a municipal agency, a trust or other entity that has received an assignment of the payments to be made by the state or political subdivision under such leases or installment purchase agreements. Such certificates provide us with the right to a pro rata undivided interest in the underlying municipal securities. In addition, such participations generally provide us with the right to demand payment, on not more than seven days' notice, of all or any part of our participation interest in the underlying municipal securities, plus accrued interest.

Municipal Notes. Municipal securities in the form of notes generally are used to provide for short-term capital needs, in anticipation of an issuer's receipt of other revenues or financing, and typically have maturities of up to three years. Such instruments may include tax anticipation notes, revenue anticipation notes, bond anticipation notes, tax and revenue anticipation notes and construction loan notes. Tax anticipation notes are issued to finance the working capital needs of governments. Generally, they are issued in anticipation of various tax revenues, such as income, sales, property, use and business taxes, and are payable from these specific future taxes. Revenue anticipation notes are issued in expectation of receipt of other kinds of revenue, such as federal revenues sharing programs. Bond anticipation notes are issued to provide interim financing until long-term bond financing can be arranged. In most cases, the long-term bonds then provide the

funds needed for repayment of the bond anticipation notes. Tax and revenue anticipation notes combine the funding sources of both tax anticipation notes and revenue anticipation notes. Construction loan notes are sold to provide construction financing. Mortgage notes insured by the Federal Housing Authority secure these notes, however, the proceeds from the insurance may be less than the economic equivalent of the payment of principal and interest on the mortgage note if there has been a default. The anticipated revenues from taxes, grants or bond financing generally secure the obligations of an issuer of municipal notes. An investment in such instruments, however, presents a risk that the anticipated revenues will not be received or that such revenues will be insufficient to satisfy the issuer's payment obligations under the notes or that refinancing will be otherwise unavailable.

Private Activity Bonds. Private activity bonds, formerly referred to as industrial development bonds, are issued by or on behalf of public authorities to obtain funds to provide privately operated housing facilities, airport, mass transit or port facilities, sewage disposal, solid waste disposal or hazardous waste treatment or disposal facilities and certain local facilities for water supply, gas or electricity. Other types of private activity bonds, the proceeds of which are used for the construction, equipment, repair or improvement of privately operated industrial or commercial facilities, may constitute municipal securities, although the current federal tax laws place substantial limitations on the size of such issues. Under current law, a significant portion of the private activity bond market is comprised of bonds the interest on which is subject to the federal alternative minimum tax. The distribution of our interest income from private activity bonds may subject certain investors to the federal alternative minimum tax. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Pre-Refunded Municipal Securities. The principal of, and interest on, pre-refunded municipal securities are no longer paid from the original revenue source for the securities. Instead, the source of such payments is typically an escrow fund consisting of U.S. government securities. The assets in the escrow fund are derived from the proceeds of refunding bonds issued by the same issuer as the pre-refunded municipal securities. Issuers of municipal securities use this advance refunding technique to obtain more favorable terms with respect to securities that are not yet subject to call or redemption by the issuer. For example, advance refunding enables an issuer to refinance debt at lower market interest rates, restructure debt to improve cash flow or eliminate restrictive covenants in the indenture or other governing instrument for the pre-refunded municipal securities. However, except for a change in the revenue source from which principal and interest payments are made, the pre-refunded municipal securities remain outstanding on their original terms until they mature or are redeemed by the issuer. The interest paid on advance refunding bonds issued after December 31, 2017, however, will not be exempt from federal income tax.

Special Taxing Districts. Special taxing districts are organized to plan and finance infrastructure developments to induce residential, commercial and industrial growth and redevelopment. The bond financing methods such as tax increment finance, tax assessment, special services district and Mello-Roos bonds, are generally payable solely from taxes or other revenues attributable to the specific projects financed by the bonds without recourse to the credit or taxing power of related or overlapping municipalities. They often are exposed to real estate development-related risks and can have more taxpayer concentration risk than general tax-supported bonds, such as general obligation bonds. Further, the fees, special taxes or tax allocations and other revenues that are established to secure such financings are generally limited as to the rate or amount that may be levied or assessed and are not subject to increase pursuant to rate covenants or municipal or corporate guarantees. The bonds could default if development failed to progress as anticipated or if larger taxpayers failed to pay the assessments, fees and taxes as provided in the financing plans of the districts.

Other Municipal-Related Securities:

• <u>Tender Option Bonds</u>. We may enter into tender option bond transactions, whereby we will transfer municipal debt securities or other municipal securities into a special purpose entity and in return we retain a residual interest in the special purpose entity.

- <u>Variable Rate Demand Obligations ("VRDOs"</u>). VRDOs are floating-rate securities that combine an interest in a long-term municipal bond with a right to demand payment before maturity from a bank or other financial institution.
- <u>Transactions in Financial Futures Contracts</u>. Our investments may include financial futures contracts based on a long-term municipal bond index developed by the Chicago Board of Trade and The Bond Buyer (the "Municipal Bond Index"). The Municipal Bond Index is comprised of 40 tax-exempt municipal revenue and general obligation bonds. Each bond included in the Municipal Bond Index must be rated A or higher by at least one NRSRO and must have a remaining maturity of 19 years or more.
- <u>Municipal Interest Rate Swap Transactions</u>. In order to hedge the value of our investments against interest rate fluctuations or to enhance our returns, we may enter into interest rate swap transactions such as Municipal Market Data AAA Cash Curve swaps or Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index swaps.
- <u>Insured Municipal Bonds</u>. Our investments may be covered by insurance that guarantees that interest payments on the bond will be made on time and the principal will be repaid when the bond matures. Either we purchase the insurance or the issuer of the bond purchases the insurance.
- <u>Participation Notes</u>. We may buy participation notes from a bank or broker-dealer that entitle us to a return measured by the change in value of an identified underlying security or basket of securities. Investment in a participation note is not the same as investment in the constituent shares of an entity since a participation note represents only an obligation of the issuer to provide us the economic performance equivalent to holding shares of an underlying security (i.e., shares of the underlying security are not in any way owned by us). However each participation note is intended to synthetically replicate the economic benefit of holding shares in the underlying security or basket of securities.
- <u>Pay-in-Kind Notes</u>. Our investments may include notes that provide for payments-in-kind, which have an effect of deferring current cash payments.

High Yield and Unrated Securities. The corporate debt securities and directly originated loans in which we invest generally will be high yield debt securities, which are commonly referred to as "junk" bonds and are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. These securities will be rated below investment grade at the time of investment by at least one NRSRO or deemed to be of comparable quality by our Adviser or Subadvisers. The directly originated municipal securities in which we invest generally will be unrated. In addition, certain of the corporate debt securities in which we invest may be unrated. Because of the size and perceived demand for the issue, among other factors, certain issuers may decide not to pay the cost of getting a rating for their debt securities. The creditworthiness of the issuer, as well as any financial institution or other party responsible for payments on the security, will be analyzed by our Adviser to determine whether to purchase, hold or sell unrated debt securities.

Variable- and Floating-Rate Securities. Variable- and floating-rate securities provide for a periodic adjustment in the interest rate paid on the obligations. The terms of such obligations must provide that interest rates are adjusted periodically based upon an interest rate adjustment index as provided in the respective obligations. The adjustment intervals may be regular and range from daily up to annually, or may be event based, such as based on a change in the prime rate. We may invest in floating-rate debt instruments ("floaters") and engage in credit spread trades. The interest rate on a floater is a variable rate that is tied to another interest rate, such as a money-market index or Treasury bill rate. The interest rate on a floater resets periodically, typically every three to six months. A credit spread trade is an investment position relating to a difference in the prices or interest rates of two securities or currencies, where the market value of the investment position is determined by movements in the difference between the prices or interest rates, as the case may be, of the respective securities or currencies. We also may invest in inverse floating-rate debt instruments ("inverse floaters"). The interest rate on an inverse floater resets in the opposite direction from the market rate of interest to which the inverse floater is indexed.

When-Issued and Delayed-Delivery Securities. We may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayeddelivery basis. The purchase price and the interest rate payable, if any, on the securities are fixed on the purchase commitment date or at the time the settlement date is fixed. The prices of these securities are subject to market fluctuations. For debt securities, no interest accrues to us until a settlement takes place. At the time we make a commitment to purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed-delivery basis, we will record the transaction and reflect the market prices of the securities when determining our net asset value. At the time of settlement, a when-issued or delayed-delivery security may be valued below the amount of its purchase price.

In connection with these transactions, we will earmark or maintain a segregated account with our custodian containing liquid assets in an amount which is at least equal to the commitments. On the delivery dates of the transactions, we will meet our obligations from maturities or sales of the securities earmarked or held in the segregated account and/or from cash flow. When-issued and delayed-delivery transactions may allow us to hedge against changes in interest rates.

Zero-Coupon Securities. Zero-coupon securities make no periodic interest payments but are sold at a discount from their face value. The purchaser recognizes a rate of return determined by the gradual appreciation of the security, which is redeemed at face value on a specified maturity date. The discount varies depending on the time remaining until maturity, as well as on market interest rates, the liquidity of the security and the issuer's actual or perceived creditworthiness. Because zero-coupon securities bear no interest, their prices typically fluctuate more than the prices of other types of debt securities.

U.S. Government Obligations. We may invest in U.S. government obligations. U.S. government obligations include securities issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities. Treasury bills, the most frequently issued marketable government securities, have a maturity of up to one year and are issued on a discount basis. U.S. government obligations include securities issued or guaranteed by government-sponsored enterprises.

Payment of principal and interest on U.S. government obligations may be backed by the full faith and credit of the United States or may be backed solely by the issuing or guaranteeing agency or instrumentality itself. In the latter case, the investor must look principally to the agency or instrumentality issuing or guaranteeing the obligation for ultimate repayment, which agency or instrumentality may be privately owned.

Agency Obligations. We may invest in agency obligations, such as obligations of the Export-Import Bank of the United States, Tennessee Valley Authority, Resolution Funding Corporation, Farmers Home Administration, Federal Home Loan Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Federal Farm Credit Banks, Federal Land Banks, Federal Housing Administration, Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"), commonly known as "Ginnie Mae," Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), commonly known as "Fannie Mae," Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"), commonly known as "Freddie Mac," and the Student Loan Marketing Association ("SLMA"), commonly known as "Sallie Mae." Some of these obligations, such as those of the Export-Import Bank of United States, are supported only by the right of the issuer to borrow from the Treasury; others, such as those of the FNMA and FHLMC, are supported only by the discretionary authority of the U.S. government to purchase the agency's obligations; still others, such as those of the SLMA, are supported only by the credit of the instrumentality.

Restricted Securities, Including Securities of Private Companies

Restricted securities, including Rule 144A securities and securities of private companies, are subject to statutory and/or contractual restrictions on resale. However, such securities may be sold in private transactions with a limited number of purchasers or in public offerings registered under the Securities Act. Restricted securities include (1) registered securities of public companies subject to a lock-up period, (2) unregistered securities of public companies that become freely tradable with the passage of time, and (4) unregistered securities of private companies. A

registered security subject to such a lock-up period will no longer be considered a restricted security upon expiration of the lock-up period, an unregistered security of a public company with registration rights will no longer be considered a restricted security when such securities become registered, and an unregistered security of a public company that becomes freely tradable with the passage of time will no longer be considered a restricted security upon the elapse of the requisite time period.

Non-U.S. Securities

We may invest up to 30% of our total assets in securities issued by non-U.S. issuers (including Canadian issuers). These securities may be issued by companies organized and/or having securities traded on an exchange outside the U.S. or may be securities of U.S. companies that are denominated in the currency of a different country. Under normal conditions, we may invest up to 10% of our total assets (including assets obtained through leverage) in securities of emerging market issuers.

Covered Call Option Overlay Strategy

We will seek to provide current income from gains earned through our covered call option overlay strategy. We currently intend to write (sell) covered calls on a portion of our listed equity securities portfolio and to write such calls only on securities we hold in our investment portfolio. The notional amount of such covered calls is expected to represent initially approximately 10% to 30% of our listed equity investments, although this percentage may vary over time depending on the cash flow requirements of our investment portfolio and on our Adviser's and Subadvisers' assessment of market conditions. We currently intend to write out-of-the-money covered calls with strike prices above the market prices of the underlying securities.

A call option on a security is a contract that gives the holder of such option the right to buy the security underlying the option from the writer of such option at a specified price (the exercise price) at any time during the term of the option. At the time the call option is written, the writer of the call option receives a premium from the buyer.

If we write a covered call on a security or basket of securities, we have the obligation upon exercise of such option to deliver the underlying security or securities upon payment of the exercise price. As the writer of such covered calls, in effect, during the term of the covered call, in exchange for the premium received by us, we sell the potential appreciation above the exercise price in the market value of securities underlying the covered calls. As a result, we forgo part of the potential appreciation for part of our listed equity investments in exchange for the call premium received but retain the risk of potential decline in the price of those securities in excess of the premium per share received on the covered call.

If we write a covered call, we may terminate our obligation by effecting a closing purchase transaction. This is accomplished by purchasing a call option with the same terms as the covered call previously written. However, once we have been assigned an exercise notice, we will be unable to effect a closing purchase transaction. There can be no assurance that a closing purchase transaction can be effected when we so desire.

Other principal factors affecting the market value of an option include supply and demand, interest rates, the current market price and price volatility of the underlying security and the time remaining until the expiration date of the option. Gains and losses on investments in options depend, in part, on the ability of our Adviser to predict correctly the effect of these factors.

When we write a covered call, an amount equal to the premium received by us will be recorded as a liability and will be subsequently adjusted to the current fair value of the covered call written. Premiums received from writing covered calls that expire unexercised are treated by us as realized gains from investments on the expiration date. If we repurchase a written covered call prior to its exercise, the difference between the premium received and the amount paid to repurchase the covered call is treated as a realized gain or realized loss. If a covered call is exercised, the premium is added to the proceeds from the sale of the underlying security in determining whether we have realized a gain or loss. Although our Adviser will attempt to take appropriate measures to minimize the risks relating to writing covered calls, there can be no assurance that we will succeed in any covered call option overlay strategy we undertake.

Subsidiaries

If our Adviser determines it to be appropriate or necessary, we may form one or more wholly owned Subsidiaries in one or more jurisdictions, each of which would be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We may invest either directly or indirectly through the Subsidiaries. We will be the sole shareholder of any Subsidiary, and it is currently expected that shares of any Subsidiary will not be sold or offered to other investors.

We may invest an aggregate of up to 25% of our total assets in Subsidiaries. We typically expect to invest indirectly through the Subsidiaries if our Adviser believes it is desirable to do so to comply with the requirements for qualification as a RIC under the Code. We initially anticipate investing in certain private clean energy-related issuers indirectly through the Subsidiaries.

The Subsidiaries will not be registered under the 1940 Act and will not be subject to all of the investor protections of the 1940 Act. In addition, changes in the laws of the United States and/or any jurisdiction in which a Subsidiary is formed could result in our inability or the inability of the Subsidiaries to operate as described in this prospectus and our statement of additional information and could adversely affect the Fund. Our Board of Directors will have oversight responsibility for the investment activities of the Fund, including the Fund's investments in any Subsidiary, and our role as the sole shareholder of any Subsidiary.

The assets of any Subsidiaries and the assets of the Fund, taken as a whole, will be subject to the same investment restrictions and limitations, and the Subsidiary will be subject to the same compliance policies and procedures, as the Fund. As a result, investments held through a Subsidiary will be taken into account in determining compliance with the investment policies and restrictions that apply to the management of the Fund, and, in particular, to the requirements relating to portfolio leverage, affiliated transactions and the timing and method of the valuation of any Subsidiary's portfolio investments.

Temporary Investments and Defensive Investments

Pending investment of the proceeds of this offering (which we expect may take up to approximately three to six months following the closing of this offering), we may invest offering proceeds in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities. We also may invest in these instruments on a temporary basis to meet working capital needs, including, but not limited to, for collateral in connection with certain investment techniques, to hold a reserve pending payment of distributions and to facilitate the payment of expenses and settlement of trades.

Under adverse market or economic conditions, we may invest up to 100% of our total assets in these securities. The yield on these securities may be lower than the returns on equity securities or yields on lower rated debt securities. In addition, as the Termination Date approaches, we may invest a portion of our assets, which may be significant, in these securities. To the extent we invest in these securities on a temporary basis or for defensive purposes, we may not achieve our investment objective.

Portfolio Turnover

Our annual portfolio turnover rate may vary greatly from year to year. We may engage in frequent and active trading of portfolio securities, but do not intend to do so under normal conditions. Our portfolio turnover is expected to be higher during the initial 12 months following the closing of this offering as we transition a portion of our publicly traded securities portfolio to Direct Investments.

Although we cannot accurately predict our portfolio turnover rate, following the completion of our Direct Investments approximately 12 months following the closing of this offering, we expect to maintain relatively low turnover of our core investment portfolio, not including purchases and sales of call options in connection with our covered call option overlay strategy. During our initial investment period, however, our annual turnover rate may exceed 100%. A high turnover rate involves greater transaction costs to us and may result in greater realization of taxable capital gains. During our initial investment period as we transition our portfolio to Direct Investments, such gains are expected to be short-term capital gains.

Allocation of Investment Opportunities

Conflicts of interest may arise from the fact that our Adviser, our Subadvisers and their affiliates carry on substantial investment activities for other accounts managed by our Adviser or Subadvisers, in which we have no interest, some of which may have investment strategies similar to ours ("Other Tortoise Accounts"). The portfolio managers of our Adviser and Subadvisers must allocate time and investment ideas across multiple accounts. Trades may be executed for some accounts that may adversely impact the market value of securities held by other accounts. Our Adviser, our Subadvisers or their affiliates may have financial incentives to favor certain of these accounts over us. For example, our Adviser or our Subadvisers may have an incentive to allocate potentially more favorable investment opportunities to Other Tortoise Accounts that pay them an incentive or performance fee or in funds in which they or a related person have a beneficial interest. Performance and incentive fees also create the incentive to allocate potentially riskier, but potentially better performing, investments to such funds and other clients in an effort to increase the incentive fee. Our Adviser or our Subadvisers also may have an incentive to make investments in one fund, having the effect of increasing the market price of a security in the same issuer held by another fund or client, which in turn, may result in an incentive fee being paid to our Adviser or Subadvisers by that other fund or client. Certain of our Adviser's and our Subadvisers' client accounts may invest in the equity securities of a particular company, while other client accounts may invest in the debt securities of the same company. Other Tortoise Accounts may compete with us for specific trades. Our Adviser, our Subadvisers or their affiliates may give advice and recommend securities to, or buy or sell securities for, Other Tortoise Accounts, which advice or securities recommended may differ from advice given to, or securities recommended or bought or sold for us, even though their investment objectives may be the same as, or similar to, our investment objective. Our Adviser and our Subadvisers have adopted written allocation policies and procedures designed to address potential conflicts of interest. For instance, when two or more clients advised by our Adviser, our Subadvisers or their affiliates seek to purchase or sell the same publicly traded securities, the securities actually purchased or sold will be allocated among the clients on a good faith equitable basis by our Adviser or our Subadvisers in its discretion and in accordance with the clients' various investment objectives and the procedures of our Adviser and our Subadvisers. In some cases, this system may adversely affect the price or size of the position we may obtain or sell. In other cases, our ability to participate in volume transactions with Other Tortoise Accounts may result in better execution. When possible, our Adviser and our Subadvisers combine all of the trade orders into one or more block orders, and each account participates at the average unit or share price obtained in a block order. When block orders are only partially filled, our Adviser and our Subadvisers consider a number of factors in determining how allocations are made, with the overall goal to allocate in a manner so that accounts are not preferred or disadvantaged over time. Our Adviser also has adopted written allocation policies for transactions involving private placement securities, which are designed to result in a fair and equitable participation in offerings or sales for participating clients over time.

Our Adviser and Subadvisers will evaluate a variety of factors in determining whether a particular investment opportunity or strategy is appropriate and feasible for the relevant account at a particular time, including, but not limited to, the following: (1) the nature of the investment opportunity taken in the context of the other investments at the time; (2) the liquidity of the investment relative to the needs of the particular entity or account; (3) the availability of the opportunity (i.e., size of obtainable position); (4) the transaction costs involved; and (5) the investment or regulatory limitations applicable to the particular entity or account. Because these considerations may differ when applied to us and Other Tortoise Accounts in the context of any particular investment opportunity, our investment activities, on the one hand, and Other Tortoise Accounts, on the other

hand, may differ considerably from time to time. In addition, our fees and expenses will differ from those of Other Tortoise Accounts. Accordingly, shareholders should be aware that our future performance and the future performance of Other Tortoise Accounts may vary.

From time to time, our Adviser or our Subadvisers may seed proprietary accounts for the purpose of evaluating a new investment strategy that eventually may be available to clients through one or more product structures. Such accounts also may serve the purpose of establishing a performance record for the strategy. The management by our Adviser and our Subadvisers of accounts with proprietary interests and nonproprietary client accounts may create an incentive to favor the proprietary accounts in the allocation of investment opportunities, and the timing and aggregation of investments. Our Adviser's and Subadvisers' proprietary seed accounts may include long-short strategies, and certain client strategies may permit short sales. A conflict of interest arises if a security is sold short at the same time as a long position, and continuous short selling in a security may adversely affect the stock price of the same security held long in client accounts. Our Adviser and Subadvisers have adopted various policies to mitigate these conflicts.

Situations may occur when we could be disadvantaged because of the investment activities conducted by our Adviser, our Subadvisers and their affiliates for Other Tortoise Accounts. Such situations may be based on, among other things, the following: (1) legal or internal restrictions on the combined size of positions that may be taken for us or the other accounts, thereby limiting the size of our position; (2) the difficulty of liquidating an investment for us or the other accounts where the market cannot absorb the sale of the combined position; or (3) regulatory restrictions on transaction with affiliates.

The 1940 Act may impose limits on our ability to co-invest with our affiliated companies in certain private placements of securities or may be subject to the term of exemptive relief obtained from the SEC. To the extent that such restrictions limit the number of clients that can participate in an investment opportunity, our Adviser and our Subadvisers have adopted policies they believe are designed to ensure fair allocation of such opportunities over time, taking into account available cash and investment objectives and policies of clients.

To the extent that our Adviser sources and structures private investments in MLPs and other publicly traded issuers, certain employees of our Adviser may become aware of actions planned by such issuers, such as acquisitions, which may not be announced to the public. It is possible that we could be precluded from investing in or selling securities of an issuer about which our Adviser has material, nonpublic information, however, it is our Adviser's intention to ensure that any material, non-public information available to certain employees of our Adviser is not shared with the employees responsible for the purchase and sale of publicly traded securities or to confirm prior to receipt of any material non-public information that the information will shortly be made public. Our investment opportunities also may be limited by affiliations of our Adviser, our Subadvisers or their affiliates with essential asset companies.

Our Adviser, our Subadvisers and their respective principals, officers, employees and affiliates may buy and sell securities or other investments for their own accounts and may have actual or potential conflicts of interest with respect to investments made on our behalf. As a result of differing trading and investment strategies or constraints, positions may be taken by principals, officers, employees and affiliates of our Adviser and our Subadvisers that are the same as, different from or made at a different time from positions taken for us. Further, our Adviser and our Subadvisers may at some time in the future, manage additional investment funds with the same investment objective as ours.

RISK FACTORS

We are a newly organized, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company and have no operating history or history of public trading of our common shares. We are designed as a long-term investment vehicle and not as a trading tool. An investment in our securities should not constitute a complete investment program for any investor and involves a high degree of risk. Due to the uncertainty in all investments, there can be no assurance that we will achieve our investment objective. The value of an investment in our common shares could decline substantially and cause you to lose some or all of your investment. Before investing in our common shares you should consider carefully the following risks.

Investment Risks

General

Management Risk. Our ability to achieve our investment objective is directly related to our Adviser's and our Subadvisers' investment strategies for the Fund. The value of your investment in our common shares may vary with the effectiveness of the research and analysis conducted by our Adviser and our Subadvisers and their ability to identify and take advantage of attractive investment opportunities. If the investment strategies of our Adviser and our Subadvisers do not produce the expected results, the value of your investment could be diminished or even lost entirely, and we could underperform the market or other funds with similar investment objectives.

Asset Allocation Risk. Our investment performance depends, at least in part, on how the Investment Committee of our Adviser allocates and reallocates our assets among the various asset classes and security types in which we may invest. Such allocation decisions could cause our investments to be allocated to asset classes and security types that perform poorly or underperform other asset classes and security types or available investments.

Non-Diversified Risk. We are classified as a "non-diversified" investment company under the 1940 Act. Therefore, we may invest a relatively high percentage of our assets in a smaller number of issuers or may invest a larger proportion of our assets in a single issuer than a diversified fund. As a result, we may be more susceptible than a diversified fund to any single corporate, political, geographic or regulatory occurrence.

Limited Term and Tender Offer Risks. We are scheduled to dissolve as of the Termination Date. Our investment policies are not designed to return to common shareholders their original net asset value or purchase price. Our final distribution to common shareholders on the Termination Date and the amount paid to participating common shareholders upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer will be based upon our net asset value at such time. Depending on a variety of factors, including the performance of our investment portfolio over the period of our operations, the amount distributed to common shareholders in connection with our termination or paid to participating common shareholders upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer may be less, and potentially significantly less, than your original investment. Additionally, given the nature of certain of our investments, the amount actually distributed upon our termination may be less than our net asset value per share on the Termination Date, and the amount actually paid upon completion of an Eligible Tender Offer may be less than our net asset value per share on the expiration date of the Eligible Tender Offer.

Because our assets will be liquidated in connection with our termination or to pay for common shares tendered in an Eligible Tender Offer, we may be required to sell portfolio securities when we otherwise would not, including at times when market conditions are not favorable, which may cause us to lose money. Given the nature of certain of our investments, particularly our Direct Investments, we may be unable to liquidate certain of our investments until well after the Termination Date. In this case, we may make one or more additional distributions after the Termination Date of any cash received from the ultimate liquidation of those investments. This would delay distribution payments, perhaps for an extended period of time, and there can be no assurance

that the total value of the cash distribution made on the Termination Date and such subsequent distributions, if any, will equal our net asset value on the Termination Date, depending on the ultimate results of such post-Termination Date asset liquidations. If, as a result of lack of market liquidity or other adverse market conditions, our Board of Directors determines it is in the best interest of the Fund, we may transfer any portfolio investments that remain unsold on the Termination Date to a liquidating trust and distribute interests in such liquidating trust to common shareholders as part of our final distribution. Interests in the liquidating trust are expected to be nontransferable, except by operation of law. There can be no assurance as to the timing of or the value obtained from the liquidation of any investments transferred to a liquidating trust.

The obligation to terminate on the Termination Date also may impact adversely the implementation of our investment strategies. There can be no assurance that our Adviser and our Subadvisers will be successful in their efforts to minimize any detrimental effects on our investment performance caused by our obligation to liquidate our investment portfolio and distribute all of our liquidated net assets to common shareholders of record on the Termination Date. In particular, our Adviser and our Subadvisers may face difficulties exiting our Direct Investments on or prior to the Termination Date at favorable prices, if at all. In addition, as we approach the Termination Date, we may invest the proceeds of sold, matured or called securities in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities, which may adversely affect our investment performance. In the course of the liquidation, we must continue to satisfy the asset diversification requirements to qualify as a RIC for federal income tax purposes, which may also have a negative effect on our investment performance. If we fail to comply with these requirements, we may be liable for federal income tax in the year of the liquidation. Moreover, rather than reinvesting the proceeds of sold, matured or called securities, we may distribute the proceeds in one or more liquidating distributions prior to the final liquidation, which may cause fixed expenses to increase when expressed as a percentage of our total assets.

If we conduct an Eligible Tender Offer, we anticipate that funds to pay the aggregate purchase price of common shares accepted for purchase pursuant to the tender offer will be first derived from any cash on hand and then from the proceeds from the sale of portfolio investments. In addition, we may be required to dispose of portfolio investments in connection with any reduction in our outstanding leverage necessary in order to maintain our desired leverage ratios following an Eligible Tender Offer. The risks related to the disposition of portfolio investments in connection with our termination also would be present in connection with the disposition of portfolio investments in connection with an Eligible Tender Offer. It is likely that during the pendency of an Eligible Tender Offer, and possibly for a time thereafter, we will hold a greater than normal percentage of our total assets in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities, which may adversely affect our investment performance. If our tax basis for the portfolio investments sold is less than the sale proceeds, we will recognize capital gains, which we will be required to distribute to common shareholders. In addition, our purchase of tendered common shares pursuant to an Eligible Tender Offer will have tax consequences for tendering common shareholders and may have tax consequences for non-tendering common shareholders. The purchase of common shares pursuant to an Eligible Tender Offer will have the effect of increasing the proportionate interest in the Fund of non-tendering common shareholders. All shareholders remaining after an Eligible Tender Offer will be subject to proportionately higher expenses due to the reduction in our total assets resulting from payment for the tendered common shares. Such reduction in our total assets also may result in less investment flexibility, reduced diversification and greater volatility for the Fund, and may have an adverse effect on our investment performance.

We are not required to conduct an Eligible Tender Offer. If we conduct an Eligible Tender Offer, there can be no assurance that the number of tendered common shares would not result in our net assets totaling less than the Termination Threshold, in which case the Eligible Tender Offer will be terminated, no common shares will be repurchased pursuant to the Eligible Tender Offer and we will terminate on the Termination Date subject to permitted extensions. Following the completion of an Eligible Tender Offer in which the number of tendered common shares would result in our net assets totaling greater than the Termination Threshold, our Board of Directors may eliminate the Termination Date upon the affirmative vote of a majority of our Board of Directors and without a vote of our shareholders. Thereafter, we will have a perpetual existence. Our Adviser may have a conflict of interest in recommending to our Board of Directors that the Termination Date be eliminated and we have a perpetual existence. We are not required to conduct additional tender offers following an Eligible Tender Offer and conversion to perpetual existence. Therefore, remaining common shareholders may not have another opportunity to participate in a tender offer. Shares of closed-end management investment companies frequently trade at a discount from their net asset value, and as a result remaining common shareholders may only be able to sell their common shares at a discount to net asset value. See "Operational Risks—Market Discount Risk."

Essential Asset-Based Investing Risks. Our focus on essential asset-based investments means that our performance will be closely tied to the performance of issuers or projects in essential asset sectors such as the education, housing, healthcare, social and human services, power, water, energy, infrastructure, basic materials, industrial, transportation and telecommunications sectors and the fiscal and financial health of issuers of municipal securities funding essential asset projects. The concentration of our investments in these sectors may present more risk than if we were broadly diversified over numerous industries and sectors of the economy. A downturn in one or more of these sectors would have a greater impact on us than on a fund that does not focus on essential asset-based investments. The performance of the securities of issuers in multiple essential asset sectors may react similarly to certain market, economic and other factors. This correlation may be higher during periods of market stress, and there may be times when the performance of securities of issuers in multiple essential asset sectors lags the performance of the market as a whole. There can be no assurance that the allocation of our assets among securities of issuers across the range of essential asset sectors will provide our common shareholders with any of the benefits typically associated with sector diversification.

In addition, our portfolio will be subject to sector specific risks of the energy and energy infrastructure sector, sustainable infrastructure sector and social infrastructure sector. Accordingly, we expect that the performance of our investment portfolio will be closely tied to the performance of these sectors. Risks inherent in the businesses of such companies may include:

• *Commodity Price Volatility Risk.* The volatility of energy commodity prices can significantly affect energy companies due to the impact of prices on the volume of commodities developed, produced, gathered and processed. In addition, the performance of clean energy-related investments may be affected by changes in the market price of electricity.

Historically, commodity prices have been cyclical and exhibited significant volatility, which may adversely impact the market prices, operations, cash flows and financial performance of our investments in the energy sector. Commodity prices fluctuate for several reasons, including changes in global and domestic energy market, general economic conditions, consumer demand, price and level of foreign imports, the impact of weather on demand, levels of domestic and worldwide supply, levels of production and imports, domestic and foreign governmental regulation, political instability, acts of war and terrorism, the success and costs of resource development, conservation and environmental protection efforts, competition from other sources, taxation and the availability of local, intrastate and interstate transportation systems.

• Supply and Demand Risk. A decrease in the exploration, production or development of natural gas, natural gas liquids, crude oil or refined petroleum products, or a decrease in the volume of such commodities, may adversely impact the financial performance and profitability of energy companies. Production declines and volume decreases could be caused by various factors, including changes in commodity prices, oversupply, depletion of resources, declines in estimates of proved reserves, catastrophic events affecting production, labor difficulties, political events, production variance from expectations, Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries ("OPEC") actions, environmental proceedings, increased regulations, equipment failures and unexpected maintenance problems or

outages, inability to obtain necessary permits or carry out new construction or acquisitions, unanticipated expenses, import supply disruption, increased competition from alternative energy sources and other events. Reductions in or prolonged periods of low prices for natural gas and crude oil can cause a given reservoir to become uneconomic for continued production earlier than it would if prices were higher.

A sustained decline in or varying demand for such commodities could also adversely affect the financial performance of energy companies. Factors that could lead to a decline in demand include economic recession or other adverse economic conditions, political and economic conditions in other natural resource producing countries including embargoes, hostilities in the Middle East, military campaigns and terrorism, OPEC actions, higher fuel taxes or governmental regulations, increases in fuel economy, consumer shifts to the use of alternative fuel sources, exchange rates and changes in commodity prices or weather.

- *Reserve and Depletion Risk.* Energy companies' estimates of proved reserves and projected future net revenue are generally based on internal reserve reports, engineering data and reports of independent petroleum engineers. Estimated reserves are based on many assumptions that may prove inaccurate and require subjective estimates of underground accumulations and assumptions concerning future prices, production levels and operating and development costs. In addition, a portion of any one upstream company's assets may be dedicated to crude oil or natural gas reserves that naturally deplete over time and a significant slowdown in the identification or availability of reasonably priced and accessible proved reserves for these companies could adversely affect their business.
- *Operating Risk.* Energy and infrastructure companies are subject to many operating risks, including equipment failure causing outages; structural, maintenance, impairment and safety problems; transmission or transportation constraints, inoperability or inefficiencies; dependence on a specified fuel source; changes in electricity and fuel usage; availability of competitively priced alternative energy sources; changes in generation efficiency and market heat rates; lack of sufficient capital to maintain facilities; significant capital expenditures to keep older assets operating efficiently; seasonality; changes in supply and demand for energy; catastrophic and/or weather-related events such as spills, leaks, well blowouts, uncontrollable flows, ruptures, fires, explosions, floods, earthquakes, hurricanes, discharges of toxic gases and similar occurrences; storage, handling, disposal and decommissioning costs; and environmental compliance.

The energy and infrastructure sectors are cyclical and from time to time may experience a shortage of drilling rigs, equipment, supplies or qualified personnel. A company may not be able to successfully and timely complete capital improvements to existing or other capital projects, which could subject the company to additional costs and/or the write-off of its investment in the project or improvement. The marketability of oil and gas production depends in large part on the availability, proximity and capacity of pipeline systems owned by third parties. Oil and gas properties are subject to royalty interests, liens and other burdens, encumbrances, easements or restrictions, all of which could impact the production of a particular energy company. Oil and gas companies operate in a highly competitive and cyclical industry, with intense price competition. A significant portion of their revenues may depend on a relatively small number of customers, including governmental entities and utilities.

Energy companies engaged in interstate pipeline transportation of natural gas, refined petroleum products and other products are subject to federal regulation with respect to the tariff rates these companies may charge for pipeline transportation services. An adverse determination with respect to the tariff rates of an energy company could have a detrimental effect on its business.

Clean energy-related investments are subject to many of the same operating risks that apply to traditional energy companies, as described above. Such companies can also be negatively affected by lower energy output resulting from variable inputs, mechanical breakdowns, faulty technology, competitive electricity markets or changing laws that mandate the use of renewable energy sources by electric utilities. In addition, companies that engage in energy efficiency projects may be unable to

protect their intellectual property or face declines in the demand for their services due to changing governmental policies or budgets, among other things.

Recently imposed tariffs on imports could affect a number of energy sectors, including oil, gas, solar and wind sectors by increasing operating costs.

- *Construction Risk.* To the extent we invest in projects that involve significant construction, including but not limited to clean energy-related investments, such projects are subject to construction risk. Construction delays may adversely affect companies that generate power from clean sources. The ability of these projects to generate revenues will often depend upon their successful completion of the construction and operation of generating assets. Capital equipment for renewable energy projects needs to be manufactured, shipped to project sites, installed and tested on a timely basis. In addition, on-site roads, substations, interconnection facilities and other infrastructure all need to be either built or purchased and installed by the operating companies of these projects. Construction phases may not be completed or may be substantially delayed, as a result of inclement weather, labor disruptions, technical complications or other reasons, and material cost over-runs may be incurred, which may result in such projects being unable to earn positive income, which could negatively impact the market values of our Direct Investments in clean energy-related issuers.
- *Regulatory Risk.* Energy and infrastructure companies, including sustainable and social infrastructure companies, are subject to regulation by governmental authorities in various jurisdictions and may be adversely affected by the imposition of special tariffs and changes in tax laws, regulatory policies and accounting standards. Regulation exists in multiple aspects of their operations, including reports and permits concerning exploration, drilling and production; how facilities are constructed, maintained and operated; how wells are spaced; the unitization and pooling of properties; environmental and safety controls, including emissions release, the reclamation and abandonment of wells and facility sites, remediation, protection of endangered species and the discharge and disposition of waste materials; offshore oil and gas operations; and the prices they may charge for the oil and gas produced or transported under federal and state leases and other products and services. Stricter laws, regulations or enforcement policies could be enacted in the future which may increase compliance costs and may adversely affect the financial performance of such companies. Additionally, future legislation may make significant changes to U.S. federal income tax laws, including the elimination of certain U.S. federal income tax benefits currently available to oil and gas exploration and production companies.

The use of methods such as hydraulic fracturing may be subject to new or different regulation in the future. Any new state or federal regulations that may be imposed on hydraulic fracturing could result in additional permitting and disclosure requirements (including of substances used in the fracturing process) and in additional operating restrictions. The imposition of various conditions and restrictions on drilling and completion operations could lead to operational delays and increased costs and, moreover, could delay or effectively prevent the development of oil and gas from formations that would not be economically viable without the use of hydraulic fracturing.

The market for electricity generation projects is influenced by U.S. federal, state and local government regulations and policies concerning the electric utility industry, as well as policies promulgated by electric utilities. Customer purchases of, or further investment in the research and development of, clean energy technologies could be deterred by these regulations and policies, which could result in a significant reduction in the potential demand for clean energy project development and investments. For example, without certain major incentive programs and or the regulatory mandated exception for clean energy systems, utility customers are often charged interconnection or standby fees for putting distributed power generation on the electric utility network. These fees could increase the cost to customers of using clean energy and make it less desirable.

• *Environmental Risk.* Energy and infrastructure company activities, including sustainable and social infrastructure company activities, are subject to stringent environmental laws and regulation by many federal, state and local authorities, international treaties and foreign governmental authorities. Failure

to comply with such laws and regulations or to obtain any necessary environmental permits pursuant to such laws and regulations could result in fines or other sanctions. Congress and other domestic and foreign governmental authorities have either considered or implemented various laws and regulations to restrict or tax certain emissions, particularly those involving air and water emissions. Existing environmental regulations could be revised or reinterpreted, new laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable, and future changes in environmental laws and regulations could occur, which could impose significant additional costs. Energy companies have made and will likely continue to make significant capital and other expenditures to comply with these and other environmental laws and regulations. There can be no assurance that such companies would be able to recover all or any increased environmental costs from their customers. In addition, energy companies may be responsible for environmentally-related liabilities, including any on-site liabilities associated with the environmental condition of facilities that it has acquired, leased or developed, or liabilities from associated activities, regardless of when the liabilities arose and whether they are known or unknown.

- *Climate Change Regulation Risk.* Climate change regulation could result in increased operations and capital costs for the companies in which we invest. Voluntary initiatives and mandatory controls have been adopted or are being discussed both in the United States and worldwide to reduce emissions of "greenhouse gases" such as carbon dioxide, a by-product of burning fossil fuels, which some scientists and policymakers believe contribute to global climate change. These measures and future measures could result in increased costs to certain companies in which we invest and could impact the demand and prices for fossil fuels.
- *Government Incentives Risk.* The reduction or elimination of government economic incentives could impede growth of certain essential asset issuers including in particular clean energy companies. Because a significant portion of the revenues to the clean energy-related issuers in which we expect to invest are expected to involve the market for the international and domestic electricity grids, the reduction or elimination of government and economic incentives may adversely affect the growth of this market or result in increased price competition.
- *Renewable Energy Risk.* Renewable energy companies are dependent upon factors such as available solar resource, wind conditions, weather conditions and power generating equipment performance that may significantly impact the performance of such companies. Solar, wind and weather conditions generally have natural variations from season to season and from year to year and may also change permanently because of climate change or other factors. Solar and wind energy is highly dependent on weather conditions and, in particular, on available solar and wind conditions. Moreover, power generating equipment used generally by renewable energy companies is accompanied by the attendant costs of maintaining such equipment while in use and subject to risks of obsolescence associated with emerging and disruptive new technologies.
- *Gas Risk.* Gas transmission companies and gas distribution companies are undergoing significant changes. Many companies have diversified into oil and gas exploration and development, making returns more sensitive to energy prices. Gas utility companies have been adversely affected by disruptions in the oil industry and have also been affected by increased concentration and competition. In certain jurisdictions, acquisitions and dispositions in this industry might require regulatory approvals and be subject to significant regulatory requirements. Obtaining any such approvals and complying with any such regulatory requirements may be costly and/or time-consuming to obtain. For example, in the United States, interstate transmission companies are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"), so certain of the Fund's acquisitions and dispositions may be subject to FERC approval under the U.S. Federal Power Act, as amended.
- *Water Risk.* Water supply utilities are companies that collect, purify, distribute and sell water. In the United States and around the world the industry is highly fragmented because most of the supplies are owned by local authorities. Companies in this industry are generally mature and are experiencing little or no per capita volume growth. Water supply utilities are subject to the risk of existing or future

environmental contamination, including, among others, soil and groundwater contamination as well as the delivery of contaminated water, as a result of the spillage of hazardous materials or other pollutants. Water supply utilities are also subject to the risk of increased costs, which may result from a number of factors, including fluctuations in water availability or costs associated with desalination.

- Public Infrastructure Risks. We may invest in public infrastructure projects that constitute significant • strategic value to public or governmental bodies. Such assets may have a national or regional profile and may have monopolistic or oligopolistic characteristics. The very nature of these assets could create additional risks not common in other industry sectors. Given the national or regional profile and/or irreplaceable nature of certain strategic assets, such assets may constitute a higher risk target for terrorist acts or political actions, such as expropriation, which may negatively affect the operations, revenue, profitability or contractual relationships of investments. For example, in response to public pressure and/or lobbying efforts by specific interest groups, government entities may put pressure on these investments to reduce toll rates, limit or abandon planned rate increases and/or exempt certain classes of users from tolls. Given the essential nature of the services provided by certain public infrastructure, there is also a higher probability that if an owner of such assets fails to make such services available, users of such services may incur significant damage and may be unable to replace the supply or mitigate any such damage, thereby heightening the risks of third-party claims. These assets are also impacted by the interests of local communities and stakeholders, which may affect the operation of such assets. Certain of these communities may have or develop interests or objectives which are different from, or even in conflict with, the owners of such assets. See also "Municipal-Related Securities Risks" below.
- *Education Risks.* Education facilities may be impacted by risks beyond their operating and financial performance, including being adversely impacted by changes in the political environment, public sentiment or regulation. This could cause a reduction or loss in funding from local, state and federal governments. Additionally, certain education facilities (such as charter schools) are also operated pursuant to charters granted by various state or other regulatory authorities and are dependent upon compliance with the terms of such charters in order to obtain funding from local, state and federal governments and we can be adversely affected by a facility's failure to comply with its charter, an adverse audit or review, or non-renewal or revocation of a charter.

Equity Securities

Equity Securities Risk, Including Common Stock Risk. Market prices of common stocks and other equity securities may be affected by macroeconomic and other factors affecting the stock market in general, including changes in financial or political conditions that may affect particular industries or the economy in general and changes in investor sentiment. Prices of equity securities of individual issuers also can be affected by fundamentals unique to the issuer, including changes, or perceived changes, in the issuer's business, financial condition or prospects, and may fall to zero in the event of the issuer's bankruptcy. Equity security prices have historically experienced periods of significant volatility, particularly during recessions or other periods of financial stress, and can be expected to experience significant volatility in the future. The equity securities we hold may undergo sudden, unpredictable drops in price or long periods of price decline. There can be no assurance that the level of dividends paid with respect to the dividend paying equity securities in which we invest will be maintained. In addition, by writing covered call options on a portion of the listed equity securities in our investment portfolio, the capital appreciation potential of such securities will be limited.

The performance of certain of the equity securities in which we invest, including certain common stocks and the preferred equities and MLPs in which we invest, may be sensitive to changes in market interest rates and, accordingly, may be more highly correlated than the broader equity markets with the performance of debt securities, including the debt securities in which we invest. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the allocation of our assets among equity and debt securities will provide our common shareholders with any of the benefits typically associated with asset class diversification. *Small- and Mid-Capitalization Company Risk.* Investing in equity securities of small-capitalization and mid-capitalization companies may involve greater risks than investing in equity securities of larger, more established companies. Small-capitalization and mid-capitalization companies generally have limited product lines, markets and financial resources. Their equity securities may trade less frequently and in more limited volumes than the equity securities of larger, more established companies. Also, small-capitalization and mid-capitalization companies are typically subject to greater changes in earnings and business prospects than larger companies. As a result, the market prices of their equity securities may experience greater volatility and may decline more than those of large-capitalization companies in market downturns.

Preferred Equity Risk. The right of a holder of an issuer's preferred equity to distributions, dividends and liquidation proceeds is junior to the rights of the issuer's creditors, including holders of debt securities. Market prices of preferred equities may be subject to factors that affect debt and equity securities, including changes in market interest rates and changes, or perceived changes, in the issuer's creditworthiness. Holders of preferred equity may suffer a loss of value if distribution or dividend rates are reduced or distributions or dividends are not paid. Under normal conditions, holders of preferred equity usually do not have voting rights with respect to the issuer. The ability of holders of preferred equity to participate in the issuer's growth may be limited.

MLP Risks. An investment in MLPs involves some risks that differ from the risks involved in an investment in the common stock of a corporation. Holders of MLP common units have limited control and voting rights on matters affecting the MLP. Holders of MLP common units are exposed to a possibility of liability for all of the obligations of that MLP in the event that a court determines that the rights of the holders of MLP common units to vote to remove or replace the general partner of the MLP, to approve amendments to the MLP's organizational documents or to take other action under the MLP's organizational documents would constitute "control" of the business of that MLP, or a court or governmental agency determines that the MLP is conducting business in a state without complying with the limited partnership or LLC statute of that state.

Holders of MLP common units are also exposed to the risk that they will be required to repay amounts to the MLP that are wrongfully distributed to them. In addition, the market value of our investment in an MLP will depend largely on the MLP's treatment as a qualified publicly traded partnership for federal income tax purposes. If an MLP does not meet current legal requirements to maintain status as a publicly traded partnership that is taxed as a partnership for federal income tax purposes or if it is unable to do so because of changes in tax laws or regulations, it would be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes. In that case, the MLP would be obligated to pay income tax at the entity level, and distributions received by us generally would be taxed as dividend income. As a result, there could be a material reduction in our cash flow and there could be a material decrease in the market price of our common shares.

Certain MLPs in which we may invest depend upon their parent or sponsor entities for the majority of their revenues. If the parent or sponsor entity of such an MLP fails to make such payments or satisfy its obligations, the revenues and cash flows of the MLP and the ability of the MLP to make distributions to common unit holders, such as us, would be adversely affected.

Debt Securities

Debt Securities Risks. Investments in debt securities are generally subject to credit risk, extension risk, interest rate risk, prepayment risk and spread risk:

• *Credit Risk.* Credit risk is the risk that the market value of debt securities may decline if the issuer or the borrower, or a guarantor, defaults or otherwise becomes unable or unwilling, or is perceived to be unable or unwilling, to honor its financial obligations, such as making timely payments of principal or interest. We could lose money if the issuer of or borrower under, or a guarantor of, a debt security defaults or is unable or unwilling to make timely principal or interest payments. The lower quality or unrated securities in which we invest may present increased credit risk as compared to higher rated securities, including the possibility of default or bankruptcy.

- *Extension Risk.* During periods of rising market interest rates, it becomes more expensive for a borrower to refinance its existing debt obligations. During such periods, repayments of debt securities may occur more slowly than anticipated by the market because the issuer or borrower will prefer to pay interest at a lower rate. This may cause the market prices of such debt securities to decline.
- Interest Rate Risk. The market prices of debt securities typically decline in the event of increases in market interest rates, which are currently near historically low levels. Changes in government policy may cause market interest rates to rise, which may result in periods of market volatility or harm our performance and net asset value. Declines in market interest rates also may increase prepayments of debt securities, which, in turn, would increase prepayment risk. Debt securities with longer maturities tend to be more sensitive to changes in market interest rates, typically making their prices more volatile than securities with shorter maturities. The Federal Reserve recently raised the federal funds rate several times, and has indicated that it may continue to do so. Therefore, there is a risk that interest rates will rise, which will likely drive down bond prices.
- Prepayment, Call or Reinvestment Risk. Many issuers and borrowers have a right to prepay their debt securities prior to the stated maturity date. If market interest rates fall, an issuer or borrower may exercise this right in order to refinance its debt obligations at a lower rate. In that event, a holder of the issuer's or borrower's debt securities will not benefit from the rise in market price that normally accompanies a decline in market interest rates. Reinvestment risk is the risk that, upon the sale or repayment (at maturity or otherwise) of debt securities we hold, we will be required to reinvest the proceeds in debt securities paying lower interest rates than the debt securities that were sold or repaid. In this event, our distribution rate may decline. A decline in the income we receive from our investments is likely to have a negative effect on our market price, net asset value and/or overall return.
- *Spread Risk.* Wider credit spreads and decreasing market values typically represent a deterioration of a debt security's credit soundness and a perceived greater likelihood or risk of default by the issuer.

High Yield Securities Risks. High yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk" bonds, are debt securities rated below investment grade (i.e., BB+/Ba1 or lower) or unrated securities that our Adviser or Subadvisers deem to be of comparable quality. These securities may be subject to greater levels of credit and liquidity risk than debt securities rated investment grade. In addition, high yield debt securities generally have greater price fluctuations, are less liquid and are more likely to experience a default than higher rated debt securities. High yield debt securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments. High yield debt securities are especially subject to adverse changes in general economic conditions and in the industries in which the issuers are engaged, to changes in the financial condition of the issuers and to price fluctuations in response to changes in interest rates. During recessions, other periods of financial stress or periods of rising interest rates, highly leveraged issuers may experience financial stress that could adversely affect their ability to make payments of interest and principal and increase the possibility of default. The market prices of high yield debt securities have historically been subject to significant, rapid declines, reflecting an expectation that many issuers of such securities might experience financial difficulties. In these events, the yields on high yield debt securities rise dramatically, reflecting the risk that holders of such securities could lose a substantial portion of the value of their investment as a result of the issuers' financial restructuring or default. It can be expected that similar market price declines will occur in the future. The market for high yield debt securities generally is thinner and less active than that for higher rated securities, which may limit our ability to sell such securities at fair value in response to changes in the economy or financial markets. Adverse publicity and investor perceptions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, also may decrease the market prices and liquidity of high yield debt securities, especially in a thinly traded market. Changes by NRSROs in their rating of a debt security may affect the market price of such security. Analysis of the creditworthiness of issuers of high yield debt securities may be more complex than for issuers of higher-quality debt securities, and our ability to achieve our investment objective may, to the extent we invest in high yield debt securities, be more dependent upon our Adviser's credit analysis than would be the case if we were investing in higher-quality debt securities.

The corporate debt securities in which we invest generally will be high yield debt securities. Because the performance of high yield corporate debt securities, especially during periods of market stress, may be affected by changes, or perceived changes, in the issuer's business, financial condition or prospects, the performance of our investments in high yield corporate debt securities may be correlated with the performance of equity securities, including the equity securities in which we invest. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the allocation of our assets among equity and debt securities will provide our common shareholders with any of the benefits typically associated with asset class diversification.

Defaulted Securities Risks. Defaulted securities are speculative and involve substantial risks in addition to the risks of investing in high yield securities or unrated securities of comparable quality that have not defaulted. We generally will not receive interest payments on the defaulted securities and there is a substantial risk that principal will not be repaid. We may incur additional expenses to the extent we are required to seek recovery upon a default in the payment of principal of or interest on our portfolio holdings. In any reorganization or liquidation proceeding relating to a defaulted security, we may lose the value of our entire investment or may be required to accept cash or securities with a value less than our original investment. Defaulted securities and any securities received in exchange for defaulted securities may be subject to restrictions on resale.

Bank Loan and Loan Participation Risks. Investing in bank loans involves risks that are additional to and different from those relating to investing in other types of debt securities. Any specific collateral used to secure a bank loan may decline in value or become illiquid, which would adversely affect the loan's value. In the event of a borrower's bankruptcy or other default, we could experience delays or limitations with respect to our ability to realize the benefits of the collateral securing a bank loan, and there can be no assurance regarding the value that may be obtained upon the sale of collateral. No active trading market may exist for certain bank loans or loan participations, which may impair our ability to realize full value in the event we need to sell a loan or loan participation and make it difficult for us to value the bank loans and loan participations, the market may be subject to irregular trading activity and wide bid/ask spreads, which may result in limited liquidity and pricing transparency. In addition, bank loans and loan participations may be subject to extended settlement periods that may be longer than seven days.

Subordinated loans are lower in priority of payment than senior loans. Accordingly, they are typically lower rated and subject to greater risk that the cash flow of the borrower and the collateral securing the loan, if any, may be insufficient to meet scheduled payments after giving effect to the borrower's senior debt obligations. Subordinated loans generally have greater price volatility than senior loans and may be less liquid.

We may not be able to unilaterally enforce all rights and remedies under a bank loan and with regard to any associated collateral. If we purchase a loan participation, we generally will have no direct right to enforce compliance by the borrower with the terms of the loan agreement, and we may not directly benefit from the collateral securing the underlying debt obligation. As a result, we would be exposed to the credit risk of both the borrower under the bank loan and the lender selling the participation.

There is typically less available information about most bank loans than is the case for many other types of debt instruments. Bank loans may not be deemed to be "securities" for purposes of the federal securities laws, and bank loan investors may not have the protections of the anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities laws and must rely instead on contractual provisions in loan agreements and applicable common-law fraud protections.

Municipal-Related Securities Risks. The yields on, and market prices of, municipal-related securities are dependent on a variety of factors, including general conditions of the municipal securities market, the size of a particular offering, the maturity of the obligation and the rating of the particular issue. The ability of issuers of municipal-related securities to make timely payments of interest and repayments of principal may be diminished during general economic downturns including in respect of potential reallocations of cost burdens among federal,

state and local governments or among parties involved with operating and managing our issuers. In addition, laws enacted in the future by Congress or state legislatures or referenda could extend the time for payment of principal and/or interest, or impose other constraints on enforcement of such obligations or on the ability of municipalities to levy taxes.

Issuers of municipal-related securities might seek protection under the bankruptcy laws. In the event of bankruptcy of such an issuer, we could experience delays in collecting principal and interest and we may not be able to collect all principal and interest to which we are entitled.

The availability of information in the municipal-related securities market is less than in other markets, increasing the difficulty of evaluating and valuing securities. As a result, our investment performance may be more dependent on the analytical abilities of our Subadvisers. The municipal-related securities we hold may be secured by payments to be made by private entities, and changes in market conditions affecting such securities, including the downgrade of a private entity obligated to make such payments, could have a negative impact on the value of our investments, the municipal-related securities market generally or our performance.

We may invest in municipal-related securities that are unsecured. While such unsecured investments may benefit from the same or similar financial and other covenants available to indebtedness ranking ahead of the investments and may benefit from cross-default provisions and security over an issuer's assets, some or all of such terms may not be part of particular investments. Moreover, our ability to influence an issuer's affairs, especially during periods of financial distress or following an insolvency, is likely to be substantially less than that of senior creditors. For example, under typical subordination terms, senior creditors are able to block the acceleration of the debt or the exercise by debt holders of other rights they may have as creditors. Accordingly, we may not be able to take steps to protect our investments in a timely manner or at all and there can be no assurance that our rate of return objectives overall or any particular investment will be achieved.

The municipal-related securities market is a highly fragmented market that is very technically driven and it is expected that there will be regional variations in economic conditions or supply-demand fundamentals. Because the Fund expects to invest less than 50% of its total assets in tax-exempt municipal-related securities, the Fund does not expect to be eligible to pay "exempt interest dividends" to shareholders and interest on municipal-related securities will be taxable to shareholders of the Fund when received as a distribution from the Fund.

In addition, our investments may be more sensitive to adverse economic, business and/or political developments if our investment portfolio includes a substantial portion of its assets in the securities of similar or related projects and/or types municipal-related securities (for example only, revenue bonds, general obligation bonds or private activity bonds) as such events may adversely affect a specific industry or local political and economic conditions, leading to declines in the creditworthiness and value of our investments. The secondary market for certain municipal-related securities, particularly below investment grade municipal-related securities, tends to be less well-developed or liquid than many other securities markets, which may adversely affect our ability to sell our investments at attractive prices.

Municipal leases and certificates of participation involve special risks not normally associated with general obligation or revenue bonds. Leases and installment purchase or conditional sale contracts (which typically provide for title to the leased asset to pass eventually to the governmental issuer) are typically utilized as a means for governmental issuers to acquire property and equipment without meeting constitutional and statutory requirements for the issuance of debt. The debt issuance limitations are deemed to be inapplicable because of the inclusion in many leases or contracts of "non-appropriation" clauses that relieve the governmental issuer of any obligation to make future payments under the lease or contract unless money is appropriated for such purpose by the appropriate legislative body on a yearly or other periodic basis. In addition, such leases or contracts may be subject to the temporary abatement of payments in the event the governmental issuer is prevented from maintaining occupancy of the leased premises or utilizing the leased equipment. Although the obligations may be secured by the leased equipment or facilities, the disposition of the property in the event of non-appropriation or

foreclosure might prove difficult, time consuming and costly, and may result in a delay in recovering or the failure to fully recover our original investment. In the event of non-appropriation, an issuer would be in default, and taking ownership of the assets may be a remedy available to us, although we do not anticipate that such a remedy would normally be pursued. Certificates of participation, which represent interests in unmanaged pools of municipal leases or installment contracts, involve the same risks as the underlying municipal leases. In addition, we may be dependent upon the municipal authority issuing the certificates of participation to exercise remedies with respect to the underlying securities. Certificates of participation also entail a risk of default or bankruptcy, both of the issuer of the municipal lease and also the municipal agency issuing the certificate of participation.

The municipal-related securities in which we invest generally will be directly originated municipal securities. Directly originated securities represent obligations structured directly by a single purchaser, or a limited number of institutional purchasers, and the issuer, and are typically not rated by credit rating agencies. We expect that the directly originated municipal-related securities in which we invest generally will be deemed by our Adviser to be of comparable quality to securities rated below investment grade and that such securities will belong to relatively small issues. We expect that the directly originated municipal-related securities in which we invest will have limited trading markets and therefore will tend to be less liquid than municipal securities rated investment grade or issued by traditional municipal issuers. This may make it difficult for us to value the municipal-related securities in which we invest. In addition, we will likely be able to sell such municipal-related securities only in private transactions with another investor or group of investors, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully arrange such transactions if and when we desire to sell any of our municipal-related securities or, if successfully arranged, that we will be able to obtain favorable values upon the sale of our municipal-related securities in such transactions.

Additional risks for investing in municipal securities depending on the types of each securities include:

- <u>Municipal Note Risks</u>. Municipal notes are shorter term municipal debt obligations that typically provide interim financing in anticipation of tax collection, bond sales or revenue receipts. To the extent there is a shortfall in the anticipated proceeds, the notes may not be fully repaid by an issuer and our returns would be adversely affected.
- <u>Private Activity Bond Risks</u>. Private activity bonds are, in most cases, tax-exempt securities issued by states, municipalities or public authorities to provide funds, typically through a loan or lease arrangement, to a private entity for the purpose of financing construction or improvement of a facility to be used by the entity. Such bonds are secured typically by revenues derived from loan repayments or lease payments due from the entity, which may or may not be guaranteed by a parent entity or otherwise secured. Private activity securities generally are not secured by a pledge of the taxing power of the issuer of such bonds. Repayment of such securities generally depends on the revenues of a private entity and may be subject to additional risk of non-payment.
- General Obligation Bond Risks. General obligation bonds are secured by the issuer's pledge of its full faith, credit and taxing power for the payment of principal and interest. Timely payments by the issuer and the repayment of principal when due depend on its credit quality, ability to raise tax revenues and ability to maintain an adequate tax base. The taxing power of any governmental entity may be limited, however, by provisions of its state constitution or laws, and an entity's creditworthiness will depend on many factors, including, for example only, potential erosion of its tax base due to population declines, natural disasters, declines in the state's industrial base or inability to attract new industries, economic limits on the ability to tax without eroding the tax base, state legislative proposals or voter initiatives to limit ad valorem real property taxes and the extent to which the entity relies on federal or state aid, access to capital markets or other factors beyond the state's or entity's control.
- <u>Revenue Bond Risks</u>. Revenue bonds are payable only from the revenues derived from a particular facility or class of facilities or, in certain cases, from the proceeds of a special excise tax or other specific revenue source (for example, payments from the user of the facility being financed) and

accordingly, the timely payment of interest and the repayment of principal in accordance with the terms of the revenue or special obligation bond depends on the economic viability of such facility or such revenue source.

- <u>Moral Obligation Bond Risks</u>. Moral obligation bonds are typically issued by special purpose public authorities. If an issuer of moral obligation bonds is unable to meet its obligations, the repayment of such bonds becomes a moral commitment but not a legal obligation of the state or municipality that created the special purpose public authority that issued the bonds.
- <u>Municipal Commercial Paper Risks</u>. Municipal commercial paper is typically unsecured and issued to meet short-term financing needs. The lack of security presents some risk of loss to us since, in the event of an issuer's bankruptcy, unsecured creditors are repaid only after the secured creditors out of the assets, if any, that remain.
- <u>Municipal Lease Obligation Risks</u>. Certificates of participation issued by government authorities or entities to finance the acquisition or construction of equipment, land and/or facilities represent participations in a lease, an installment purchase contract or a conditional sales contract relating to such equipment, land or facilities and as with debt obligations, are subject to the risk of non-payment.
- <u>Zero-Coupon Securities Risks</u>. Interest on zero-coupon bonds is not paid on a current basis and accordingly, the values of such securities are subject to greater fluctuations than are the value of securities that distribute income regularly and may be more speculative than such bonds. Further, the values of zero coupon bonds may be highly volatile during periods when interest rates rise or fall.
- <u>Tender Option Bond Risks</u>. Investments in tender option bond transactions expose us to counterparty risk and leverage risk, as well as the risk of loss of principal.
- Variable Rate Demand Obligation Risks. If the bank or financial institution that is the counterparty on a VRDO is unable to pay, upon demand or at maturity, we may lose money.
- <u>Financial Futures Risks</u>. Trading in financial futures contracts may tend to be less liquid than trading in other futures contracts. The trading of futures contracts also is subject to certain market risks, such as inadequate trading activity, which could at times make it difficult or impossible to liquidate existing positions.
- <u>Insured Municipal Bond Risks</u>. Although municipal bond insurance is expected to protect us against losses caused by a bond issuer's failure to make interest or principal payments, such insurance does not protect us or our investors against losses caused by declines in a bond's market value. Further, we cannot be certain that any insurance company will make these payments. In addition, if we purchase the insurance, we will bear any related premiums and other related costs, which will reduce our returns.
- <u>Participation Note Risks</u>. Because a participation note is an obligation of the issuer, rather than a direct investment in shares of the underlying security or basket of securities, we may suffer losses potentially equal to the full value of the participation note if the issuer fails to perform its obligations.
- <u>Pay-in-Kind Note Risks</u>. An issuer's ability to repay the principal of an investment in pay-in-kind notes may be dependent upon a liquidity event or the long-term success of such issuer, the occurrence of which is uncertain.

Operating and Financial Risks of Issuers and Impact of Other Issuers. One of the fundamental risks associated with our investments is credit risk, which is the risk that an issuer will be unable to make principal and interest payments on its outstanding debt obligations when due and the related risk that the value of a debt security may decline because of concerns about the issuer's ability or willingness to make such payments. Because we may invest our assets in high yield securities or unrated securities of comparable quality, our credit risks are greater than those of funds that buy only investment grade securities. Investments in inverse floaters will increase our credit risk. Our return would be adversely impacted if an issuer of debt securities in which we invest becomes unable to make such payments when due. Issuers in which we invest could deteriorate as a result of, among other factors, adverse developments in their businesses, changes in the competitive environment or an

economic downturn. As a result, issuers that we expect to be stable may operate, or expect to operate, at a loss or have significant variations in operating results, may require substantial additional capital to support their operations or to maintain their competitive position or may otherwise have a weak financial condition or be experiencing financial distress. In addition, we and other investment funds sponsored by our Adviser have made (and/or will in the future make) investments in issuers that have operations and assets in many jurisdictions. It is possible that the activities of one issuer may have adverse consequences on one or more other issuers (including our issuers), even in cases where the issuers are held by different Tortoise investment funds and have no other connection to each other.

Risks of Investments in Less Established Issuers. Although from time to time we will seek to make investments in respect of established issuers, we have not established any minimum size for the issuers in which we may invest and are expected to make investments in smaller, less established issuers. For example, such issuers may have shorter operating histories on which to judge future performance and, if operating, may have negative cash flow. In the case of start-up enterprises, such issuers may not have significant or any operating revenues. Less established issuers tend to have smaller capitalizations and fewer resources (including cash) and, therefore, often are more vulnerable to funding shortfalls and financial failure. In addition, less mature issuers could be deemed to be more susceptible to irregular accounting or other fraudulent practices. In the event of fraud by any issuer in which we invest, we may suffer a partial or total loss of capital invested in that issuer. There can be no assurance that any such losses will be offset by gains (if any) realized on the Fund's other investments.

U.S. Government Obligation Risks. While U.S. Treasury obligations are backed by the "full faith and credit" of the U.S. government, such securities are nonetheless subject to credit risk (i.e., the risk that the U.S. government may be, or be perceived to be, unable or unwilling to honor its financial obligations, such as making payments). Securities issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or authorities and U.S. government-sponsored instrumentalities or enterprises may or may not be backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government.

Other Investment Risks

Liquidity Risk. Our Direct Investments will be highly illiquid, and we will likely be able to sell such securities only in private transactions with another investor or group of investors, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully arrange such transactions if and when we desire to sell any of our Direct Investments or, if successfully arranged, that we will be able to obtain favorable values upon the sale of our Direct Investments in such transactions. In addition, our investments in debt securities may expose us to liquidity risk. The corporate debt securities in which we invest generally will be high yield debt securities, and these securities have historically been less liquid than securities rated investment grade, especially during periods of market stress. We expect that the directly originated municipal securities in which we invest will have limited trading markets and therefore will tend to be less liquid than municipal securities rated investment grade or issued by traditional municipal issuers.

With respect to our investments in listed equity securities, we may invest in securities of any market capitalization, including small- and mid-capitalization companies, and may be exposed to liquidity risk when trading volume, lack of a market maker, or legal restrictions impair our ability to sell particular securities or close call option positions at an advantageous price or a timely manner. We may invest in mid-capitalization and small-capitalization companies, which may be more volatile and more likely than large-capitalization companies to have narrower product lines, fewer financial resources, less management depth and experience and less competitive strength. In the event certain securities experience limited trading volumes, the prices of such securities may display abrupt or erratic movements at times. These securities may be difficult to sell at a favorable price at the times when we believe it is desirable to do so.

Private Company Securities Risk. Our investments in private companies may be subject to higher risk than investments in securities of public companies. Little public information may exist about many of the issuers of these securities, and we will be required to rely on the ability of our Adviser and Subadvisers to obtain adequate

information to evaluate the potential risks and returns involved in investing in these issuers. If our Adviser or Subadvisers are unable to obtain all material information about the issuers of these securities, it may be difficult to make a fully informed investment decision, and we may lose some or all of our investment in these securities. These factors could subject us to greater risk than investments in securities of public companies and negatively affect our investment returns, which could negatively impact the dividends paid to you and the value of your investment. In addition, we will likely be able to sell our investments in private companies only in private transactions with another investor or group of investors, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully arrange such transactions if and when we desire to sell any of our investments in private companies or, if successfully arranged, that we will be able to obtain favorable values upon the sale of our investments in private companies in such transactions.

Restricted Securities Risk, including Rule 144A Securities Risk. Restricted securities are less liquid than securities traded in the open market because of statutory and contractual restrictions on resale. Such securities are, therefore, unlike securities that are traded in the open market, which can be expected to be sold immediately if the market is adequate. This lack of liquidity may create special risks for us.

Restricted securities are subject to statutory and contractual restrictions on their public resale, which may make it more difficult to value them, may limit our ability to dispose of them and may lower the amount we could realize upon their sale. To enable us to sell our holdings of a restricted security not registered under the Securities Act, we may have to cause those securities to be registered. The expenses of registering restricted securities may be determined at the time we buy the securities. When we must arrange registration because we wish to sell the security, a considerable period may elapse between the time the decision is made to sell the security and the time the security is registered so that we could sell it. We would bear the risks of any downward price fluctuation during that period.

Rule 144A provides an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act for the resale of certain restricted securities to qualified institutional buyers, such as us. However, an insufficient number of qualified institutional buyers interested in purchasing the Rule 144A-eligible securities that we hold could affect adversely the marketability of certain Rule 144A securities, and we might be unable to dispose of such securities promptly or at reasonable prices.

Non-U.S. Securities Risks. Investments in securities of non-U.S. issuers (including Canadian issuers) involve risks not ordinarily associated with investments in securities and instruments of U.S. issuers. For example, non-U.S. companies are not generally subject to uniform accounting, auditing and financial standards and requirements comparable to those applicable to U.S. companies. Non-U.S. securities exchanges, brokers and companies may be subject to less government supervision and regulation than exists in the U.S. Dividend and interest income may be subject to withholding and other non-U.S. taxes, which may adversely affect the net return on such investments. Because we intend to limit our investments in securities issued by non-U.S. issuers (including Canadian issuers) to no more than 30% of our total assets, we will not be able to pass through to our shareholders any foreign income tax credits as a result of any foreign income taxes we pay. There may be difficulty in obtaining or enforcing a court judgment abroad. In addition, it may be difficult to effect repatriation of capital invested in certain countries. With respect to certain countries, there are also risks of expropriation, confiscatory taxation, political or social instability or diplomatic developments that could affect the Fund's assets held in non-U.S. countries. There may be less publicly available information about a non-U.S. company than there is regarding a U.S. company. Non-U.S. securities markets may have substantially less volume than U.S. securities markets and some non-U.S. company securities are less liquid than securities of otherwise comparable U.S. companies. Non-U.S. markets also have different clearance and settlement procedures that could cause the Fund to encounter difficulties in purchasing and selling securities on such markets and may result in the Fund missing attractive investment opportunities or experiencing a loss. In addition, a portfolio that includes securities issued by non-U.S. issuers can expect to have a higher expense ratio because of the increased transaction costs in non-U.S. markets and the increased costs of maintaining the custody of such non-U.S. securities. When investing in securities issued by non-U.S. issuers, there is also the risk that the market price of such an investment, measured in U.S. dollars, will decrease because of unfavorable changes in currency exchange rates. We do not currently intend to hedge our exposure to non-U.S. currencies.

Investments in companies domiciled in the United Kingdom ("UK"), or that otherwise have significant ties to the UK, are subject to Brexit risk. Brexit risk is the risk that the exit of the UK from the European Union occurs in a disruptive manner, including a no deal exit. Potential effects of a disruptive Brexit include, but are not limited to, adverse effects on supply chains and labor markets, the potential for new taxes to be imposed on goods crossing borders, declining real estate markets and a weakening of the pound sterling.

Emerging Market Securities Risks. Investments in securities of non-U.S. issuers located in emerging markets involve all of the risks generally applicable to investments in securities of non-U.S. issuers, as described above under "Non-U.S. Securities Risks." These risks are heightened with respect to investments in emerging market securities. In addition, investments in emerging market securities are subject to a number of risks, including risks related to economic structures that are less diverse and mature than those of developed countries; less stable political systems and less developed legal systems; national policies that may restrict foreign investment; wide fluctuations in the value of investments, possibly as a result of significant currency exchange rate fluctuations; smaller securities markets making investments less liquid; and special custody arrangements.

Terrorism and Cybersecurity Risks. Essential asset issuers are subject to disruption as a result of terrorist activities and other geopolitical events, including upheaval in the Middle East or other energy-producing regions. Cyber hacking could also cause significant disruption and harm to essential asset issuers. The U.S. government has issued warnings that certain essential assets, specifically those related to energy infrastructure, including exploration and production facilities, pipelines and transmission and distribution facilities, might be specific targets of terrorist activity. Additionally, digital and network technologies (collectively, "cyber networks") might be at risk of cyberattacks that could potentially seek unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes such as misappropriating sensitive information, corrupting data or causing operational disruption. Cyberattacks might potentially be carried out by persons using techniques that could range from efforts to electronically circumvent network security or overwhelm websites to intelligence gathering and social engineering functions aimed at obtaining information necessary to gain access.

Covered Call Risks. We cannot guarantee that our covered call option overlay strategy will be effective. There are several risks associated with transactions in options on securities, including:

- There are significant differences between the securities and options markets that could result in an imperfect correlation between these markets, causing a given covered call option transaction not to achieve its objectives. A decision as to whether, when and how to use covered calls (or other options) involves the exercise of skill and judgment, and even a well-conceived transaction may be unsuccessful because of market behavior or unexpected events.
- The use of options may require us to sell portfolio securities at inopportune times or for prices other than current market values, may limit the amount of appreciation we can realize on an investment or may cause us to hold a security we might otherwise sell. As the writer of a covered call option, we forego, during the option's life, the opportunity to profit from increases in the market value of the security covering the call option above the exercise price of the call option, but retain the risk of loss should the price of the underlying security decline. Although such loss would be offset in part by the option premium received, in a situation in which the price of a particular stock on which we have written a covered call option declines rapidly and materially or in which prices in general on all or a substantial portion of the stocks on which we have written covered call options decline rapidly and materially, we could sustain material depreciation or loss to the extent we do not sell the underlying securities (which may require us to terminate, offset or otherwise cover our option position as well).
- There can be no assurance that a liquid market will exist when we seek to close out an option position. If we were unable to close out a covered call option that we had written on a security, we would not be able to sell the underlying security unless the option expired without exercise. Reasons for the absence of a liquid secondary market for exchange-traded options may include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) there may be insufficient trading interest; (2) restrictions may be imposed by an

exchange on opening transactions or closing transactions or both; (3) trading halts, suspensions or other restrictions may be imposed with respect to particular classes or series of options; (4) unusual or unforeseen circumstances may interrupt normal operations on an exchange; (5) the trading facilities may not be adequate to handle current trading volume; or (6) the relevant exchange could discontinue the trading of options. In addition, our ability to terminate OTC options may be more limited than with exchange-traded options and may involve the risk that counterparties participating in such transactions will not fulfill their obligations.

- The principal factors affecting the market value of an option include supply and demand, interest rates, the current market price of the underlying security in relation to the exercise price of the option, the dividend or distribution yield of the underlying security, the actual or perceived volatility of the underlying security and the time remaining until the expiration date. Any of the foregoing could impact or cause to vary over time the amount of income we are able to generate through our covered call option overlay strategy.
- The number of covered call options we can write is limited by the number of shares of the corresponding common stock we hold. Furthermore, our covered call option transactions may be subject to limitations established by each of the exchanges, boards of trade or other trading facilities on which such options are traded.
- If we fail to maintain any required asset coverage ratios in connection with any use by us of leverage, we may be required to redeem or prepay some or all of our leverage instruments. Such redemption or prepayment would likely result in our seeking to terminate early all or a portion of any option transaction. Early termination of an option could result in a termination payment by or to us.

Hedging and Derivatives Risks. In addition to writing call options as part of our investment strategy, we may invest in derivative instruments for hedging or risk management purposes, and for short-term purposes such as maintaining market exposure pending investment of the proceeds of this offering or transitioning our portfolio between different asset classes. Our use of derivatives could enhance or decrease the cash available to us for payment of distributions or interest, as the case may be. Derivatives can be illiquid, may disproportionately increase losses and have a potentially large negative impact on our performance. Derivative transactions, including options on securities and securities indices and other transactions in which we may engage (such as forward currency transactions, futures contracts and options thereon and total return swaps), may subject us to increased risk of principal loss due to unexpected movements in stock prices, changes in stock volatility levels, interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates and imperfect correlations between our securities holdings and indices upon which derivative transactions are based. We also will be subject to credit risk with respect to the counterparties to any OTC derivatives contracts we enter into. See "Counterparty Risk" below.

Interest rate transactions will expose us to certain risks that differ from the risks associated with our portfolio holdings. There are economic costs of hedging reflected in the price of interest rate swaps, floors, caps and similar techniques, the costs of which can be significant, particularly when long-term interest rates are substantially above short-term rates. In addition, our success in using hedging instruments is subject to our Adviser's ability to predict correctly changes in the relationships of such hedging instruments to our leverage risk, and there can be no assurance that our Adviser's judgment in this respect will be accurate. Consequently, the use of hedging transactions might result in a poorer overall performance, whether or not adjusted for risk, than if we had not engaged in such transactions. There is no assurance that the interest rate hedging transactions are subject to correlation risk, which is the risk that payment on our hedging transactions may not correlate exactly with our payment obligations on senior securities. To the extent there is a decline in interest rates, the market value of certain derivatives could decline and result in a decline in our net assets.

Counterparty Risk. The risk exists that a counterparty to a derivatives contract or other transaction in a financial instrument held by us or by a special purpose or structured vehicle in which we invest may become

insolvent or otherwise fail to perform its obligations, including making payments to us, due to financial difficulties. We may obtain no or limited recovery in a bankruptcy or other reorganizational proceedings, and any recovery may be significantly delayed. Transactions that we enter into may involve counterparties in the financial services sector and, as a result, events affecting the financial services sector may cause our share value to fluctuate.

In the event of a counterparty's (or its affiliate's) insolvency, our ability to exercise remedies, such as the termination of transactions, netting of obligations and realization on collateral, could be stayed or eliminated under new special resolution regimes adopted in the United States, the European Union and various other jurisdictions. Such regimes generally provide government authorities with broad authority to intervene when a financial institution is experiencing financial difficulty. In particular, the regulatory authorities could reduce, eliminate or convert to equity the liabilities us of a counterparty subject to such proceedings in the European Union (sometimes referred to as a "bail in").

Operational Risks

Distribution Risks. We may not be able to achieve operating results that will allow us to make distributions at a specific level or to increase the amount of these distributions from time to time. We cannot assure you that you will receive distributions at a particular level or at all. Dividends and distributions on equity securities are not fixed but are declared at the discretion of the issuer's board of directors. If stock market volatility declines, the level of premiums from writing covered call options will likely decrease as well. Payments to close-out written call options will reduce amounts available for distribution from gains earned in respect of call option expiration or close out. A significant decline in the value of the securities in which we invest may negatively impact our ability to pay distributions or cause you to lose all or a part of your investment.

In addition, the 1940 Act may limit our ability to make distributions in certain circumstances. Restrictions and provisions in any future credit facilities and our debt securities also may limit our ability to make distributions. For federal income tax purposes, we are required to distribute substantially all of our net investment income each year to maintain our status as a RIC, to reduce our federal income tax liability and to avoid a potential excise tax. If our ability to make distributions on our common shares is limited, such limitations could, under certain circumstances, impair our ability to maintain our qualification for taxation as a RIC or result in our having an income or excise tax liability, which would have adverse consequences for our shareholders. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Operating Results Risk. We could experience fluctuations in our operating results due to a number of factors, including the return on our investments, the level of our expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses on our investments and written call options, the level of call premium we receive by writing covered calls, the degree to which we encounter competition in our markets and general economic conditions. As a result of these factors, results for any period should not be relied upon as being indicative of performance in future periods.

Market Discount Risk. Shares of closed-end investment companies frequently trade at a discount from net asset value. Continued development of alternative vehicles for investing in essential asset companies may contribute to reducing or eliminating any premium or may result in our common shares trading at a discount. The risk that our common shares may trade at a discount is separate from the risk of a decline in our net asset value as a result of investment activities.

Whether shareholders will realize a gain or loss for federal income tax purposes upon the sale of their common shares depends upon whether the market value of the common shares at the time of sale is above or below the shareholder's basis in such common shares, taking into account transaction costs, and it is not directly dependent upon our net asset value. Because the market price of our common shares will be determined by factors such as the relative demand for and supply of the shares in the market, general market conditions and

other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict whether our common shares will trade at, below or above net asset value, or at, below or above the public offering price for our common shares.

Delay in Use of Proceeds Risk. Although we expect to fully invest the net proceeds of this offering in an initial portfolio of primarily publicly listed investments within three to six months after the closing of this offering, such investments may be delayed if suitable investments are unavailable at the time, if market conditions and volumes of securities are not favorable at the time or for other reasons. As a result, the proceeds may be invested in money market mutual funds, cash, cash equivalents, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its instrumentalities or agencies, high quality, short-term money market instruments, short-term debt securities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances and other bank obligations, commercial paper or other liquid debt securities. The three- to six-month timeframe associated with the anticipated use of proceeds could lower returns and lower our yield in the first year after the issuance of our common shares.

In addition, under current market conditions, we expect that it may take approximately 12 months from the closing of this offering to identify and complete our Direct Investments.

Portfolio Turnover Risk. At times, particularly during our initial twelve months of operation, our portfolio turnover may be higher. High portfolio turnover involves greater transaction costs to us and may result in greater realization of capital gains, including short-term capital gains.

Valuation Risks. Our Direct Investments will typically consist of securities for which a liquid trading market does not exist. The fair value of these securities may not be readily determinable. We will value these securities in accordance with valuation procedures adopted by our Board of Directors. See "Determination of Net Asset Value." Our Board of Directors may use the services of an independent valuation firm to review the fair value of certain securities prepared by our Adviser. The types of factors that may be considered in fair value pricing of our investments include, as applicable, the nature and realizable value of any collateral, the issuer's ability to make payments, the markets in which the issuer does business, comparison to publicly traded companies, discounted cash flow and other relevant factors. Because such valuations, and particularly valuations of non-traded securities and private companies, are inherently uncertain, they may fluctuate over short periods of time and may be based on estimates. The determination of fair value by our Board of Directors may differ materially from the values that would have been used if a liquid trading market for these securities existed. Our net asset value could be adversely affected if the determinations regarding the fair value of our investments were materially higher than the values that we ultimately realize upon the disposition of such securities.

Tax Risks. We intend to elect to be treated, and to qualify each year, as a RIC under the Code. To maintain our qualification for federal income tax purposes as a RIC under the Code, we must meet certain source-of-income, asset diversification and annual distribution requirements. If for any taxable year we fail to qualify for the special federal income tax treatment afforded RICs, all of our taxable income will be subject to federal income tax at regular corporate rates (without any deduction for distributions to our shareholders) and our income available for distribution will be reduced. For additional information on the requirements imposed on RICs and the consequences of a failure to qualify, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" below.

Leverage Risks. Our use of leverage through the issuance of preferred shares or debt securities, and any borrowings or other transactions involving indebtedness (other than for temporary or emergency purposes), would be considered "senior securities" for purposes of the 1940 Act and create risks. Leverage is a speculative technique that may adversely affect common shareholders. If the return on investments acquired with borrowed funds or other leverage proceeds does not exceed the cost of the leverage, the use of leverage could cause us to lose money. Successful use of leverage depends on our Adviser's ability to predict or hedge correctly interest rates and market movements, and there is no assurance that the use of a leveraging strategy will be successful during any period in which it is used. Because the fee paid to our Adviser and Subadvisers will be calculated on the basis of Managed Assets, the fees will increase when leverage is utilized, giving our Adviser an incentive to utilize leverage.

Our issuance of senior securities involves offering expenses and other costs, including interest payments, that are borne indirectly by our common shareholders. Fluctuations in interest rates could increase interest or distribution payments on our senior securities and could reduce cash available for distributions on common shares. Increased operating costs, including the financing cost associated with any leverage, may reduce our total return to common shareholders.

The 1940 Act and/or the rating agency guidelines applicable to senior securities impose asset coverage requirements, distribution limitations, voting right requirements (in the case of the senior equity securities) and restrictions on our portfolio composition and our use of certain investment techniques and strategies. The terms of any senior securities or other borrowings may impose additional requirements, restrictions and limitations that are more stringent than those currently required by the 1940 Act, and the guidelines of the rating agencies that rate outstanding senior securities. These requirements may have an adverse effect on us and may affect our ability to pay distributions on common shares and preferred shares. To the extent necessary, we currently intend to redeem any senior securities to maintain the required asset coverage. Doing so may require that we liquidate portfolio securities at a time when it would not otherwise be desirable to do so.

Capital Markets Risks. In the event of an economic downturn or increased financial stress, the cost of raising capital in the debt and equity capital markets may increase, and the ability to raise capital may be limited. In particular, concerns about the general stability of financial markets and specifically the solvency of lending counterparties may impact the cost of raising capital from the credit markets through increased interest rates, tighter lending standards, difficulties in refinancing debt on existing terms or at all and reduced, or in some cases ceasing to provide, funding to borrowers. In addition, lending counterparties under existing revolving credit facilities and other debt instruments may be unwilling or unable to meet their funding obligations. As a result of any of the foregoing, we or the companies in which we invest may be unable to obtain new debt or equity financing on acceptable terms. If funding is not available when needed, or is available only on unfavorable terms, we or the companies in which we invest may be unable to execute their growth strategies, complete future acquisitions, take advantage of other business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on their revenues and results of operations.

Legal, Regulatory and Policy Risks. Legal and regulatory changes could occur that may adversely affect us, our investments and our ability to pursue our investment strategies and/or increase the costs of implementing such strategies. Certain changes have already been proposed and additional changes are expected. New or revised laws or regulations may be imposed by the SEC, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC"), the Internal Revenue Service, the U.S. Federal Reserve or other governmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that could adversely affect us. We also may be adversely affected by changes in the enforcement or interpretation of existing statutes and rules by governmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations.

Instability in financial markets during and following the 2007–2009 global financial crisis led the U.S. government and foreign governments to take a number of unprecedented actions designed to support certain financial institutions and segments of the financial markets that experienced extreme volatility, and in some cases a lack of liquidity. While economic and financial conditions in the United States and elsewhere have been recovering for several years, volatility remains and a perception that conditions remain fragile persists to some extent. Withdrawal of government support or investor perception that such efforts are not succeeding could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of certain securities.

In the event of future instability in financial markets, U.S. federal and state governments and foreign governments, their regulatory agencies or self-regulatory organizations may take additional actions that affect the regulation of the securities in which we invest, or the issuers of such securities, in ways that are unforeseeable and on an "emergency" basis with little or no notice, with the consequence that some market participants' ability to continue to implement certain strategies or manage the risk of their outstanding positions may be suddenly and/or substantially eliminated or otherwise negatively impacted. Given the complexities of the global financial

markets and the limited timeframe within which governments may be required to take action, these interventions may result in confusion and uncertainty, which in itself may be materially detrimental to the efficient functioning of such markets as well as previously successful investment strategies.

In addition, the securities and futures markets are subject to comprehensive statutes, regulations and margin requirements. The CFTC, the SEC, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, other regulators and self-regulatory organizations and exchanges are authorized under these statutes and regulations and otherwise to take extraordinary actions in the event of market emergencies. We, our Adviser and our Subadvisers historically have been eligible for exemptions from certain regulations. However, there is no assurance that we, our Adviser or our Subadvisers will continue to be eligible for such exemptions.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the "Dodd-Frank Act") and related regulatory developments have imposed comprehensive new regulatory requirements on swaps and swap market participants. The new regulatory framework includes: (1) registration and regulation of swap dealers and major swap participants; (2) requiring central clearing and execution of standardized swaps; (3) imposing margin requirements on swap transactions; (4) regulating and monitoring swap transactions through position limits and large trader reporting requirements; and (5) imposing record keeping and centralized and public reporting requirements, on an anonymous basis, for most swaps. The CFTC is responsible for the regulations. The SEC has jurisdiction over a small segment of the market referred to as "security-based swaps," which includes swaps on single securities or credits, or narrow-based indices of securities or credits, but has not yet completed its rulemaking. The implementation of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act by the SEC and the CFTC could adversely affect our ability to pursue our investment objective. The Dodd-Frank Act and the rules promulgated thereunder could, among other things, adversely affect the value of our investments, restrict our ability to engage in derivative transactions and/or increase the costs of such derivative transactions.

The CFTC and certain futures exchanges have established limits, referred to as "position limits," on the maximum net long or net short positions which any person may hold or control in particular options and futures contracts; those position limits also may apply to certain other derivatives positions we may wish to take. All positions owned or controlled by the same person or entity, even if in different accounts, may be aggregated for purposes of determining whether the applicable position limits have been exceeded. Thus, even if we do not intend to exceed applicable position limits, it is possible that different clients managed by our Adviser, our Subadvisers and their affiliates may be aggregated for this purpose. Therefore it is possible that the trading decisions of our Adviser or our Subadvisers may have to be modified and that positions we hold may have to be liquidated in order to avoid exceeding such limits. The modification of investment decisions or the elimination of open positions, if it occurs, may adversely affect our performance.

Changes in U.S. social, political, regulatory and economic conditions or in laws and policies governing foreign trade, manufacturing, development, investment and support for clean energy initiatives, and any negative sentiments towards the United States as a result of such changes, could adversely affect the business of the essential asset companies in which we expect to invest. In addition, reduced immigration into the United States of educated professionals from overseas or negative sentiments towards the United States among non-U.S. employees or prospective employees could adversely affect the ability of the companies in which we expect to invest to hire and retain highly skilled employees. Any of these developments could have an adverse effect on the value of our investments.

The impact of continued trade tensions with China, or an escalation to a trade war, may adversely effect currencies, commodities and individual companies in which we invest. U.S. companies that source material and goods from China, and those that make large amounts of sales in China would be particularly vulnerable to an escalation of trade tensions. Uncertainty regarding the outcome of the trade tensions and the potential for a trade war could cause the dollar to decline against safe haven currencies, such as the Japanese yen and the euro.

Subsidiary Risks. By investing in any Subsidiary, we will be indirectly exposed to the risks associated with such Subsidiary's investments. The instruments that will be held by any Subsidiary will generally be similar to those that are permitted to be held by the Fund and will be subject to the same risks that apply to similar investments if held directly by the Fund. The Subsidiaries will not be registered under the 1940 Act, and, unless otherwise noted in this prospectus, will not be subject to all of the investor protections of the 1940 Act. However, we will wholly own and control any Subsidiary, and we and any Subsidiary will each be managed by our Adviser or our Subadvisers and will share the same portfolio management teams. Our Board of Directors will have oversight responsibility for the investment activities of the Fund, including its investment in the Subsidiaries, and our role as sole shareholder of any Subsidiary. Changes in the laws of the United States and/or any jurisdiction in which a Subsidiary is formed could result in our inability or the inability of the Subsidiaries to operate as described in this prospectus and our statement of additional information and could adversely affect the Fund. For example, changes in U.S. tax laws could affect the U.S. tax treatment of, or consequences of owning, the Fund or the Subsidiaries, including under the RIC rules.

Segregation and Coverage Risks. Certain portfolio management techniques, such as, among other things, entering into swap agreements, using reverse repurchase agreements, futures contracts or other derivative transactions, may be considered senior securities under the 1940 Act unless steps are taken to segregate our assets or otherwise cover our obligations. To avoid having these instruments considered senior securities, we segregate liquid assets with a value equal (on a mark-to-market basis) to our obligations under these types of transactions, enter into offsetting transactions or otherwise cover such transactions. In cases where we do not follow such procedures, such instruments may be considered senior securities and our use of such transactions will be required to comply with the restrictions on senior securities under the 1940 Act. We may be unable to use segregated assets for certain other purposes, which could result in us earning a lower return on our portfolio than we might otherwise earn if we did not have to segregate those assets in respect of or otherwise cover such portfolio positions. To the extent our assets are segregated or committed as cover, it could limit our investment flexibility. Segregating assets and covering positions will not limit or offset losses on related positions.

Limitations on Transactions with Affiliates Risk. The 1940 Act limits our ability to enter into certain transactions with certain of our affiliates. As a result of these restrictions, we may be prohibited from buying or selling any security directly from or to any portfolio company that is considered our affiliate under the 1940 Act. However, we may under certain circumstances purchase any such portfolio company's securities in the secondary market, which could create a conflict for our Adviser or Subadvisers between our interests and the interests of the portfolio company, in that the ability of our Adviser or Subadvisers, as applicable, to recommend actions in our best interests might be impaired.

The 1940 Act also prohibits certain "joint" transactions with certain of our affiliates, including Other Tortoise Accounts, which could include investments in the same issuer (whether at the same or different times). To the extent there is a joint transaction among us and Other Tortoise Accounts requiring exemptive relief, we may rely on an exemptive order from the SEC obtained by the Adviser and certain Other Tortoise Accounts that permits us, among other things, to co-invest with certain other persons, including certain Other Tortoise Accounts, subject to certain terms and conditions. Such relief may not cover all circumstances and we may be precluded from participating in certain transactions due to regulatory restrictions on transactions with affiliates.

Anti-Takeover Provisions Risks. Our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws include provisions that could delay, defer or prevent other entities or persons from acquiring control of us, causing us to engage in certain transactions or modify our structure. These provisions may be regarded as "anti-takeover" provisions. Such provisions could limit the ability of common shareholders to sell their shares at a premium over the then-current market prices by discouraging a third party from seeking to obtain control of us. See "Certain Provisions in Our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws."

LEVERAGE

Use of Leverage

The borrowing of money and the issuance of preferred shares and debt securities represent the leveraging of our common shares. We reserve the right at any time to use financial leverage to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act or we may elect to reduce the use of leverage or use no leverage at all. We expect that our leverage as a percentage of our total assets will normally range between 10% and 15%, but the actual amount of leverage that we use will vary depending on market conditions. We consider market conditions at the time leverage is incurred and monitor for asset coverage ratios relative to the 1940 Act requirements and our financial covenants on an ongoing basis. Based on current market conditions, we expect our initial leverage to be approximately 10% of our total assets. The timing and terms of any leverage transactions will be determined by our Board of Directors. In addition, the percentage of our assets attributable to leverage may vary significantly during periods of extreme market volatility and may increase during periods of declining market prices of our portfolio holdings. We generally will not use leverage unless we believe that leverage will serve the best interests of our shareholders. We anticipate that our leverage will consist of borrowings pursuant to a credit facility, fixed- or floating-rate notes and preferred shares. The principal factor used in making this determination is whether the potential return is likely to exceed the cost of leverage. We will not issue additional leverage where the estimated costs of issuing such leverage and the ongoing cost of servicing the payment obligations on such leverage exceed the estimated return on the proceeds of such leverage. We note, however, that in making the determination of whether to issue leverage, we must rely on estimates of leverage costs and expected returns. Actual costs of leverage vary over time depending on interest rates and other factors. Common shareholders will bear the costs associated with leverage. In addition, the percentage of our assets attributable to leverage may vary significantly during periods of extreme market volatility and will increase during periods of declining market prices of our portfolio holdings. Actual returns vary depending on many factors. Our Board of Directors also will consider other factors, including whether the current investment opportunities will help us achieve our investment objective and strategies.

Currently, under the 1940 Act, we are not permitted to issue preferred shares unless immediately after such issuance, the value of our total assets (including the proceeds of such issuance) less all liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities is at least equal to 200% of the total of the aggregate amount of senior securities representing indebtedness plus the aggregate liquidation value of any outstanding preferred shares. Stated another way, we may not issue preferred shares that, together with outstanding preferred shares and debt securities, have a total aggregate liquidation value and outstanding principal amount of more than 50% of the value of our total assets, including the proceeds of such issuance, less liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities. In addition, we are not permitted to declare any distribution on our common shares or purchase any of our common shares (through tender offers or otherwise) unless we would satisfy this 200% asset coverage requirement test after deducting the amount of such distribution or share price, as the case may be. We may, as a result of market conditions or otherwise, be required to purchase or redeem preferred shares or sell a portion of our investments when it may be disadvantageous to do so in order to maintain the required asset coverage. Common shareholders would bear the costs of issuing additional preferred shares, which may include offering expenses and the ongoing payment of distributions. Currently, under the 1940 Act, we may issue only one class of preferred shares.

Currently, under the 1940 Act, we are not permitted to issue debt securities or incur other indebtedness constituting senior securities unless immediately thereafter, the value of our total assets (including the proceeds of the indebtedness) less all liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities representing indebtedness is at least equal to 300% of the amount of the outstanding senior securities representing indebtedness. Stated another way, we may not issue debt securities or incur other indebtedness with an aggregate principal amount of more than 33 1/3% of the value of our total assets, including the amount borrowed, less all

liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities. We must maintain this 300% "asset coverage" for as long as the indebtedness is outstanding. The 1940 Act currently provides that we may not declare any distribution with respect to any class of our shares, or purchase any of our shares (through tender offers or otherwise), unless we would satisfy this 300% asset coverage requirement after deducting the amount of the distribution or share purchase price, as the case may be, except that distributions may be declared upon any preferred shares if such senior security representing indebtedness has an asset coverage of at least 200% at the time of declaration of such distribution and after deducting the amount of such distribution. If the asset coverage for senior securities representing indebtedness declines to less than 300% as a result of market fluctuations or otherwise, we may be required to reduce our leverage or sell a portion of our investments when it may be disadvantageous to do so. Currently, under the 1940 Act, we may issue only one class of senior securities representing indebtedness.

The use of leverage creates an opportunity for increased income and capital appreciation for common shareholders, but at the same time creates special risks that may adversely affect common shareholders. Because our management fee is based upon a percentage of our Managed Assets, our management fee is higher when we use leverage. Therefore, our Adviser and Subadvisers have a financial incentive to use leverage, which will create a conflict of interest between our Adviser and our common shareholders, who will bear the costs of our leverage.

Annual Expenses as a Percentage of Managed Assets

Our estimated expenses based on a percentage of Managed Assets for our first full year of operations based on the assumptions set forth in "Summary of Fund Expenses" above are as follows:

Management Fee	1.35%
Interest Payments on Borrowed Funds	0.45%
Other Expenses	0.25%
Total Annual Expenses	2.05%
Less Fee and Expense Reimbursement	(0.25)%
Net Annual Expenses	1.80%

Hedging and Risk Management

In addition to writing covered call options as part of our investment strategy, the risks of which are described herein, we may utilize certain other derivative instruments for hedging or risk management purposes or for short-term purposes, such as maintaining market exposure pending investment of the proceeds of this offering or transitioning our portfolio between different asset classes.

In an attempt to reduce interest rate risk arising from leverage, we may, but are not obligated to, use interest rate transactions intended to reduce our interest rate risk with respect to our interest and distribution payment obligations under our outstanding leverage. Such interest rate transactions would be used to protect us against higher costs on our leverage resulting from increases in short-term interest rates. We anticipate that the majority of such interest rate hedges would be interest rate swap contracts and interest rate caps and floors purchased from financial institutions. There is no assurance that such interest rate hedging transactions will be effective in reducing our exposure to interest rate risk. Hedging transactions are subject to correlation risk, which is the risk that payment on our hedging transactions may not correlate exactly with our payment obligations on senior securities. The use of interest rate transactions is a highly specialized activity that involves investment techniques and risks different from those associated with ordinary portfolio security transactions. In an interest rate swap, we would agree to pay to the other party to the interest rate swap (known as the "counterparty") a fixed-rate payment in exchange for the counterparty agreeing to pay to us a variable rate payment intended to approximate our variable rate payment obligations on outstanding leverage. The payment obligations would be based on the notional amount of the swap. In an interest rate cap, we would pay a premium to the counterparty up to the interest rate cap and, to the extent that a specified variable rate index exceeds a predetermined fixed rate of interest, would receive from the counterparty payments equal to the difference based on the notional amount of such cap. In an interest rate floor, in return for a premium paid to the counterparty, we would be entitled to receive, to the extent that a specified index falls below a predetermined interest rate, payments of interest on a notional principal amount from the party selling the interest rate floor. Depending on the state of interest rates in general, our use of interest rate transactions could affect our ability to make required interest or distribution payments on our outstanding leverage. To the extent there is a decline in interest rates, the market value of the interest rate transactions could decline. If the counterparty to an interest rate transaction defaults, we would not be able to use the anticipated net receipts under the interest rate transaction to offset our cost of leverage. We intend to enter into transactions only with counterparties that meet certain standards of creditworthiness set by our Adviser and to continually monitor the creditworthiness of any counterparties.

We may, but do not currently intend to, use other hedging and risk management strategies to seek to manage other market risks. Such hedging strategies may be utilized to seek to protect against possible adverse changes in the market value of securities held in our investment portfolio (such as through changes in commodity prices or currencies) or to otherwise protect the value of our investment portfolio. We may, but do not currently intend to, enter into forward agreements or purchase futures contracts to hedge our exposure to commodity prices. We may, but do not currently intend to, enter into currency exchange transactions to hedge our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk to the extent we invest in non-U.S. dollar denominated securities. Any currency transactions generally will be limited to portfolio hedging involving portfolio positions. Portfolio hedging is the use of a forward contract with respect to a portfolio security position denominated or quoted in a particular currency. A forward contract is an agreement to purchase or sell a specified currency at a specified future date (or within a specified time period) and price set at the time of the contract. Forward contracts are usually entered into with banks, foreign exchange dealers or broker-dealers, are not exchange-traded and are usually for less than one year. We also may, but do not currently intend to, purchase and sell other derivative investments such as exchange-listed and over-the-counter options on securities or indices, futures contracts and options thereon or derivative investments that combine features of these instruments.

For a further discussion of such derivative instruments, see "Risk Factors—Investment Risks—Other Investment Risks—Hedging and Derivatives Risks."

Effects of Leverage

The following table is designed to illustrate the effect of leverage on the return to a common shareholder, assuming initial assets attributable to common shares of \$260 million, leverage in the amount of \$28.9 million, borrowing costs at an annual interest rate of 4.50% and hypothetical annual returns (net of expenses) of our investment portfolio ranging from (10)% to 10%. As the table shows, leverage generally increases the return to common shareholders when portfolio return is positive or greater than the cost of leverage and decreases the return when the portfolio return is negative or less than the cost of leverage. The figures appearing in the table are hypothetical, and actual returns may be greater or less than those appearing in the table.

Assumed Portfolio Return (Net of Expenses)	(10)%	(5)%	0%	5%	10%
Corresponding Common Share Return	(11.61)%	(6.06)%	(0.50)%	5.06%	10.61%

If we use leverage, the amount of the fees paid to our Adviser and Subadvisers for investment advisory and management services will be higher than if we do not use leverage because the fees paid are calculated based on our Managed Assets, which include assets attributable to leverage. Therefore, our Adviser and Subadvisers have a financial incentive to use leverage, which creates a conflict of interest between our Adviser and Subadvisers and our common shareholders. Because the costs of any leverage would be paid by us at a specified rate, only our common shareholders would bear management fees and other leverage-related expenses we incur.

We cannot fully achieve the benefits of leverage until we have invested the proceeds resulting from the use of leverage in accordance with our investment objective and policies. For further information about leverage, see "Risk Factors—Operational Risks—Leverage Risks."

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

Directors and Officers

Our trustees under our Declaration of Trust are designated as directors, and our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our Board of Directors. Accordingly, our Board of Directors provides broad oversight over our affairs, including oversight of the duties performed by our Adviser and our Subadvisers. Our officers are responsible for our day-to-day operations. Each director and officer will hold office until his or her successor is duly elected and qualifies or until he resigns or is removed in the manner provided by law. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each director and officer is 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211. Additional information regarding our Board of Directors and its committees, and our officers, is set forth under "Management of the Fund" in our statement of additional information. Our Board of Directors consists of a majority of directors who are not interested persons (as defined in the 1940 Act) of our Adviser, our Subadvisers or their affiliates.

Investment Adviser and Subadvisers

Pursuant to an investment advisory agreement, Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a registered investment adviser, will serve as our investment adviser (the "Advisory Agreement").

The principal business address of our Adviser is 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211. Our Adviser specializes in actively managed portfolios of investments in essential assets. Our Adviser was formed in 2002 to provide portfolio management services to institutional and high-net worth investors seeking professional management of their MLP investments.

Our Adviser also serves as investment adviser to Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation, Tortoise Power and Energy Infrastructure Fund, Inc, Tortoise MLP Fund, Inc., Tortoise Pipeline & Energy Fund, Inc. and Tortoise Energy Independence Fund, Inc., which are publicly traded closed-end investment companies that invest in MLPs, pipeline and energy companies. Our Adviser also serves as investment adviser to two open-end management investment companies and certain private funds that invest in MLPs and other energy infrastructure companies.

Our Adviser is indirectly controlled by Lovell Minnick Partners LLC ("Lovell Minnick"). The Adviser is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Tortoise Investments, LLC ("Tortoise Investments"), a company that indirectly owns essential asset and income-oriented investment advisers. A vehicle formed by Lovell Minnick and owned by certain private funds sponsored by Lovell Minnick and a group of institutional co-investors owns a controlling interest in Tortoise Investments. Certain employees of our Adviser, including our portfolio managers, own an indirect minority interest in our Adviser.

Pursuant to separate subadvisory agreements with our Adviser (each, a "Subadvisory Agreement"), Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC, a registered investment adviser, and Tortoise Advisors UK Limited, a registered investment adviser, each will serve as our investment subadviser.

The principal business address of Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC is 11550 Ash Street, Suite 300, Leawood, Kansas 66211.

The principal business address of Tortoise Advisors UK Limited (formerly known as Ecofin Limited) is Burdett House, 15 Buckingham Street, London WC2N 6DU, United Kingdom. Ecofin was formed in 1991 and was acquired by Tortoise Investments in November 2018.

Our Subadvisers are indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Tortoise Investments. Certain employees of each Subadviser own an indirect minority interest in the Adviser and Subadvisers.

Investment Committee

An Investment Committee of our Adviser will provide strategic oversight and determine the allocation of our investment portfolio across the social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure asset classes, and between direct investments, listed equity securities and corporate debt securities, based on prevailing market conditions, available investment opportunities and other factors, and may change the allocation of our total assets among these asset classes or security types from time to time without prior approval from or notice to our common shareholders. The Investment Committee oversight role includes approval of certain direct investments. The members of the Investment Committee are as follows:

P. Bradley Adams, Managing Director—Financial Operations. Mr. Adams joined Tortoise in 2005 and oversees its financial operations. He is also the chief executive officer for the Tortoise closed-end funds. He has more than 34 years of experience, and previously, he served as a consultant to the financial services industry and was vice president of finance and operations, chief operating officer and director of Jones & Babson, Inc., an investment company distributor and service provider.

Mr. Adams earned a Bachelor of Science in Finance from the University of Wyoming and a Master of Business Administration degree from Rockhurst University (Kansas City, Mo.).

H. Kevin Birzer, Senior Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Birzer co-founded the Adviser in 2002. He has helped grow the business to over \$18.3 billion in 2018. Mr. Birzer serves as chairman of the board of the Adviser's closed-end funds and is a member of the investment committee. He has more than 36 years of money management experience, beginning his career in 1981 at KPMG Peat Marwick. His experience includes three years as vice president for F. Martin Koenig & Co., where he focused on equity and options investments, and three years at Drexel Burnham Lambert, where he served as vice president in the corporate finance department. In 1990, Mr. Birzer co-founded Fountain Capital Management, a high-yield bond management firm and founding sponsor of the Adviser.

Mr. Birzer earned a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the University of Notre Dame and a Master of Business Administration from New York University and is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Gary P. Henson, Senior Managing Director and President. Mr. Henson joined the board of Tortoise in 2009 and is an executive committee member. Mr. Henson has more than 29 years of institutional money management experience at banks, insurance companies and foundations, including his most recent position as president at Mariner Holdings. He began serving as president of Tortoise in 2016.

Mr. Henson earned his Bachelor of Arts degree in Business from Westminster College (Fulton, Mo.) and is a CFA[®] charterholder. He serves on the board of directors of Shatterproof, a national organization committed to preventing addiction and protecting those addicted to illicit and prescription drugs. He is also a board member of the National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics (NAIA) Champions of Character.

Michelle (Kelly) Johnston, Senior Managing Director and Chief Strategy Officer. Ms. Johnston joined Tortoise in 2006 and is an executive committee member. Ms. Johnston oversees Tortoise's strategic growth efforts, including business development, partnership and joint venture activities, product development and marketing/communications, across the Tortoise family. She spearheaded Tortoise's new business ventures and closed-end/open-end fund launches. Previously, Ms. Johnston was an investment banker for Goldman, Sachs & Co. in its industrial and natural resources group in Chicago and its financial institutions group in New York.

Ms. Johnston graduated *summa cum laude* from DePauw University with a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Brent Newcomb, Senior Managing Director and Chief Development Officer. Mr. Newcomb joined Tortoise in 2014 and is responsible for strategic investment. In 2016, he spearheaded the launch of Tortoise's international UCITS business. Previously, Mr. Newcomb worked for GCM Grosvenor in Chicago, where he focused on hedge fund research and portfolio management. Prior to Grosvenor, Mr. Newcomb worked in the commercial banking industry with ABN-AMRO.

Mr. Newcomb earned a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the University of Kansas and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business.

Matthew Sallee, Senior Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Sallee joined Tortoise in 2005 and is an executive committee member. He serves as president of the Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corp. and Tortoise MLP Fund, Inc. closed-end funds and is a member of the investment committee. Mr. Sallee has more than 17 years of industry experience and regularly speaks on national media (CNBC). Previously, he served for five years as a senior financial analyst with Aquila, Inc., where he was responsible for analysis of capital allocation at the firm's communications infrastructure subsidiary, Everest Connections.

Mr. Sallee graduated *magna cum laude* from the University of Missouri with a degree in business administration and is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Robert J. Thummel, Jr., Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Thummel joined the Tortoise in 2004. He has been a portfolio manager of Tortoise since July 2013, a Managing Director of Tortoise since January 2014, and a member of the Investment Committee of Tortoise since June 30, 2015. Mr. Thummel has served as President of Tortoise Energy Independence Fund, Inc. since June 30, 2015. He was a senior investment analyst of Tortoise from June 2012 to July 2013, and an investment analyst from 2004 to June 2012. Mr. Thummel was previously the president of Tortoise North American Energy Corp. from 2008 until the fund was merged into Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corp. in June 2014. Previously, he was director of finance at KLT Inc., a subsidiary of Great Plains Energy, from 1998 to 2004 and a senior auditor at Ernst & Young from 1995 to 1998.

Mr. Thummel earned a Bachelor of Science in accounting from Kansas State University and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Kansas.

Investment Teams

Subject to the oversight of our Board of Directors and pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, investment teams consisting of portfolio managers of our Adviser and our Subadvisers are responsible for the day-to-day management of their respective sleeves of our overall investment portfolio subject to the oversight of the Investment Committee. Our portfolio is managed by four investment teams of our Adviser and Subadvisers (collectively, "Tortoise"): a Social Infrastructure Investment Team, a Private Sustainable Infrastructure Investment Team and an Energy Infrastructure and Public Securities Investment Team.

Social Infrastructure Investment Team

Jeremy Goff, Managing Director—Social Infrastructure. Mr. Goff joined Tortoise in 2011 and currently oversees the firm's social infrastructure business. Mr. Goff is a member of the Social Infrastructure Investment Committee for the social infrastructure business. Since joining Tortoise, Mr. Goff has led the development and launch of the firm's interval, index and exchange-traded fund business, clean energy initiatives as well as its private fund vehicle platform, as a member of the firm's strategic development team.

Previously, Mr. Goff worked for Blackstone in the firm's private equity investor relations and business development group where he was responsible for developing and fundraising for their private funds including Blackstone Capital Partners VI and Blackstone Energy Partners' funds. Mr. Goff played an instrumental role in

the relationship management of Blackstone's domestic and international limited partners, with particular emphasis on Latin America. Prior to his time with Blackstone, he served as a ranger infantry officer in the U.S. Army, where he was awarded the Bronze Star Medal and Army Commendation for Valor. Mr. Goff earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from the United States Military Academy at West Point.

David Sifford, Managing Director—Social Infrastructure. Mr. Sifford joined Tortoise in 2018 as a Managing Director on the Social Infrastructure team. Mr. Sifford oversees and manages the origination and structuring team and serves on the Social Infrastructure Investment Committee.

Prior to joining Tortoise, Mr. Sifford served as Vice President of the Education Investment Group at EPR Properties, pursuing the development and acquisition of education-based real estate across the country. With over 15 years of real estate experience, Mr. Sifford helped make EPR Properties one of the largest owners of public charter schools in the United States and a recognized leader in the financing of educational facilities. In his time at EPR Properties, Mr. Sifford more than doubled the company's total investments in their education portfolio.

Prior to joining EPR Properties, Mr. Sifford served as a Senior Vice President at PNC Real Estate Finance. During his tenure at PNC, Mr. Sifford contributed to over \$4 billion in loan origination and debt restructuring. Mr. Sifford holds an M.B.A. in Finance and Strategy from Vanderbilt University and a B.A. in Business Administration and Sports Science from the University of Richmond.

Adam Peltzer, Director and Investment Analyst—Energy. Mr. Peltzer joined Tortoise in 2015 as a director and investment analyst. Previously, he was an investment committee member and principal at Fountain Capital Management, a privately-owned investment manager that specialized in high-yield bond and bank loan portfolios for institutional clients and structured products. In that role, he was responsible for coverage of the energy sector. Mr. Peltzer earned a Bachelor of Business Administration in accounting and a Master of Accountancy from Wichita State University. He is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Edward Russell, Senior Managing Director. Mr. Edward Russell joined Tortoise in 2006. Since joining the firm, Mr. Russell has participated in marketing all of Tortoise's new closed- and open-end funds. He served as president of Tortoise Capital Resources (TTO) from April 2007 to June 2012. Previously, Mr. Russell was a managing director at Stifel, Nicolaus & Company Inc., where he headed the energy and power group. At Stifel, he was responsible for all energy and power transactions, including all of the debt and equity transactions for the Tortoise funds, starting with the first fund's initial public equity offering in February 2004. Mr. Russell serves as a director for Abraxas Petroleum Corp. (NASDAQ: AXAS), a former director of Arc Logistics GP LLC, the general partner of Arc Logistics Partners LP, a publicly traded MLP (NYSE: ARCX) and director for the USA Rugby Trust.

Private Sustainable Infrastructure Investment Team

Jerry G. Polacek, Managing Director and Group Lead—Private Clean Energy and Infrastructure. Mr. Polacek co-founded Tortoise's Private Clean Energy and Infrastructure business in 2016 and serves as the managing director and group lead. He previously co-founded Energy & Infrastructure Capital LLC (EIC) where he served as chief executive officer and chief investment officer. Prior to forming EIC, Mr. Polacek was a managing director at GE Capital, Energy Financial Services (GE EFS) and held various leadership roles focused on private equity and credit investment in the global energy infrastructure sector. Mr. Polacek co-founded the GE EFS renewable energy group as head of portfolio management and also managed its energy technology venture capital portfolio. Mr. Polacek also worked at Morgan Stanley in its venture capital investment division as a controller and Ernst & Young as a senior auditor.

Mr. Polacek graduated magna cum laude from Adelphi University with a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and holds a Master of Business Administration in Finance and Entrepreneurship with honors from Columbia University. He is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Matthew S. Ordway, Managing Director—Private Clean Energy and Infrastructure. Mr. Ordway co-founded Tortoise's Private Clean Energy and Infrastructure business in 2016 and serves as a managing director. Mr. Ordway previously co-founded Energy & Infrastructure Capital LLC (EIC), where he served as chief financial officer and chief operations officer, responsible for the firm's financial and operational management and portfolio management. Prior to forming EIC, Mr. Ordway served as chief financial officer at renewable energy developer Ridgeline Energy. He also held positions at First Wind and Babcock & Brown's North American Infrastructure group. Formerly a senior vice president at GE Energy Financial Services, Mr. Ordway led a team responsible for making principal investments across the energy sector and managed a \$1 billion energy and infrastructure sector portfolio. During his tenure with GE, Mr. Ordway also vorked at Andersen Business Consulting and at International Paper Company.

Mr. Ordway holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from Fairfield University, and a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering and Master of Business Administration from Columbia University.

Prashanth K. Prakash, Director—Private Clean Energy and Infrastructure. Mr. Prakash co-founded Tortoise's Private Clean Energy and Infrastructure business in 2016 and serves as a director. He previously co-founded Energy & Infrastructure Capital LLC (EIC) and served as its vice president of investments. Prior to forming EIC, Mr. Prakash was an assistant vice president at Deutsche Asset & Wealth Management, focused on the development of new infrastructure debt products for institutional investors. He was also an associate at JPMorgan's Infrastructure Investment Fund (IIF), where he sourced, structured and executed private equity energy and infrastructure transactions in the OECD countries. He was also responsible for managing JPMorgan IIF's 1.4 GW contracted power portfolio. He also worked at Deloitte's Financial Advisory group in New York as an associate, where he advised infrastructure companies and funds on mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Prakash holds a bachelor's degree in electrical and electronics engineering from National Institute of Technology, India, and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Rochester and is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Public Sustainable Infrastructure Investment Team

Matthew Breidert, Senior Portfolio Manager—Infrastructure & Energy Transition. Mr. Matthew Breidert joined Ecofin, now part of Tortoise, in 2006. He is a senior portfolio manager, overseeing sustainable, impact and ESG strategies, both long only and long/short. Prior to joining Ecofin, Mr. Breidert was an assistant portfolio manager at Millennium Partners, based in New York. Previously, he was an investment banker with SG Barr Devlin, a division of Société Générale, where he focused on mergers and acquisitions and financial advisory to global utilities and power companies. Prior to that, he worked at Cornerstone Energy Advisers and FT Energy/RDI in Boulder, Co., where he focused on energy and utility-focused economic policy. Mr. Breidert earned a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Illinois-Urbana Champaign and a Master of Business Administration from Washington University in St. Louis.

Jean-Hugues de Lamaze, Senior Portfolio Manager—Infrastructure & Energy Transition. Mr. Jean-Hugues de Lamaze joined Ecofin, now part of Tortoise, in 2008. Since 2016 he was a Partner and member of the Board at Ecofin. He is senior portfolio manager for investment trust Ecofin Global Utilities & Infrastructure plc that launched in September 2016. Previously, he was senior portfolio manager for Ecofin Water & Power Opportunities plc. Prior to joining Ecofin, Mr. de Lamaze co-founded UV Capital LLP and served as chief investment officer. Previously, he oversaw the Goldman Sachs European Utilities research team and previously was a senior European analyst and head of French Research & Strategy at Credit Suisse First Boston. His professional career began at Enskilda Securities. He is a non-executive Board member of Direct Energie S.A. Mr. de Lamaze is a CFAF certified analyst and a member of the French Financial Analysts Society SFAF. He completed the INSEAD International Executive Programme, graduated from the Paris based business school Institut Supérieur de Gestion and earned a LLB in Business Law from Paris II-Assas University. He was voted Top 10 Buy-Side Individual – All Sectors and Top 3 in the Utilities category in the 2018 Extel survey.

Flavien Hias, Investment Analyst—Infrastructure & Energy Transition. Mr. Flavien Hias joined Ecofin, now part of Tortoise, in 2017 and is an investment analyst covering the utilities and infrastructure sectors. Before joining Ecofin, Mr. Hias was an analyst at Berenberg covering mid-cap companies in France and the Benelux. He has also worked at Tourmaline, a global long/short equity fund, covering mainly the industrial and oil & gas sectors. Mr. Hias graduated from the engineering school Les Mines de Saint Etienne, France and he holds a MSc in Actuarial Science.

Maximilian Slee, Portfolio Manager/Investment Analyst—Infrastructure & Energy Transition. Mr. Maximilian Slee joined Ecofin, now part of Tortoise, in 2010. He is a portfolio manager and investment analyst working on sustainable, impact and ESG strategies, both long only and long/short. Before joining Ecofin, Mr. Slee was a member of the clean energy team of the Clinton Foundation, a global non-profit organization founded by President Clinton, where he was involved in setting up and developing carbon capture & storage (CCS) projects around the world. Previously he was an investment banker at Lazard in London where he was a specialist in the energy sector, working on mergers and acquisitions. He earned a Bachelor of Arts degree from Brown University

Michel Sznajer, Portfolio Manager/Investment Analyst—Infrastructure & Energy Transition. Mr. Sznajer joined Ecofin, now part of Tortoise, in 2016 and is a portfolio manager/analyst focused on Ecofin's sustainable products. Before joining Ecofin, he was a partner and portfolio manager at Silvaris Capital Management. Previously Mr. Sznaier was employed at Wellington Management Co. as an industrial/ Infrastructure analyst and portfolio manager. Prior to this, he worked at Goldman Sachs and Indosuez W.I. CARR covering the telecom sectors in Asia. Mr. Sznajer started his career as a management consultant at Bain & Company, covering technology, media and telecom and financial sectors in Asia and Europe. He earned an MSc in business and engineering from Brussels University and is a CFA® charterholder.

Energy Infrastructure and Public Securities Investment Team

Matthew Sallee, Senior Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager—Energy. See biography at page 61.

Robert Thummel, Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager—Energy. See biography at page 61.

James Mick, Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Mick joined Tortoise in 2006 and is a member of the investment committee. He frequently engages with Tortoise's largest institutional clients. Mr. Mick has more than 18 years of industry experience. Previously, he was a senior finance specialist at General Electric Insurance Solutions (now Swiss Re) from 2003 to 2006 and a senior auditor at Ernst & Young from 2000 to 2003. Mr. Mick earned a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Accounting and a Master of Accounting and Information Systems from the University of Kansas and is a CFA® charterholder.

Brian Kessens, Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Kessens joined Tortoise in 2008. He is a managing director and portfolio manager and serves as president of the Tortoise Pipeline & Energy Fund, Inc. and Tortoise Power and Energy Infrastructure Fund, Inc. closed-end funds. He was a vice president in Citigroup's global energy investment banking practice. Prior to Citigroup, he served as a field artillery officer in the U.S. Army. Mr. Kessens earned a Master of Business Administration from Columbia Business School in New York and a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the United States Military Academy at West Point and is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Stephen Pang, Managing Director and Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Pang joined Tortoise in 2014. Before joining Tortoise, he was a director in Credit Suisse's Equity Capital Markets Group. Prior to joining Credit Suisse in 2012, he spent eight years in Citigroup's Investment Banking Division where he focused on equity underwriting and corporate finance in the energy sector. Mr. Pang earned a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the University of Richmond and is a CFA[®] charterholder.

Brett Jergens, CFA, Director and Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Jergens joined Tortoise in 2007. He serves as vice president of the Tortoise Energy Independence Fund, Inc. closed-end fund. Previously, he was a

vice president at Enterprise Bank & Trust from 2006 to 2007, a financial planner and head of investments at Searcy Financial Services from 2004 to 2006 and a tax accountant at KPMG LLP from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Jergens earned Bachelor of Science degrees in Finance and Accounting from Kansas State University. Mr. Jergens is a CFA[®] charterholder and a certified financial planner (CFP).

Adam Peltzer, Director and Investment Analyst—Energy. See biography at page 62.

Nick Holmes, Director and Portfolio Manager—Energy. Mr. Holmes joined Tortoise in 2010. He is a director and portfolio manager, and serves as vice president of the Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corp. and Tortoise Midstream Energy Fund, Inc. closed-end funds. Mr. Holmes earned a Bachelor of Arts in political science from Yale University and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Kansas. He is a CFA[®] charterholder.

The statement of additional information provides additional information about each investment team's compensation, other accounts that they manage and the ownership of our securities by each investment team's members.

Compensation and Expenses

Under the Advisory Agreement, we pay the Adviser quarterly, as compensation for the services rendered by it, a fee equal on an annual basis to 1.35% of our average monthly Managed Assets. Managed Assets means our total assets minus the sum of accrued liabilities other than (1) debt entered into for the purpose of leverage and (2) the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares. Because the fee paid to the Adviser is determined on the basis of our Managed Assets, the Adviser's interest in determining whether we should incur additional leverage may conflict with our interests.

Our average monthly Managed Assets are determined for the purpose of calculating the management fee by taking the average of the monthly determinations of Managed Assets during a given calendar quarter. The fees are payable for each calendar quarter within five days after the end of that quarter.

We bear all expenses not specifically assumed by our Adviser incurred in our operations and will bear the expenses of all future offerings. Expenses we bear include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) expenses of maintaining and continuing our existence and related overhead, including, to the extent services are provided by personnel of the Adviser or its affiliates, office space and facilities, training and benefits; (2) commissions, spreads, fees and other expenses connected with the acquisition, holding and disposition of securities and other investments, including placement and similar fees in connection with direct placements in which we participate; (3) auditing, accounting, tax and legal service expenses; (4) taxes and interest; (5) governmental fees; (6) expenses of listing our shares with a stock exchange and expenses of the issue, sale, repurchase and redemption (if any) of our shares; (7) expenses of registering and qualifying us and our securities under federal and state securities laws and of preparing and filing registration statements and amendments for such purposes; (8) expenses of communicating with shareholders, including website expenses and the expenses of preparing, printing and mailing press releases, reports and other notices to shareholders and of meetings of shareholders and proxy solicitations therefor; (9) expenses of reports to governmental officers and commissions; (10) insurance expenses; (11) association membership dues; (12) fees, expenses and disbursements of custodians and sub-custodians for all services to us (including without limitation safekeeping of funds, securities and other investments, keeping of books, accounts and records and determination of net asset values); (13) fees, expenses and disbursements of transfer agents, dividend and interest paying agents, shareholder servicing agents, registrars and administrator for all services to us; (14) compensation and expenses of our directors who are not members of the Adviser's organization; (15) pricing, valuation and other consulting or analytical services employed in considering and valuing actual or prospective investments; (16) all expenses incurred in connection with leveraging of our assets through a line of credit or other indebtedness or issuing and maintaining notes or preferred shares; (17) all expenses incurred in connection with the offerings of our common and preferred shares

and debt securities; and (18) such non-recurring items as may arise, including expenses incurred in connection with litigation, proceedings and claims and our obligation to indemnify our directors, officers and shareholders with respect thereto.

Under the Subadvisory Agreement with each of our Subadvisers, our Adviser pays each Subadviser a subadvisory fee based on our average monthly Managed Assets. The subadvisory fee payable to our Subadvisers will be paid by our Adviser out of the investment management fee it receives from us; accordingly, decisions to increase or decrease the portion of our assets allocated to our Subadvisers will not affect the fees we pay for portfolio management services.

Duration and Termination

The Advisory Agreement was approved by our Board of Directors on November 5, 2018. The Subadvisory Agreement with Tortoise Credit Strategies, LLC was approved by our Board of Directors on November 5, 2018 and an amendment was approved by our Board of Directors on January 18, 2019. The Subadvisory Agreement with Tortoise Advisors UK Limited was approved by our Board of Directors on January 18, 2019. The basis for our Board of Directors' initial approval of the Advisory Agreement and the Subadvisory Agreements will be provided in our initial annual report to common shareholders. The Advisory Agreement and the Subadvisory Agreements will become effective as of the close of this offering. Unless terminated earlier as described below, each such Agreement will continue in effect for a period of two years from the effective date and will remain in effect from year to year thereafter if approved annually by our Board of Directors or by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of our outstanding voting securities, and in either case, upon approval by a majority of our directors who are not interested persons or parties to such Agreement.

Each of the Advisory Agreement and the Subadvisory Agreements provides that it may be terminated by us at any time, without the payment of any penalty, by our Board of Directors or by the vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Fund on 60 days' written notice to the Adviser or the Subadvisers, as applicable. In addition, each Subadvisory Agreement provides that it may be terminated by our Adviser at any time, without the payment of any penalty, on 60 days' written notice to our Subadvisers. Each of the Advisory Agreement and the Subadvisory Agreement provides that it may be terminated by our Adviser or our Subadvisers, as applicable, at any time, without the payment of any penalty, upon 60 days' written notice to the Fund. Each of the Advisory Agreement and the Subadvisory Agreement also provides that it will automatically terminate in the event of an "assignment" (as defined in the 1940 Act), and the Subadvisory Agreement provides that it will automatically terminate in the event of the termination of the Advisory Agreement.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

We compute the net asset value of our common shares as of the close of trading of the NYSE (normally 4:00 p.m. Eastern time) no less frequently than the last business day of each calendar month and at such other times as our Board of Directors may determine. When considering an offering of common shares, we calculate our net asset value on a more frequent basis, generally daily, to the extent necessary to comply with the provisions of the 1940 Act. We currently intend to make our net asset value available for publication daily on our Adviser's website. Our net asset value equals the value of our total assets less: (1) all of our liabilities (including accrued expenses); (2) accumulated and unpaid dividends on any outstanding preferred shares; (3) the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred shares; (4) accrued and unpaid interest payments on any outstanding indebtedness; (5) the aggregate principal amount of any outstanding indebtedness; and (6) any distributions payable on our common shares.

We will determine the value of our assets and liabilities in accordance with valuation procedures adopted by our Board of Directors. Securities for which market quotations are readily available will be valued at "market value." If market values are not readily available or cannot be obtained, or if our Adviser determines that the value of a security as so obtained does not represent value as of the measurement date (due to a significant development subsequent to the time its price is determined or otherwise), value will be determined pursuant to the methodologies established by our Board of Directors. In these circumstances, we will determine fair value in a manner that fairly reflects the market value of the security on the valuation date based on consideration of any information or factors we deem appropriate. Our Adviser will attempt to obtain current information to value all fair valued securities, but it is anticipated that such information for certain of the private social infrastructure, sustainable infrastructure and energy infrastructure investments in our portfolio could be available on no more than a quarterly basis. Fair value pricing may require subjective determinations about the value of an asset or liability and may not always result in adjustments to the prices of securities or other assets or liabilities held by the Fund. It is possible that the fair value determined for a security may be materially different than the value that could be realized upon the sale of such security.

- The value for equity securities and equity-related securities is determined by using readily available market quotations from the principal market. For equity and equity-related securities that are freely tradable and listed on a securities exchange or OTC market, value is determined using the last sale price on that exchange or OTC market on the measurement date. If the security is listed on more than one exchange, we will use the price of the exchange that we consider to be the principal exchange on which the security is traded. Securities listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market will be valued at the NASDAQ Official Closing Price, which may not necessarily represent the last sale price. If a security is traded on the measurement date, then the last reported sale price on the exchange or OTC market on which the security is principally traded, up to the time of valuation, is used. If there were no reported sales on the security's principal exchange or OTC market on the measurement date, then the average between the last bid price and last asked price, as reported by a pricing service, will be used. We will obtain direct written broker-dealer quotations if a security is not traded on an exchange or quotations are not available from an approved pricing service. Exchange-traded options will be valued at the last sale price on any exchange on which they trade and, if there were no reposted sales on any exchange on the measurement date, at the mean of the last highest bid and last lowest asked prices across all option exchanges on which they trade at the closing of the exchanges.
- An equity security of a company acquired in a private placement transaction without registration is subject to restrictions on resale that can affect the security's liquidity and value. Such securities that are convertible into shares of publicly traded common stock or securities that may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 generally will be valued based on the value of the freely tradable common stock counterpart less an applicable discount. Generally, the discount will initially be equal to the discount at which we purchased the securities. To the extent that such securities are convertible or otherwise become freely tradable within a time frame that may be reasonably determined, an amortization schedule may be determined for the discount.

- Fixed income securities (other than the short-term securities as described below) are valued by (1) using readily available market quotations based upon the last updated sale price or a market value from an approved pricing service generated by a pricing matrix based upon yield data for securities with similar characteristics or (2) by obtaining a direct written broker-dealer quotation from a dealer who has made a market in the security.
- A fixed income security acquired in a private placement transaction without registration is subject to restrictions on resale that can affect the security's liquidity and value. Among the various factors that can affect the value of a privately placed security are (1) whether the issuing company has freely trading fixed income securities of the same maturity and interest rate (either through an initial public offering or otherwise); (2) whether the company has an effective registration statement in place for the securities; and (3) whether a market is made in the securities. The securities normally will be valued at amortized cost unless the portfolio company's condition or other factors lead to a determination of value at a different amount.
- Short-term securities, including bonds, notes, debentures and other fixed income securities, and money market instruments such as certificates of deposit, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances and obligations of domestic and foreign banks, with remaining maturities of 60 days or less, for which reliable market quotations are readily available are valued on an amortized cost basis.
- Other assets will be valued at market value pursuant to written valuation procedures adopted by our Board of Directors, or if a market value cannot be obtained or if our Adviser determines that the value of a security as so obtained does not represent value as of the measurement date (due to a significant development subsequent to the time its price is determined or otherwise), value will be determined pursuant to the methodologies established by our Board of Directors.

Valuations of public company securities determined pursuant to fair value methodologies will be presented to our Board of Directors or a designated committee thereof for approval at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.

DISTRIBUTIONS

Once we are fully invested and to the extent we receive income, we intend to make monthly cash distributions to common shareholders. We expect to declare the initial distribution approximately 45 to 60 days, and to pay such distribution approximately 60 to 90 days, from the completion of this offering, depending upon market conditions. In addition, on an annual basis, we intend to distribute in the last calendar quarter realized net capital gains, if any.

We expect that the source of the cash payments we receive from our investments will constitute investment company taxable income, as well as long-term capital gains or return of capital from such investments. Investment company taxable income includes, among other items, dividends, interest (including any net tax-exempt interest), operational income from MLPs, and net short-term capital gains, less expenses. Long-term capital gains reflect the realized market price received in the sale of an investment security in excess of its cost basis, less net capital losses, including any capital loss carryforwards. A portion of distributions received from our investments may be sourced as return of capital.

The 1940 Act generally limits our long-term capital gain distributions to one per year, except for certain permitted distributions related to our qualification as a RIC. This limitation does not apply to that portion of our distributions that is not characterized as long-term capital gain. We may rely on a prior exemption obtained by our Adviser from Section 19(b) of the 1940 Act and Rule 19b-1 thereunder permitting us to make periodic distributions of long-term capital gains. For federal income tax purposes, we are required to distribute substantially all of our net investment income each year to avoid both federal income tax and potential excise tax. If our ability to make distributions on our common shares is limited, such limitations could, under certain circumstances, impair our ability to maintain our qualification for taxation as a RIC, which would have adverse consequences for our shareholders. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Various factors will affect the level of our income, such as our asset mix, security mix and covered call option overlay strategy. To permit us to maintain a more stable distribution, we may from time to time distribute less than the entire amount of income earned in a particular monthly period. The undistributed income would be available to supplement future distributions. As a result, the distributions paid by us for any particular monthly period may be more or less than the amount of income actually earned by us during that period. Undistributed income will add to our net asset value and, correspondingly, distributions from undistributed income will deduct from our net asset value. See "Risk Factors—Operational—Distribution Risks."

We intend to elect to be treated as, and to qualify each year for the special tax treatment afforded, a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. Our policy is to distribute to shareholders substantially all of our net investment company taxable income and any net realized long-term capital gains for each fiscal year in a manner that complies with the distribution requirement of the Code, so that we will not be subject to any federal income or excise taxes based on net income. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" for discussion regarding federal income tax requirements as a RIC.

For federal income tax purposes, distributions of investment company taxable income are generally taxable to shareholders as ordinary income. However, it is expected that part (but not all) of the distributions to our common shareholders of the Fund may be eligible for qualified dividend income treatment for individual and other non-corporate shareholders and the dividends received deduction for corporate shareholders, assuming the shareholder meets certain holding period and other requirements with respect to its Fund shares. Any distributions in excess of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated first, as a tax-deferred return of capital, which is applied against and will reduce the adjusted tax basis of shares and, after such adjusted basis is reduced to zero, will generally constitute capital gains. Any long-term capital gain distributions are taxable to shareholders as long-term capital gains regardless of the length of time shares have been held. Net capital gain distributions are not eligible for qualified dividend income treatment or the dividend received deduction. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" for a discussion regarding federal income tax requirements as a RIC, as well as the potential tax characterization of our distributions to shareholders.

If a shareholder's shares are registered directly with us or with a brokerage firm that participates in our automatic dividend reinvestment plan, distributions will be automatically reinvested in additional common shares under the automatic dividend reinvestment plan unless a shareholder elects to receive distributions in cash. If a shareholder elects to receive distributions in cash, payment will be made by check. See "Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan."

AUTOMATIC DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

General

Our Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the "Plan") will allow participating common shareholders to reinvest distributions in additional common shares. Common shares will be issued by us under the Plan when our common shares are trading at a premium to net asset value. If our common shares are trading at a discount to net asset value, shares issued under the Plan will be purchased on the open market. Common shares issued directly from us under the Plan will be acquired at the greater of (1) net asset value at the close of business on the payment date of the distribution, or (2) 95% of the market price per common share on the payment date. Common shares issued under the Plan when shares are trading at a discount to net asset value will be purchased in the market at market price or a negotiated price determined by Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the "Plan Agent").

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment

If a shareholder's shares are registered directly with us or with a brokerage firm that participates in our Plan through the facilities of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTC") and such shareholder's account is coded dividend reinvestment by such brokerage firm, all distributions are automatically reinvested for shareholders by the Plan Agent in additional common shares (unless a shareholder is ineligible or elects otherwise). If a shareholder's shares are registered with a brokerage firm that participates in the Plan through the facilities of DTC, but such shareholder's account is not coded dividend reinvestment by such brokerage firm or if a shareholder's shares are registered with a brokerage firm that does not participate in the Plan through the facilities of DTC, a shareholder will need to ask its investment executive what arrangements, if any, can be made to set up their account to participate in the Plan. In either case, until such arrangements are made, a shareholder will receive distributions in cash.

Shareholders who elect not to participate in the Plan will receive all distributions payable in cash paid by check mailed directly to the shareholder of record (or, if the shares are held in street or other nominee name, then to such nominee) by the Plan Agent, as dividend paying agent. Participation in the Plan is completely voluntary and may be terminated or resumed at any time without penalty by giving written, telephone or internet instructions to the Plan Agent; such termination will be effective with respect to a particular distribution if notice is received prior to the record date for such distribution.

Whenever we declare a distribution payable either in shares or in cash, non-participants in the Plan will receive cash, and participants in the Plan will receive the distribution in common shares. The shares are acquired by the Plan Agent for the participant's account, depending upon the circumstances described below, either (1) through receipt of additional common shares from us ("Additional Common Shares") or (2) by purchase of outstanding common shares on the open market ("open-market purchases") on the NYSE or elsewhere. If, on the payment date, the net asset value per common share is equal to or less than the market price per common share plus estimated brokerage commissions (such condition being referred to herein as "market premium"), the Plan Agent will receive Additional Common Shares from us for each participant's account. The number of Additional Common Shares to be credited to the participant's account will be determined by dividing the dollar amount of the dividend or distribution by the greater of (1) the net asset value per common share on the payment date, or (2) 95% of the market price per common share on the payment date.

If, on the payment date, the net asset value per common share exceeds the market price plus estimated per share fees, which include any applicable brokerage commissions the Plan Agent is required to pay (such condition being referred to herein as "market discount"), the Plan Agent will invest the distribution amount in shares acquired in open-market purchases as soon as practicable but in no event later than 30 days following the payment date. We expect to declare and pay monthly distributions. The weighted average price (including per share fees) of all common shares purchased by the Plan Agent as Plan Agent will be the price per common share allocable to each participant.

The Plan Agent maintains all shareholders' accounts in the Plan and furnishes written confirmation of each acquisition made for the participant's account as soon as practicable. Shares in the account of each Plan participant will be held by the Plan Agent in non-certificated form in the Plan Agent's name or that of its nominee, and each shareholder's proxy will include those shares purchased or received pursuant to the Plan. The Plan Agent will forward all proxy solicitation materials to participants and vote proxies for shares held pursuant to the Plan first in accordance with the instructions of the participants and then, with respect to any proxies not returned by such participant, in the same proportion as the Plan Agent votes the proxies returned by the participants.

There will be no charges with respect to shares issued directly by us as a result of distributions payable either in shares or in cash. However, each participant will be charged his or her pro rata share of brokerage commissions with respect to the Plan Agent's open-market purchases in connection with the reinvestment of distributions. There are currently no other direct service charges imposed on participants in the Plan.

The automatic reinvestment of distributions will not relieve participants of any federal, state or local income tax that may be payable (or required to be withheld) on such distributions. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."

Shareholders participating in the Plan may receive benefits not available to shareholders not participating in the Plan. If the market price plus per share fees of our common shares is higher than the net asset value, participants in the Plan will receive common shares at less than they could otherwise purchase such shares and will have shares with a cash value greater than the value of any cash distribution they would have received on their shares. If the market price plus per share fees is below the net asset value, participants will receive distributions of common shares with a net asset value greater than the value of any cash distribution they would have received on their shares. However, there may be insufficient shares available in the market to make distributions in shares at prices below the net asset value. In addition, because we do not redeem our shares, the price on resale may be more or less than the net asset value. See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" for a discussion of tax consequences of the Plan.

Experience under the Plan may indicate that changes are desirable. Accordingly, we reserve the right to amend or terminate the Plan if in the judgment of our Board of Directors such a change is warranted. The Plan may be terminated by the Plan Agent or by us upon notice through the Internet, by telephone or in writing mailed to each participant at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the termination. Upon any termination, the Plan Agent will cause the whole shares held by each participant to remain in book-entry form and cash adjustment for any fraction of a common share at the then-current market value of the common shares to be delivered to him or her less any applicable fees. If preferred, a participant may request the sale of all of the common shares held by the Plan Agent in his or her Plan account in order to terminate participation in the Plan. If a participant has terminated his or her participation in the Plan but continues to have common shares registered in his or her name, he or she may re-enroll in the Plan at any time by notifying the Plan Agent in writing at the address below. The terms and conditions of the Plan may be amended by the Plan Agent or by us at any time. Any such amendments to the Plan may be made by mailing to each participant appropriate written notice at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the amendment, except when necessary or appropriate to comply with applicable law or the rules or policies of the SEC or any other regulatory authority, such prior notice does not apply. The amendment will be deemed to be accepted by each participant unless, prior to the effective date thereof, the Plan Agent receives notice of the termination of the participant's account under the Plan. Any such amendment may include an appointment by the Plan Agent of a successor Plan Agent, subject to the prior written approval of the successor Plan Agent by us. All correspondence concerning the Plan should be directed to Computershare Trust Company, N.A. through the Internet at www.computershare.com/investors, by telephone at 1-877-373-6374 or in writing at P.O. Box 505000, Louisville, Kentucky 40233-5000.

Cash Purchase Option

In the future, we may amend the Plan to implement a cash purchase option, whereby participants in the Plan may elect to purchase additional common shares through optional cash investments in limited amounts on a quarterly or other periodic basis. If and when we implement the cash purchase option under the Plan, common shareholders will receive notice at least 60 days prior to its implementation and further details, including information on the offering price and other terms, the frequency of offerings and how to participate in the cash purchase option.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

The information contained under this heading is only a summary and is subject to the provisions contained in our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws and the laws of the State of Maryland.

Common Shares of Beneficial Interest

General. Our Declaration of Trust authorizes us to issue up to 100,000,000 common shares of beneficial interest, \$0.001 par value per share. Our Board of Directors may, without any action by our shareholders, amend our Declaration of Trust from time to time to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of beneficial interest or the number of shares of beneficial interest of any class or series that we have authority to issue under our Declaration of Trust and under the 1940 Act. In addition, our Declaration of Trust authorizes our Board of Directors, without any action by our shareholders, to classify and reclassify any unissued common shares and preferred shares into other classes or series of shares of beneficial interest from time to time by setting or changing the terms, preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications and terms and conditions of redemption for each class or series. Although we have no present intention of doing so, we could issue a class or series of shares that could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change in control of us that might otherwise be in the shareholders' best interests. Under Maryland law and our Declaration of Trust, shareholders generally are not liable for our debts or obligations.

All common shares offered pursuant to this prospectus will be, upon issuance, duly authorized, fully paid and nonassessable. All common shares offered pursuant to this prospectus will be of the same class and will have identical rights, as described below. Holders of common shares are entitled to receive distributions when authorized by the Board of Directors and declared by us out of assets legally available for the payment of distributions. Holders of common shares have no preference, conversion, exchange, sinking fund, redemption or appraisal rights and have no preemptive rights to subscribe for any of our securities. All common shares have equal distribution, liquidation and other rights.

Limitations on Distributions. If any preferred shares are outstanding, holders of common shares will not be entitled to receive any distributions from us unless we have paid all accumulated distributions on preferred shares and unless asset coverage (as defined in the 1940 Act) with respect to preferred shares would be at least 200% after giving effect to such distributions.

If any senior securities representing indebtedness are outstanding, holders of common shares will not be entitled to receive any distributions from us unless we have paid all accrued interest on such indebtedness and unless asset coverage (as defined in the 1940 Act) with respect to any outstanding indebtedness would be at least 300% after giving effect to such distributions. See "Leverage."

Liquidation Rights. Common shareholders are entitled to share ratably in the assets legally available for distribution to shareholders in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up, after payment of or adequate provision for all known debts and liabilities, including any outstanding debt securities or other borrowings and any interest accrued thereon. These rights are subject to the preferential rights of any other class or series of our shares of beneficial interest, including any preferred shares. The rights of common shareholders upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up would be subordinated to the rights of holders of any preferred shares or senior securities representing indebtedness.

Voting Rights. Each outstanding common share entitles the holder to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders, including the election of directors. The presence of the holders of shares of beneficial interest entitled to cast a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast (without regard to class) will constitute a quorum at a meeting of shareholders. Our Declaration of Trust provides that, except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws, directors will be elected by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of beneficial interest outstanding and entitled to vote thereon. The Bylaws provide that directors are elected by a plurality of

all the votes cast at a meeting of shareholders duly called and at which a quorum is present. There is no cumulative voting in the election of directors. Consequently, at each annual meeting of shareholders, the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of beneficial interest entitled to vote will be able to elect all of the successors of the class of directors whose terms expire at that meeting. Pursuant to the 1940 Act, holders of preferred shares will have the right to elect two directors at all times. Pursuant to our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws, the Board of Directors may amend the Bylaws to alter the vote required to elect directors.

Under the rules of the NYSE applicable to listed companies, we will be required to hold an annual meeting of shareholders in each fiscal year. If we are converted to an open-end company or if for any other reason the shares are no longer listed on the NYSE (or any other national securities exchange the rules of which require annual meetings of shareholders), we may amend our Bylaws so that we are not otherwise required to hold annual meetings of shareholders.

Market. Our common shares have been approved for listing on the NYSE under the trading or ticker symbol "TEAF," subject to notice of issuance.

Transfer Agent, Dividend Paying Agent and Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan Agent. Computershare Trust Company, N.A. / Computershare Inc., P.O. Box 30170, College Station, Texas 77842-3170, will serve as the transfer agent and agent for the Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan for our common shares and the dividend paying agent for our common shares.

Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest

General. Our Declaration of Trust authorizes the issuance of up to 10,000,000 preferred shares of beneficial interest, \$0.001 par value per share, with preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications and terms and conditions of redemption as determined by the Board of Directors.

Our Board of Directors may, without any action by our shareholders, amend our Declaration of Trust from time to time to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of beneficial interest or the number of shares of beneficial interest of any class or series that we have authority to issue under our Declaration of Trust and under the 1940 Act. In addition, our Declaration of Trust authorizes the Board of Directors, without any action by the shareholders, to classify and reclassify any unissued preferred shares into other classes or series of shares from time to time by setting or changing the terms, preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications and terms and conditions of redemption for each class or series.

Distributions. Holders of any preferred shares will be entitled to receive cash distributions, when, as and if authorized by the Board of Directors and declared by us, out of funds legally available therefor. The prospectus for any preferred shares will describe the distribution payment provisions for those shares. Distributions so declared and payable will be paid to the extent permitted under Maryland law and to the extent available and in preference to and priority over any distribution declared and payable on the common shares. Because we may invest up to 25% of our total assets in MLPs, which are expected to generate cash in excess of the taxable income allocated to holders, it is possible that distributions payable on preferred shares could exceed our current and accumulated earnings and profits, which would be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax-deferred return of capital to the extent of the basis of the shares on which the distribution is paid and thereafter as gain from the sale or exchange of the preferred shares.

Limitations on Distributions. If we have senior securities representing indebtedness outstanding, holders of preferred shares will not be entitled to receive any distributions from us unless asset coverage (as defined in the 1940 Act) with respect to outstanding debt securities and preferred shares would be at least 200% after giving effect to such distributions. See "Leverage."

Liquidation Rights. In the event of any voluntary or our involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of preferred shares would be entitled to receive a preferential liquidating distribution, which is expected to equal the original purchase price per share plus accumulated and unpaid distributions, whether or not declared, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of common shares. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distribution to which they are entitled, the holders of preferred shares will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of our assets. Preferred shares rank junior to our debt securities upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Voting Rights. Except as otherwise indicated in our Declaration of Trust or Bylaws, or as otherwise required by applicable law, holders of any preferred shares will have one vote per share and vote together with holders of common shares as a single class.

The 1940 Act requires that the holders of any preferred shares, voting separately as a single class, have the right to elect at least two directors at all times. The remaining directors will be elected by holders of common shares and preferred shares, voting together as a single class. In addition, subject to the prior rights, if any, of the holders of any other class of senior securities outstanding, the holders of any preferred shares have the right to elect a majority of the directors at any time two years' accumulated distributions on any preferred shares are unpaid. The 1940 Act also requires that, in addition to any approval by shareholders that might otherwise be required, the approval of the holders of a majority of shares of any outstanding preferred shares, voting separately as a class, would be required to (1) adopt any plan of reorganization that would adversely affect the preferred shares, and (2) take any action requiring a vote of security holders under Section 13(a) of the 1940 Act, including, among other things, changes in our subclassification as a closed-end investment company or changes in our fundamental investment restrictions. See "Certain Provisions in Our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws." As a result of these voting rights, our ability to take any such actions may be impeded to the extent that any of our preferred shares are outstanding.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of any outstanding preferred shares (unless a higher vote is required by the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which the Fund's preferred shares may be listed or traded), voting as a separate class, generally will be required to amend, alter or repeal any of the preferences, rights or powers of holders of preferred shares so as to affect materially and adversely such preferences, rights or powers. The class vote of holders of preferred shares described above will in each case be in addition to any other vote required to authorize the action in question.

CERTAIN PROVISIONS IN OUR DECLARATION OF TRUST AND BYLAWS

The following description of certain provisions of our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws is only a summary. For a complete description, please refer to our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws, which have been filed as exhibits to our registration statement on Form N-2, of which this prospectus forms a part.

Our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws include provisions that could delay, defer or prevent other entities or persons from acquiring control of us, causing us to engage in certain transactions or modifying our structure. Furthermore, these provisions can have the effect of depriving shareholders of the opportunity to sell their shares at a premium over prevailing market prices by discouraging third parties from seeking to obtain control of us. These provisions, all of which are summarized below, may be regarded as "anti-takeover" provisions.

Term

Our Declaration of Trust provides that the Fund will have a limited period of existence and will dissolve at the close of business twelve years from the effectiveness of the Trust's initial registration statement filed with the SEC (such date, including any extension, the "Termination Date"); provided that the Board may, in its sole discretion and without any action by the shareholders of the Fund, extend the Termination Date (1) for one period that may in no event exceed one year following the Termination Date, and (2) for one additional period that may in no event exceed one year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if our Board of Directors determines to cause the Fund to conduct an Eligible Tender Offer, and the Eligible Tender Offer is completed, our Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion and without any action by the shareholders of the Fund, eliminate the Termination Date and provide for our perpetual existence, subject to the terms and conditions described herein. Unless the Termination Date is eliminated as described herein on or before the Termination Date, we will cease our investment operations, retire or redeem our leverage facilities, liquidate our investment portfolio (to the extent possible) and distribute all of our liquidated net assets to common shareholders of record in one or more distributions on or after the Termination Date.

Our Declaration of Trust provides that an Eligible Tender Offer is a tender offer by the Fund to purchase up to 100% of the then-outstanding common shares as of a date within the 12 months preceding the Termination Date. It is anticipated that shareholders who properly tender common shares in the Eligible Tender Offer will receive a purchase price equal to the net asset value per share as of a date following the expiration date of the Eligible Tender Offer and prior to the payment date. The Declaration of Trust provides that, if the number of properly tendered common shares would result in the Trust having net assets of at least \$100 million in assets following the completion of the Eligible Tender Offer, then the Board of Directors may determine to eliminate the Termination Date and cause the Fund to have a perpetual existence. The Declaration of Trust provides that if net assets of the Fund would be less than \$100 million following the completion of the Eligible Tender Offer, the tender offer will not be completed, no common shares will be purchased and the Fund will dissolve as of the Termination Date.

Classification of the Board of Directors; Election of Directors

Our Declaration of Trust provides that our trustees are designated as directors, and that our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our Board of Directors.

Our Declaration of Trust provides that the number of directors may be established only by the Board of Directors pursuant to the Bylaws. The Bylaws provide that the number of directors may not be greater than nine or less than one. Subject to any applicable limitations of the 1940 Act, any vacancy may be filled, at any regular meeting or at any special meeting called for that purpose, only by a majority of the remaining directors, even if those remaining directors do not constitute a quorum and any director elected to fill a vacancy will serve for the remainder of the full term of the class in which the vacancy occurred and until a successor is elected and qualifies. Pursuant to our Declaration of Trust, the Board of Directors is divided into three classes: Class I,

Class II and Class III. Upon the expiration of their current terms, which expire in 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively, directors of each class will be elected to serve until the third annual meeting following their election and until their successors are duly elected and qualify. Each year only one class of directors will be elected by the shareholders. The classification of the Board of Directors should help to assure the continuity and stability of our strategies and policies as determined by the Board of Directors.

The classified Board provision could have the effect of making the replacement of incumbent directors more time-consuming and difficult. At least two annual meetings of shareholders, instead of one, generally will be required to effect a change in a majority of the Board of Directors. Thus, the classified Board provision could increase the likelihood that incumbent directors will retain their positions. The staggered terms of directors may delay, defer or prevent a change in control of the Board of Directors, even though a change in control might be in the best interests of the shareholders.

Removal of Directors

Our Declaration of Trust provides that, subject to the rights of holders of one or more classes of preferred shares, a director may be removed only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast in the election of directors. This provision, when coupled with the provisions in the Declaration of Trust and Bylaws authorizing only the Board of Directors to fill vacancies, precludes shareholders from removing incumbent directors, except for cause and by a substantial affirmative vote, and filling the vacancies created by the removal with nominees of shareholders.

Approval of Extraordinary Trust Action; Amendment of Declaration of Trust and Bylaws

Subject to certain exceptions described below, our Declaration of Trust provides for approval of amendments to the Declaration of Trust by the shareholders entitled to cast at least a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our Declaration of Trust also provides that (1) our liquidation or dissolution, or any merger, conversion, consolidation, share exchange or sale or exchange of all or substantially all of our assets that would require the approval of the stockholders of a Maryland corporation under the Maryland General Corporation Law, (2) certain transactions between us and any person or group of persons acting together, and any person controlling, controlled by or under common control with any such person or member of such group, that may exercise or direct the exercise of 10% or more of our voting power in the election of directors, (3) any amendment to our Declaration of Trust that would convert us from a closed-end investment company to an open-end investment company or otherwise make our common shares a redeemable security and (4) any amendment to certain provisions of our Declaration of Trust, including the provisions relating to the number, qualifications, classification, election and removal of directors, requires the approval of the shareholders entitled to cast at least 80% of the votes entitled to be cast on such matter. If such a proposal is approved by at least two-thirds of our Continuing Directors (defined below), in addition to approval by the full Board, such proposal may be approved by the shareholders entitled to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on such matter or, in the case of transactions described in (2) above or any merger, conversion, consolidation, share exchange or sale or exchange of all or substantially all of our assets, no shareholder approval is required unless expressly required by our Declaration of Trust or the 1940 Act. The "Continuing Directors" are defined in our Declaration of Trust as (1) our current directors ("Initial Directors"), (2) those directors whose nomination for election by the shareholders or whose election by the directors to fill vacancies is approved by a majority of Initial Directors then on the Board or (3) any successor directors whose nomination for election by the shareholders or whose election by the directors to fill vacancies is approved by a majority of the Continuing Directors or successor Continuing Directors then in office. This provision could make it more difficult for certain extraordinary transactions to be approved if they are opposed by the Continuing Directors and discourage proxy contests for control of the Board by persons wishing to cause such transactions to take place.

Notwithstanding the foregoing vote requirements, our Declaration of Trust provides that a sale or exchange of all or substantially all of our assets in connection with our termination or an Eligible Tender Offer does not require shareholder approval.

Subject to certain exceptions described above and as otherwise provided in the Declaration of Trust or in the terms of any series or class of shares of beneficial interest, a majority of the entire Board of Directors, with the vote of a majority of the Continuing Directors, may amend the Declaration of Trust without any action by the shareholder. Our Declaration of Trust and Bylaws provide that the Board of Directors has the exclusive power to make, alter, amend or repeal any provision of our Bylaws.

Advance Notice of Director Nominations and New Business

The Bylaws provide that, with respect to an annual meeting of shareholders, nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors and the proposal of other business to be considered by shareholders may be made only (1) pursuant to notice of the meeting, (2) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, or (3) by a shareholder who was a shareholder of record as of the record date for the meeting, at the time of giving notice and at the time of the meeting who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who has complied with the advance notice procedures of the Bylaws. With respect to special meetings of shareholders, only the business specified in the notice of the meeting may be brought before the meeting. Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors, or (2) provided that the Board of Directors has determined that directors will be elected at the meeting, by a shareholder who was a shareholders of record as of the record date for the meeting, at the time of giving notice and at the time of the meeting may be made only (1) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, or (2) provided that the Board of Directors has determined that directors will be elected at the meeting, by a shareholder who was a shareholders of record as of the record date for the meeting, at the time of giving notice and at the time of the meeting who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who has complied with the advance notice provisions of the Bylaws.

Shareholder-Requested Special Meetings

Our Bylaws provide that special meetings of shareholders may be called by the Board of Directors and certain of our officers. In addition, our Bylaws provide that, subject to the satisfaction of certain procedural and informational requirements by the shareholders requesting the meeting, a special meeting of shareholders will be called by our secretary upon the written request of shareholders entitled to cast not less than a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting.

Action by Shareholders

Under the Declaration of Trust and Bylaws, shareholder action can be taken only at an annual or special meeting of shareholders.

CLOSED-END COMPANY STRUCTURE

We are a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company and as such our shareholders will not have the right to cause us to redeem their shares. Instead, our common shares trade in the open market at a price that will be a function of several factors, including distribution levels (which are in turn affected by expenses), net asset value, distribution stability, portfolio credit quality, relative demand for and supply of such shares in the market, general market and economic conditions and other factors.

Shares of closed-end management investment companies frequently trade at a discount to their net asset value. This characteristic of shares of closed-end management investment companies is a risk separate and distinct from the risk that our net asset value may decrease as a result of investment activities. To the extent our common shares do trade at a discount, our Board of Directors may from time to time engage in open-market repurchases or tender offers for shares after balancing the benefit to shareholders of the increase in the net asset value per share resulting from such purchases against the decrease in our assets, the potential increase in the ratio of our expenses to our assets and the decrease in asset coverage with respect to any outstanding indebtedness or preferred shares. Any such purchase or tender offers may result in the temporary narrowing of any discount but will not necessarily have any long-term effect on the level of any discount. There is no guarantee or assurance that our Board of Directors will decide to engage in any of these actions. Nor is there any guarantee or assurance that such actions, if undertaken, would result in the shares trading at a price equal or close to net asset value per share. Any share repurchase or tender offers will be made in accordance with requirements of the 1940 Act, the Exchange Act and the principal stock exchange on which our common shares are traded.

Conversion to an open-end mutual fund is extremely unlikely in light of our investment objective and policies and would require approval of our Board of Directors and shareholder approval to amend our Declaration of Trust. If we converted to an open-end mutual fund, we would be required to redeem all senior notes and preferred shares then outstanding (requiring us, in turn, to liquidate a significant portion of our investment portfolio), and our common shares would no longer be listed on the NYSE or any other exchange. In contrast to a closed-end investment company, shareholders of an open-end investment company may require a fund to redeem its common shares at any time (except in certain circumstances as authorized by the 1940 Act or the rules thereunder) at their net asset value, without the discount commonly associated with closed-end investment companies. Open-end investment companies engage in a continuous offering of their shares and may maintain large cash positions or be required to liquidate favorable investments to meet redemptions. Open-end investment companies are thus subject to periodic asset in-flows and out-flows that can complicate portfolio management. In addition, certain of our investment company. Accordingly, conversion to an open-end investment company may require material changes to our investment policies.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion is a general summary of material U.S. federal income tax considerations affecting the Fund and its shareholders. The discussion reflects applicable U.S. federal income tax laws as of the date of this prospectus, which tax laws may be changed or subject to new interpretations by the courts or the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS"), possibly with retroactive effect. No attempt is made to present a detailed explanation of all U.S. federal income, estate, gift, state, local or foreign tax considerations affecting the Fund and its shareholders (including shareholders owning large positions in the Fund). The discussion set forth herein does not constitute tax advice. Investors are urged to consult their own tax advisers to determine the specific tax consequences to them of investing in the Fund, including applicable federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences to them or the effect of possible changes in tax laws.

In addition, no attempt is made to address tax considerations applicable to an investor with a special tax status, such as a financial institution, REIT, insurance company, regulated investment company, individual retirement account, other tax-exempt organization, dealer in securities or currencies, person holding shares of the Fund as part of a hedging, integrated, conversion or straddle transaction or constructive sale, trader in securities that has elected the mark-to-market method of accounting for its securities, U.S. holder (as defined below) whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, investor with "applicable financial statements" within the meaning of section 451(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or non-U.S. investor. Furthermore, this discussion does not reflect possible application of the alternative minimum tax. Unless otherwise noted, this discussion assumes the Fund's shares are held by U.S. persons and that such shares are held as capital assets.

A U.S. holder is a beneficial owner that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

- a citizen or individual resident of the United States (including certain former citizens and former long-term residents);
- a corporation or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia;
- an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or
- a trust with respect to which a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all of its substantial decisions or the trust has made a valid election in effect under applicable Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

A "Non-U.S. holder" is a beneficial owner of shares of the Fund that is an individual, corporation, trust or estate and is not a U.S. holder. If a partnership (including any entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds shares of the Fund, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership.

Taxation as a RIC

The Fund intends to elect to be treated as, and to qualify each year for the special tax treatment afforded, a regulated investment company (a "RIC") under Subchapter M of the Code. As long as the Fund meets certain requirements that govern the Fund's source of income, diversification of assets and distribution of earnings to shareholders, the Fund will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on income distributed (or treated as distributed, as described below) to its shareholders. With respect to the source of income requirement, the Fund must derive in each taxable year at least 90% of its gross income (including tax-exempt interest) from (1) dividends, interest, payments with respect to certain securities loans, gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, securities or foreign currencies or other income (including, but not limited to, gains from options, futures and forward contracts) derived with respect to its business of investing in such stock, securities or

currencies and (2) net income derived from interests in qualified publicly traded partnerships. A qualified publicly traded partnership is generally defined as a publicly traded partnership under section 7704 of the Code, but does not include a publicly traded partnership if 90% or more of its gross income is described in (1) above. For purposes of the income test, the Fund will be treated as receiving directly its share of the gross income of any partnership that is not a qualified publicly traded partnership.

With respect to the diversification of assets requirement, the Fund must diversify its holdings so that, at the end of each quarter of each taxable year, (1) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's total assets is represented by cash and cash items, U.S. government securities, the securities of other RICs and other securities, with such other securities limited for purposes of such calculation, in respect of any one issuer, to an amount not greater than 5% of the value of the Fund's total assets and not more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer and (2) not more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets is invested in the securities (other than U.S. government securities or the securities of other RICs) of any one issuer, the securities (other than the securities of other RICs) of two or more issuers that the Fund controls and that are determined to be engaged in the same, similar or related trades or businesses or the securities of one or more qualified publicly traded partnerships.

If the Fund qualifies as a RIC and distributes to its shareholders at least 90% of the sum of (1) its "investment company taxable income," as that term is defined in the Code (which includes, among other items, dividends, taxable interest and the excess of any net short-term capital gains over net long-term capital losses, as reduced by certain deductible expenses) without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and (2) the excess of its gross tax-exempt interest, if any, over certain deductions attributable to such interest that are otherwise disallowed, the Fund will be relieved of U.S. federal income tax on any income of the Fund, including long-term capital gains, distributed to shareholders. However, if the Fund retains any investment company taxable income or "net capital gain" (i.e., the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), it will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate federal income tax rates on the amount retained. The Fund intends to distribute at least annually substantially all of its investment company taxable income, net tax-exempt interest and net capital gain. Under the Code, the Fund generally will also be subject to a nondeductible 4% federal excise tax on the undistributed portion of its ordinary income and capital gains if it fails to meet certain distribution requirements with respect to each calendar year. In order to avoid the 4% federal excise tax, the required minimum distribution is generally equal to the sum of (1) 98% of the Fund's ordinary income (computed on a calendar year basis), (2) 98.2% of the Fund's capital gain net income (generally computed for the one-year period ending on October 31), and (3) certain amounts from previous years to the extent such amounts have not been treated as distributed or been subject to tax under Subchapter M of the Code. The Fund generally intends to make distributions in a timely manner in an amount at least equal to the required minimum distribution and therefore, under normal conditions, does not currently expect to be subject to this excise tax. In addition, a domestic Subsidiary generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates on its taxable income, which taxes (and any other taxes borne by Subsidiaries) would adversely affect the returns from investments held through the Subsidiaries.

The Fund intends to invest a portion of its assets in MLPs. Net income derived from an interest in a qualified publicly traded partnership, which generally includes MLPs, is included in the sources of income from which a RIC must derive 90% of its gross income. The Fund intends to invest only in MLPs that will constitute qualified publicly traded partnerships for purposes of the RIC rules.

Failure to Qualify as a RIC

If the Fund fails to qualify as a RIC in any taxable year, it will be taxed in the same manner as an ordinary corporation on its taxable income and distributions to the Fund's shareholders will not be deductible by the Fund in computing its taxable income. In such event, the Fund's distributions, to the extent derived from the Fund's current or accumulated earnings and profits, would be taxed to shareholders as dividend income. Such distributions would generally be eligible for the dividends received deduction available to corporate shareholders, and non-corporate shareholders would generally be able to treat such distributions as "qualified dividend

income" eligible for reduced rates of U.S. federal income taxation, provided in each case that certain holding period and other requirements are satisfied. Distributions in excess of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits would be treated first as a return of capital to the extent of the shareholders' tax basis in their Fund shares, and any remaining distributions would be treated as a capital gain. Current earnings and profits are generally treated, for federal income tax purposes, as first being used to pay distributions on preferred shares and then to the extent remaining, if any, to pay distributions on common shares. To qualify as a RIC in a subsequent taxable year, the Fund would be required to satisfy the source-of-income, the asset diversification and the annual distribution requirements for that year and dispose of any earnings and profits from any year in which the Fund failed to qualify as a RIC. Subject to a limited exception applicable to RICs that qualified as such under the Code for at least one year prior to disqualification and that requalify as a RIC no later than the second year following the nonqualifying year, the Fund would be subject to tax on any unrealized built-in gains in the assets held by it during the period in which the Fund failed to qualify as a RIC that are recognized within the subsequent five years, unless the Fund made an election to pay corporate-level tax on such built-in gain at the time of its requalification as a RIC.

Taxation of Certain Fund Investments

MLP Equity Securities

MLPs are generally treated as publicly traded partnerships under the Code. The Code generally requires publicly traded partnerships to be treated as corporations for federal income tax purposes. If, however, a publicly traded partnership satisfies certain requirements, the publicly traded partnership will be treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Specifically, if a publicly traded partnership derives 90% or more of its gross income from qualifying sources, such as interest, dividends, real property rents, gain from the sale or other disposition of real property, income and gain from certain mineral or natural resources activities, income and gain from the transportation or storage of certain fuels, gain from the sale or disposition of a capital asset held for the production of such income, and in certain circumstances, income and gain from commodities or futures, forwards and options with respect to commodities, then the publicly traded partnership will be treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Mineral or natural resources activities include exploration, development, mining or production, processing, refining, transportation (including pipelines transporting gas, oil or products thereof) and the marketing of any mineral or natural resource (including fertilizer, geothermal energy and timber) or industrial source carbon dioxide. Most of the MLPs in which the Fund will invest are expected to be treated as partnerships for federal income tax purposes, but this will not always be the case and some of the MLPs in which the Fund invests may be treated as corporations. References in this discussion to MLPs include only those MLPs that are treated as partnerships for federal income tax purposes.

MLPs treated as partnerships for federal income tax purposes are taxed differently from corporations. A corporation is required to pay federal income tax on its income, and to the extent the corporation makes distributions to its stockholders in the form of dividends from current or accumulated earnings and profits, its stockholders are required to pay federal income tax on such dividends. For this reason, it is said that corporate income is taxed at two levels. Partnerships, in contrast, generally pay no federal income tax at the entity level. The partnership's items of taxable income, gain, loss, deductions, expenses and credits are generally allocated among all the partners based on their interests in the partnership. Each partner is required to include in income its allocable shares of these tax items. Partnership income is thus said to be generally taxed only at one level—at the partner level.

When the Fund invests in the equity securities of an MLP taxed as a partnership, the Fund will be a partner in such MLP. Accordingly, the Fund will be required to include in its taxable income its allocable share of the income, gains, losses, deductions and tax credits recognized by each such MLP, regardless of whether the MLP distributes cash to the Fund. Cash distributions from an MLP to the Fund will be treated as a return of capital to the extent of the Fund's basis in the MLP interest and as gain from the sale or exchange of the MLP interest to the extent the distribution exceeds the Fund's basis in the MLP interest. As discussed above, in order to qualify as a RIC, the Fund must distribute to shareholders at least annually all or substantially all of its investment company taxable income (determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid), including such income that is allocated to the Fund from an MLP regardless of whether the MLP makes a cash distribution of such income to the Fund. As a result, if the taxable income allocated to the Fund from an MLP exceeds the cash distributions received from the MLP, the Fund may be required to sell other securities under disadvantageous circumstances to generate cash, or may have to leverage itself by borrowing the cash, in order to satisfy these distribution requirements.

The Fund will recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of an MLP interest equal to the difference between the amount realized by the Fund on the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition and the Fund's basis in the MLP interest. The amount realized by the Fund generally will be the amount paid by the purchaser of the MLP interest plus the Fund's allocable share, if any, of the MLP's debt that was allocated to the Fund prior to such sale, exchange or other taxable disposition. The Fund's basis in an MLP interest generally is equal to the amount the Fund paid for the MLP interest, (1) increased by the Fund's allocable share of the MLP's net taxable income and certain MLP debt, if any, and (2) decreased by the Fund's allocable share of the MLP's net losses and any distributions received by the Fund from the MLP. Although any distribution by an MLP to the Fund in excess of the Fund's allocable share of such MLP's net taxable income may create a temporary economic benefit to the Fund, such distribution will decrease the Fund's basis in its MLP interest and will therefore increase the amount of gain (or decrease the amount of loss) that will be recognized on the sale of the MLP interest by the Fund. A portion of any gain or loss recognized by the Fund on a disposition of an MLP interest (or by an MLP on a disposition of an underlying asset) may be taxed as ordinary income under the Code to the extent attributable to assets of the MLP that give rise to depreciation recapture, intangible drilling and development cost recapture or other "unrealized receivables" or "inventory items" under the Code. Any such gain may exceed net taxable gain realized on the disposition and will be recognized even if there is a net taxable loss on the disposition. The Fund's net capital losses may be used only to offset capital gains and therefore could not be used to offset gains that are treated as ordinary income. Thus, the Fund could recognize both gain that is treated as ordinary income and a capital loss on a disposition of an MLP interest (or on an MLP's disposition of an underlying asset) and would not be able to use the capital loss to offset that ordinary income.

As discussed above, net income derived from an interest in a qualified publicly traded partnership is included in the sources of income from which a RIC must derive at least 90% of its gross income. However, not more than 25% of the value of a RIC's total assets can be invested in the securities of qualified publicly traded partnerships. No more than 25% of the value of the Fund's total assets will be invested in the securities of qualified publicly traded partnerships.

The Fund's allocable share of certain percentage depletion deductions and intangible drilling costs of MLPs taxed as partnerships may be treated as items of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax (the "AMT"). The Fund intends to apportion these items in the same proportion that dividends (other than capital gain dividends) paid to each shareholder bear to the Fund's taxable income (determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction).

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1, 2026, certain income from investments in MLPs is included in the "combined qualified business income amount" that is eligible for a 20% federal income tax deduction in the case of individuals, trusts and estates. RICs currently cannot pass the special character of this income through to shareholders. The IRS is currently evaluating whether it is appropriate to provide conduit treatment for such income. However, without any further legislation or guidance from the IRS, if the Fund invests in MLPs, shareholders of the Fund will not be entitled to this deduction while direct investors in MLPs may be entitled to this deduction.

Municipal Securities and Other Debt Instruments

The Fund expects that it will invest less than 50% of its total assets in municipal securities and that the municipal securities in which it invests will typically be taxable municipal securities whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax. As a result, the Fund does not expect to be eligible to pay "exempt-interest dividends" to

its shareholders, and interest on municipal securities will be taxable to shareholders of the Fund when received as a distribution from the Fund. In addition, gains realized by the Fund on the sale or exchange of municipal securities will be taxable to shareholders of the Fund when distributed to them.

The Fund may acquire debt securities that are market discount bonds. A market discount bond is a security acquired in the secondary market at a price below its redemption value (or its adjusted issue price if it is also an original issue discount bond). If the Fund invests in a market discount bond, it will be required to treat any gain recognized on the disposition of such market discount bond as ordinary taxable income to the extent of the accrued market discount unless the Fund elects to include the market discount in taxable income as it accrues.

If the Fund invests in certain pay-in-kind securities, zero coupon securities, deferred interest securities or, in general, any other securities with original issue discount (or with market discount if the Fund elects to include market discount in income currently), the Fund must accrue income on such investments for each taxable year, which generally will be prior to the receipt of the corresponding cash payments. However, the Fund must distribute to shareholders, at least annually, all or substantially all of its investment company taxable income (determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid), including such income it is required to accrue, to qualify as a RIC and avoid federal income and excise taxes. Therefore, the Fund may have to dispose of its portfolio securities under disadvantageous circumstances to generate cash, or may have to leverage itself by borrowing the cash, to satisfy these distribution requirements.

The Fund's investment in lower rated or unrated debt securities may present tax risks for the Fund if the issuers of these securities default on their obligations because the federal income tax consequences to a holder of such securities are not certain.

Options and Other Derivative Instruments

The Fund's transactions in options and other derivative instruments will be subject to special provisions of the Code that, among other things, may affect the character of gains and losses realized by the Fund (i.e., may affect whether gains or losses are ordinary or capital or short-term or long-term), may accelerate recognition of income to the Fund and may defer Fund losses. These rules could, therefore, affect the character, amount and timing of distributions to shareholders. These provisions (1) will also require the Fund to mark-to-market certain positions in its portfolio (i.e., treat them as if they were closed out) and (2) may cause the Fund to recognize income without receiving cash with which to make distributions in amounts necessary to satisfy the distribution requirements for qualifying to be taxed as a RIC and for avoiding federal income and excise taxes. The Fund will monitor its transactions, will make the appropriate tax elections and will make the appropriate entries in its books and records in order to mitigate the effect of these rules and prevent disqualification of the Fund from being taxed as a RIC.

The taxation of options is generally governed by Code section 1234. Pursuant to Code section 1234, if an option written by the Fund expires unexercised, the premium received is short-term capital gain to the Fund. If the Fund enters into a closing transaction, the difference between the amount paid to close out its position and the premium received for writing the option is short-term capital gain or loss. If a call option written by the Fund is cash settled, any resulting gain or loss generally will be short-term capital gain or loss.

Offsetting positions held by the Fund involving certain derivative instruments, such as options, forward and futures, as well as its long and short positions in portfolio securities, may be considered "straddles" for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The Code contains special rules that apply to straddles, defined generally as the holding of "offsetting positions with respect to personal property." For example, the straddle rules normally apply when a taxpayer holds stock and an offsetting option with respect to such stock or substantially identical stock or securities. In general, investment positions will be offsetting if there is a substantial diminution in the risk of loss from holding one position by reason of holding one or more other positions. If two or more positions constitute a straddle, long-term capital gain may be recharacterized as short-term capital gain or short-term

capital loss as long-term capital loss. In addition, recognition of a realized loss from one position must generally be deferred to the extent of unrecognized gain in an offsetting position and distributions attributable to dividends, if any, on the stocks held as part of a straddle may not qualify as qualified dividend income or for the corporate dividends received deduction. Interest and other carrying charges allocable to personal property that is part of a straddle are not currently deductible but must instead be capitalized. The application of the straddle rules to certain offsetting Fund positions can therefore affect the amount, timing and/or character of distributions to shareholders and may result in significant differences from the amount, timing and/or character of distributions that would have been made by the Fund if it had not entered into offsetting positions in respect of certain of its portfolio securities.

To the extent that the call options that the Fund writes on its portfolio securities are "qualified covered call options," the holding of the call options and the underlying securities generally will not be treated as a straddle subject to the straddle rules described above. In general, a qualified covered call option is an option that is written (sold) with respect to stock that is held or acquired by a taxpayer in connection with granting the option which meets certain requirements, including: the option is exchange-traded or, if over-the-counter, meets certain IRS requirements, is granted more than 30 days prior to expiration, is not "deep-in-the-money" (within the meaning of section 1092), is not granted by an options dealer (within the meaning of section 1256(g)(8)) in connection with the option dealer's activity of dealing in options and gain or loss with respect to such option is not ordinary income or loss. Provided the Fund's covered calls meet the definition of qualified covered calls and are not part of a larger straddle, the general tax straddle holding period termination rules will not apply. As a result, dividends received with respect to stock held as part of the straddle may be eligible for qualified dividend income treatment and the corporate dividends received deduction (assuming all other relevant requirements are met). In addition, the general tax straddle rules requiring loss deferral and the capitalization of certain interest expense and carrying charges will not apply. Qualified covered call option positions are, however, subject to special rules in the case of options which are in-the-money (but still not "deep-in-the-money") or for positions which are closed near year end (and not within the same year end).

The Fund may enter into transactions that are treated as "section 1256 contracts" under the Code. In general, the Fund would be required to treat any section 1256 contracts as if they were sold for their fair market value (i.e., mark-to-market) at the end of the Fund's taxable year (and on October 31 of each year for purposes of the 4% excise tax) and would be required to recognize gain or loss on such deemed sale for federal income tax purposes even though the Fund did not actually sell the contract and receive cash. Sixty percent of the gain or loss on such deemed sales or any actual sales of section 1256 contracts would be treated as long-term capital gain or loss and 40% of such gain or loss would be treated as short-term capital gain or loss ("60/40 gain or loss").

The Code permits a taxpayer to elect to offset gains and losses from positions that are part of a "mixed straddle." A "mixed straddle" is any straddle in which one or more but not all positions are section 1256 contracts. The Fund may be eligible to elect to establish one or more mixed straddle accounts for certain of its mixed straddle trading positions. The mixed straddle account rules require a daily "mark-to-market" of all open positions in the account and a daily netting of gains and losses from all positions in the account. At the end of a taxable year, the annual net gains or losses from the mixed straddle account are recognized for federal income tax purposes. The net capital gain or loss is treated as 60/40 gain or loss if it is attributable to the section 1256 contract positions or all short-term capital gain or loss if it is attributable to the non-section 1256 contract positions.

The wash sale rules may apply to prevent the recognition of loss by the Fund from the disposition of stock or securities at a loss in a case in which identical or substantially identical stock or securities (or an option to acquire such property) is or has been acquired within a prescribed period.

The Fund's entry into a short sale transaction, an option or certain other contracts could be treated as the constructive sale of an appreciated financial position, causing the Fund to realize gain, but not loss, on the position.

Other Considerations

The application of certain requirements for qualification as a RIC and the application of certain other federal income tax rules may be unclear in some respects in connection with certain investments. As a result, the Fund may be required to limit the extent to which it invests in such investments and it is also possible that the IRS may not agree with the Fund's treatment of such investments. In addition, the tax treatment of certain investments may be affected by future legislation, Treasury Regulations and guidance issued by the IRS (which could apply retroactively) that could affect the timing, character and amount of the Fund's income and gains and distributions to shareholders, affect whether the Fund has made sufficient distributions and otherwise satisfied the requirements to maintain its qualification as a RIC and avoid federal income and excise taxes or limit the extent to which the Fund may invest in certain investments in the future.

Certain of the Fund's investment practices are subject to special and complex federal income tax provisions that may, among other things, (1) convert distributions that would otherwise constitute qualified dividend income into ordinary income taxed at the higher rate applicable to ordinary income, (2) treat distributions that would otherwise be eligible for the corporate dividends received deduction as ineligible for such treatment, (3) disallow, suspend or otherwise limit the allowance of certain losses or deductions, (4) convert long-term capital gain into short-term capital gain or ordinary income, (5) convert an ordinary loss or deduction into a capital loss (the deductibility of which is more limited), (6) cause the Fund to recognize income or gain without a corresponding receipt of cash, (7) adversely affect the time as to when a purchase or sale of stock or securities is deemed to occur, (8) adversely alter the characterization of certain complex financial transactions, and (9) produce income that will not be included in the sources of income from which a RIC must derive at least 90% of its gross income each year. While it may not always be successful in doing so, the Fund will seek to avoid or minimize any adverse tax consequences of its investment practices.

The Fund may be subject to withholding and other taxes imposed by foreign countries, including taxes on interest, dividends and capital gains with respect to its investments in those countries, which would, if imposed, reduce the yield on or return from those investments. Tax treaties between certain countries and the United States may reduce or eliminate such taxes in some cases. The Fund does not expect to satisfy the requirements for passing through to its shareholders their pro rata shares of qualified foreign taxes paid by the Fund, with the result that shareholders will not be entitled to a tax deduction or credit for such taxes on their own U.S. federal income tax returns, although the Fund's payment of such taxes will remain eligible for a foreign tax credit or a deduction in computing the Fund's taxable income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses realized by the Fund in connection with certain transactions involving foreign currency-denominated debt securities, certain options and futures contracts relating to foreign currency, foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currencies, or payables or receivables denominated in a foreign currency are subject to section 988 of the Code, which generally causes such gain and loss to be treated as ordinary income or loss.

Recent tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 provides a limitation on the deductibility of business interest. Generally, the provision limits the deduction for net business interest expenses to 30% of a taxpayer's adjusted taxable income. The deduction for interest expenses is not limited to the extent of any business interest income, which is interest income attributable to a trade or business and not investment income. The IRS has issued proposed regulations clarifying that all interest expense and interest income of a RIC is treated as properly allocable to a trade or business for purposes of the limitation on the deductibility of business interest. As a result, this limitation may impact the Fund's ability to use leverage (e.g., borrow money, issue debt securities, etc.).

Taxation for U.S. Shareholders

Assuming the Fund qualifies as a RIC, distributions paid to you by the Fund from its investment company taxable income generally will be taxable to you as ordinary income to the extent of the Fund's earnings and

profits, whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional shares. A portion of such distributions (if designated by the Fund) may qualify (1) in the case of corporate shareholders, for the dividends received deduction under section 243 of the Code to the extent that the Fund's income consists of dividend income from U.S. corporations, excluding distributions from certain entities, including REITs, or (2) in the case of individual shareholders, as qualified dividend income eligible to be taxed at the federal income tax rates applicable to net capital gain under section 1(h)(11) of the Code to the extent that the Fund receives qualified dividend income, and provided in each case that certain holding period and other requirements are met at both the Fund and shareholder levels. Qualified dividend income is, in general, dividend income from taxable domestic corporations and qualified foreign corporations (for example, generally, if the issuer is incorporated in a possession of the United States or in a country with a qualified comprehensive income tax treaty with the United States, or if the shares with respect to which such dividend is paid are readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States). To be treated as qualified dividend income, the shareholder must hold the shares paying otherwise qualifying dividend income more than 60 days during the 121-day period beginning 60 days before the ex-dividend date (or, in the case of certain preferred shares, more than 90 days during the 181-day period beginning 90 days before the ex-dividend date). A shareholder's holding period may be reduced for purposes of this rule if the shareholder engages in certain risk reduction transactions with respect to the shares. A qualified foreign corporation generally excludes any foreign corporation that, for the taxable year of the corporation in which the dividend was paid or the preceding taxable year, is a passive foreign investment company. Distributions made to you from an excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital losses ("capital gain dividends"), including capital gain dividends credited to you but retained by the Fund, will be taxable to you as long-term capital gain if they have been properly designated by the Fund, regardless of the length of time you have owned our shares.

Distributions in excess of the Fund's earnings and profits will be treated by you, first, as a tax-free return of capital, which is applied against and will reduce the adjusted basis of your shares and, after such adjusted basis is reduced to zero, generally will constitute capital gain to you. After the close of its taxable year, the Fund will provide you with information on the federal income tax status of the dividends and distributions you received from the Fund during the year.

The Fund intends in general to apportion items of tax preference for purposes of the AMT in the same proportion that dividends (other than capital gain dividends) paid to each shareholder bear to the Fund's taxable income (determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction). For shareholders subject to the AMT this may affect the shareholders' AMT liability.

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1, 2026, qualified REIT dividends (i.e., REIT dividends other than capital gain dividends and portions of REIT dividends designated as qualified dividend income) are eligible for a 20% federal income tax deduction in the case of individuals, trusts and estates. If the Fund receives qualified REIT dividends, it may elect to pass the special character of this income through to its shareholders. To be eligible to treat distributions from the Fund as qualified REIT dividends, a shareholder must hold shares of the Fund for more than 45 days during the 91-day period beginning on the date that is 45 days before the date on which the shares become ex-dividend with respect to such dividend and the shareholder must not be under an obligation (whether pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property. If the Fund does not elect to pass the special character of this income through to shareholder does not satisfy the above holding period requirements, the shareholder will not be entitled to the 20% deduction for the shareholder's share of the Fund's qualified REIT dividend income while direct investors in REITs may be entitled to the deduction.

Sales and other dispositions of the Fund's shares generally are taxable events. You should consult your own tax adviser with reference to your individual circumstances to determine whether any particular transaction in the Fund's shares is properly treated as a sale or exchange for federal income tax purposes and the tax treatment of any gains or losses recognized in such transactions. The sale or other disposition of shares of the Fund generally will result in capital gain or loss to you, equal to the difference between the amount realized and your adjusted basis in the shares sold or exchanged (taking into account any reductions in such basis resulting from prior

returns of capital), and will be long-term capital gain or loss if your holding period for the shares is more than one year at the time of sale. Any loss upon the sale or exchange of shares held for six months or less will be treated as long-term capital loss to the extent of any capital gain dividends you received (including amounts credited as an undistributed capital gain dividend) with respect to such shares. A loss you realize on a sale or exchange of shares of the Fund generally will be disallowed if you acquire other shares of the Fund (whether through the automatic reinvestment of dividends or otherwise) or other substantially identical shares within a 61-day period beginning 30 days before and ending 30 days after the date that you dispose of the shares. In such case, the basis of the shares acquired will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss. Present law taxes both longterm and short-term capital gain of corporations at the same rate applicable to ordinary income of corporations. For non-corporate taxpayers, short-term capital gain will currently be taxed at the rate applicable to ordinary income, while long-term capital gain generally will be taxed at the long-term capital gain rates. Capital losses are subject to certain limitations.

For purpose of determining (1) whether the annual distribution requirement to maintain RIC status is satisfied for any year and (2) the amount of capital gain dividends paid for that year, the Fund may, under certain circumstances, elect to treat a distribution that is paid during the following taxable year as if it had been paid during the taxable year in question. If the Fund makes such an election, the U.S. shareholder will still be treated as receiving the distribution in the taxable year in which the distribution is made. However, if the Fund pays you a distribution in January that was declared in the previous October, November or December to shareholders of record on a specified date in one of such months, then such distribution will be treated for federal income tax purposes as being paid by the Fund and received by you on December 31 of the year in which the distribution was declared. A shareholder may elect not to have all distributions automatically reinvested in Fund shares pursuant to the Plan. If a shareholder elects not to participate in the Plan, such shareholder will receive distributions in cash. For taxpayers subject to U.S. federal income tax, all distributions generally will be taxable, as discussed above, regardless of whether a shareholder takes them in cash or they are reinvested pursuant to the Plan in additional shares of the Fund.

If a shareholder's distributions are automatically reinvested pursuant to the Plan, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the shareholder generally will be treated as having received a taxable distribution in the amount of the cash dividend that the shareholder would have received if the shareholder had elected to receive cash. Under certain circumstances, however, if a shareholder's distributions are automatically reinvested pursuant to the Plan and the Plan Agent invests the distribution in newly issued shares of the Fund, the shareholder may be treated as receiving a taxable distribution equal to the fair market value of the shares the shareholder receives.

The Fund intends to distribute substantially all realized capital gains, if any, at least annually. If, however, the Fund were to retain any net capital gain, the Fund may designate the retained amount as undistributed capital gains in a notice to shareholders who, if subject to U.S. federal income tax on long-term capital gains, (1) will be required to include in income as long-term capital gain, their proportionate shares of such undistributed amount and (2) will be entitled to credit their proportionate shares of the federal income tax paid by the Fund on the undistributed amount against their U.S. federal income tax liabilities, if any, and to claim refunds to the extent the credit exceeds such liabilities. If such an event occurs, the basis of the shares owned by a shareholder of the Fund will, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, generally be increased by the difference between the amount of undistributed net capital gain included in the shareholder's gross income and the tax deemed paid by the shareholder.

Backup Withholding

The Fund is required in certain circumstances to backup withhold at a current rate of 24% on distributions and certain other payments paid to certain holders of the Fund's shares who do not furnish the Fund with their correct taxpayer identification number (in the case of individuals, their social security number) and certain certifications or who are otherwise subject to backup withholding. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld from payments made to you may be refunded or credited against your U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

Medicare Tax

An additional 3.8% tax is imposed on the net investment income of certain individuals with a modified adjusted gross income of over \$200,000 (\$250,000 in the case of joint filers) and on the undistributed net investment income of certain estates and trusts. For these purposes, "net investment income" generally will include interest, dividends, annuities, royalties, rent, net gain attributable to the disposition of property not held in a trade or business (including net gain from the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of shares of the Fund) and certain other income, but will be reduced by any deductions properly allocable to such income or net gain. Thus, certain of our taxable distributions and gains on the sale of our shares to shareholders may be subject to this additional tax.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Shareholders

The following discussion is a general summary of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to a Non-U.S. holder of our shares (a "Non-U.S. Shareholder").

This summary does not purport to be a complete description of the income tax considerations for a Non-U.S. Shareholder. For example, the following does not describe income tax consequences that are assumed to be generally known by investors or certain considerations that may be relevant to certain types of holders subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws. This summary does not discuss any aspects of U.S. estate or gift tax or state or local tax. In addition, this summary does not address (1) any Non-U.S. Shareholder that holds, at any time, more than 5% percent of the Fund's shares, directly or under ownership attribution rules applicable for purposes of section 897 of the Code, or (2) any Non-U.S. Shareholder whose ownership of shares of the Fund is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States.

As indicated above, the Fund intends to elect to be treated, and to qualify each year, as a RIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes. This summary is based on the assumption that the Fund will qualify as a RIC in each of its taxable years. Distributions of the Fund's investment company taxable income to Non-U.S. Shareholders will, except as discussed below, be subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax at a 30% rate (or lower rate provided by an applicable income tax treaty) to the extent of the Fund's current and accumulated earnings and profits. In order to obtain a reduced rate of withholding, a Non-U.S. Shareholder will be required to provide the Fund with the applicable IRS Form W-8 certifying its entitlement to benefits under a treaty. The Fund generally will not be required to withhold tax on any amounts paid to a Non-U.S. Shareholder with respect to dividends attributable to "qualified short-term gain" (i.e., the excess of net short-term capital gain over net long-term capital loss) designated as such by the Fund and dividends attributable to certain U.S. source interest income that would not be subject to federal withholding tax if earned directly by a non-U.S. person, provided such amounts are properly designated by the Fund. The Fund may choose not to designate such amounts.

Actual or deemed distributions of the Fund's net capital gains to a Non-U.S. Shareholder, and gains realized by a Non-U.S. Shareholder upon the sale of the Fund's shares, will not be subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax and generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless the Non-U.S. Shareholder is an individual, has been present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year and certain other conditions are satisfied.

If the Fund distributes its net capital gains in the form of deemed rather than actual distributions (which the Fund may do in the future), a Non-U.S. Shareholder may be entitled to a federal income tax credit or tax refund equal to the shareholder's allocable share of the tax the Fund paid on the capital gains deemed to have been distributed. In order to obtain the refund, the Non-U.S. Shareholder must obtain a U.S. taxpayer identification number and file a federal income tax return even if the Non-U.S. Shareholder would not otherwise be required to obtain a U.S. taxpayer identification number or file a federal income tax return.

A Non-U.S. Shareholder who is a non-resident alien individual, and who is otherwise subject to withholding of federal income tax, may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding of federal income tax on

dividends unless the Non-U.S. Shareholder provides us or the dividend paying agent with an IRS Form W-8BEN (or an acceptable substitute form) or otherwise meets documentary evidence requirements for establishing that it is a Non-U.S. Shareholder or otherwise establishes an exemption from backup withholding. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a Non-U.S. Shareholder will be allowed as a credit against such Non-U.S. Shareholder's United States federal income tax liability and may entitle such holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

Special rules apply to foreign persons who receive distributions from the Fund that are attributable to gain from "United States real property interests" ("USRPIs"). The Code defines USRPIs to include direct holdings of U.S. real property and any interest (other than an interest solely as a creditor) in a "United States real property holding corporation" or a former United States real property holding corporation. The Code defines a United States real property holding corporation as any corporation whose USRPIs make up 50% or more of the fair market value of its USRPIs, its interests in real property located outside the United States, plus any other assets it uses in a trade or business. In general, if the Fund is a United States real property holding corporation (determined without regard to certain exceptions), distributions by the Fund that are attributable to (1) gains realized on the disposition of USPRIs by the Fund and (2) distributions received by the Fund from a lower-tier RIC or REIT that the Fund is required to treat as USRPI gain in its hands will retain their character as gains realized from USRPIs in the hands of the foreign persons and will be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax. In addition, such distributions at regular U.S. federal income tax rates. The consequences to a non-U.S. shareholder, including the rate of such withholding and character of such distributions (e.g., ordinary income or USRPI gain) will vary depending on the extent of the non-U.S. shareholder's current and past ownership of the Fund.

In addition, if the Fund is a United States real property holding corporation or former United States real property holding corporation, the Fund may be required to withhold U.S. tax upon a redemption of shares by a greater-than-5% shareholder that is a foreign person, and that shareholder would be required to file a U.S. income tax return for the year of the disposition of the USRPI and pay any additional tax due on the gain. However, no such withholding is generally required with respect to amounts paid in redemption of shares of a fund if the fund is a domestically controlled qualified investment entity, or, in certain other limited cases, if a fund (whether or not domestically controlled) holds substantial investments in RICs that are domestically controlled qualified investment entities.

Non-U.S. persons should consult their own tax advisers with respect to the U.S. federal income tax and withholding tax and state, local and foreign tax consequences of an investment in the shares.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

Sections 1471-1474 of the Code and the U.S. Treasury and IRS guidance issued thereunder (collectively, "FATCA") generally impose a 30% withholding tax on distributions paid with respect to our shares and the gross proceeds from a disposition of our shares paid to (1) a foreign financial institution (as defined in section 1471(d)(4) of the Code) unless the foreign financial institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury Department to collect and disclose information regarding its U.S. account holders (including certain account holders that are foreign entities that have U.S. owners) and satisfies certain other requirements, and (2) certain other non-U.S. entities unless the entity provides the payor with certain information regarding direct and indirect U.S. owners of the entity or certifies that it has no such U.S. owners, and complies with certain other requirements. You are encouraged to consult with your own tax adviser regarding the possible implications of FATCA on your investment in our shares.

The foregoing is a general and abbreviated summary of the provisions of the Code and the Treasury regulations in effect as they directly govern the taxation of the Fund and its shareholders. These provisions are subject to change by legislative and administrative action, and any such change may be retroactive. Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisers regarding specific questions as to U.S. federal, foreign, state, local income or other taxes based on their particular circumstances.

UNDERWRITERS

Under the terms and subject to the conditions of an underwriting agreement dated the date of this prospectus, the Underwriters named below, for whom Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, UBS Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC are acting as representatives (the "Representatives"), have severally agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to them, the number of common shares indicated below:

Underwriter	Number of Common Shares
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC	4,305,000
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith	, ,
Incorporated	2,510,000
UBS Securities LLC	1,725,000
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC	1,582,000
Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.	350,000
RBC Capital Markets, LLC	572,000
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated	550,000
Wedbush Securities Inc.	370,000
B. Riley Wealth Management, Inc.	128,000
BB&T Capital Markets, a division of BB&T Securities, LLC	118,000
Brookline Capital Markets, a Division of CIM Securities, LLC	30,000
D.A. Davidson & Co	88,000
Incapital LLC	45,000
Janney Montgomery Scott LLC	135,000
JonesTrading Institutional Services LLC	142,000
Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc.	155,000
Maxim Group LLC	10,000
Newbridge Securities Corporation	28,000
Pershing LLC	41,000
USCA Securities LLC	92,000
Joseph Gunnar & Co., LLC	24,000
Total	13,000,000

The Underwriters are offering the common shares subject to their acceptance of the shares from us and subject to prior sale. The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several Underwriters to pay for and accept delivery of the common shares offered by this prospectus are subject to the approval of certain legal matters by their counsel and to certain other conditions. The Underwriters are obligated to take and pay for all of the common shares offered by this prospectus if any such shares are taken. However, the Underwriters are not required to take or pay for the common shares covered by the Underwriters' over-allotment option described below.

The Underwriters initially propose to offer part of the common shares directly to the public at the public offering price listed on the cover page of this prospectus and part to certain dealers at a price that represents a concession not in excess of \$0.40 per common share under the public offering price. Investors must pay for any common shares purchased in this offering on or before March 29, 2019.

We have granted to the Underwriters an option, exercisable for 45 days from the date of this prospectus, to purchase up to 1,789,178 additional common shares at the public offering price listed on the cover page of this prospectus, less underwriting discounts and commissions. The Underwriters may exercise this option solely for the purpose of covering over-allotments, if any, made in connection with the offering of the common shares offered by this prospectus. To the extent the option is exercised, each Underwriter will become obligated, subject to certain conditions, to purchase about the same percentage of the additional common shares as the number listed next to the Underwriter's name in the preceding table bears to the total number of common shares listed next to the names of all Underwriters in the preceding table.

The following table shows the per share and total public offering price, underwriting discounts and commissions (sales load) and proceeds to the Fund. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the Underwriters' option to purchase up to an additional 1,789,178 common shares.

		Total	
	Per Share	No Exercise	Full Exercise
Public offering price	\$20.00	\$260,000,000	\$295,783,560
Sales load	None	None	None
Proceeds to the Fund	\$20.00	\$260,000,000	\$295,783,560

The fees to certain Underwriters described below under "Compensation to Be Paid by Our Adviser" are not reimbursable to the Adviser by us and are therefore not reflected in the table above.

The Underwriters have informed us that they do not intend sales to discretionary accounts to exceed 5% of the total number of common shares offered by them.

In connection with the requirements for listing our common shares on the NYSE, the Underwriters have undertaken to sell lots of 100 or more shares to a minimum of 400 beneficial owners in the United States. The minimum investment requirement is 100 common shares.

Our common shares have been approved for listing on the NYSE under the trading or ticker symbol "TEAF," subject to notice of issuance.

We and an officer of the Fund who is purchasing common shares in this offering have agreed that, without the prior written consent of the Representatives on behalf of the Underwriters, we and he will not, during the period ending 180 days after the date of this prospectus:

- offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any common shares or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common shares;
- file any registration statement with the SEC relating to the offering of any common shares or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common shares; or
- enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the common shares;

whether any such transaction described above is to be settled by delivery of common shares or such other securities, in cash or otherwise. The restrictions described in the immediately preceding paragraph do not apply to:

- the sale of common shares to the Underwriters; or
- any common shares issued pursuant to the Plan.

The Representatives, in their sole discretion, may release the common shares and other securities subject to the lock-up agreements described above in whole or in part at any time with or without notice.

At the Fund's request, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC has agreed to allocate, at the initial public offering price, approximately 0.2785% of the common shares offered by this prospectus for sale to certain officers and employees of the Adviser and its affiliates who have expressed an interest in purchasing common shares in this offering (the "share purchase program"). As with all other common shares sold in this offering, the Adviser (and not the Fund) has agreed to pay, from its own assets, compensation of \$0.60 per share to the Underwriters in connection with shares sold by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC through the share purchase program. Officers and

employees of the Adviser and its affiliates who purchase common shares through the share purchase program will be subject to the same lock-up period and restrictions described above.

In order to facilitate the offering of the common shares, the Underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the common shares. Specifically, the Underwriters may sell more common shares than they are obligated to purchase under the underwriting agreement, creating a short position. A short sale is covered if the short position is no greater than the number of common shares available for purchase by the Underwriters under the over-allotment option. The Underwriters can close out a covered short sale by exercising the over-allotment option or purchasing common shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out a covered short sale, the Underwriters will consider, among other things, the open market price of common shares compared to the price available under the over-allotment option. The Underwriters also may sell common shares in excess of the over-allotment option, creating a naked short position. The Underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing common shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the Underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the common shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering. As an additional means of facilitating this offering, the Underwriters may bid for, and purchase, common shares in the open market to stabilize the price of the common shares. Finally, the underwriting syndicate also may reclaim selling concessions allowed to an Underwriter or a dealer for distributing the common shares in the offering. These activities may raise or maintain the market price of the common shares above independent market levels or prevent or retard a decline in the market price of the common shares. The Underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and may end any of these activities at any time.

The Fund, the Adviser, the Subadvisers and the Underwriters have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on websites maintained by one or more Underwriters, or selling group members, if any, participating in this offering. The Representatives may agree to allocate a number of common shares to Underwriters for sale to their online brokerage account holders. Internet distributions will be allocated by the Representatives to Underwriters that may make Internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common shares. The initial public offering price for the common shares was determined by negotiation among us, our Adviser and the Representatives. There can be no assurance, however, that the price at which the common shares trade after this offering will not be lower than the price at which they are sold by the Underwriters or that an active trading market in our common shares will develop and continue after this offering.

Prior to the public offering of our common shares, our Adviser purchased common shares from us in an amount satisfying the net worth requirements of section 14(a) of the 1940 Act. As of the date of this prospectus, our Adviser owned 100% of our outstanding common shares. Our Adviser may be deemed to control us until such time as it owns less than 25% of our outstanding common shares, which is expected to occur as of the completion of this offering.

We anticipate that the Representatives and certain other Underwriters may from time to time act as brokers and dealers in connection with the execution of our portfolio transactions after they have ceased to be Underwriters and, subject to certain restrictions, may act as such brokers while they are Underwriters.

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the Underwriters or their respective affiliates from time to time have provided in the past, and may provide in the future, investment banking, securities trading, hedging, brokerage, commercial lending and financial advisory

services to us, certain of our executive officers and our affiliates and the Adviser and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business, for which they have received, and may receive, customary fees and expenses.

No action has been taken in any jurisdiction (except in the United States) that would permit a public offering of common shares, or the possession, circulation or distribution of this prospectus or any other material relating to us or the common shares where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, the common shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this prospectus nor any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the common shares may be distributed or published, in or from any country or jurisdiction except in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations of any such country or jurisdiction.

Certain marketing or sales related support in connection with this offering has been provided by affiliates of our Adviser. Our Adviser entered into an agreement with an affiliated registered broker-dealer for the delivery of marketing support to our Adviser during the course of this offering.

The principal business address of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC is 1585 Broadway, New York, New York 10036. The principal business address of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated is One Bryant Park, New York, New York 10036. The principal business address of UBS Securities LLC is 1285 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10019. The principal business address of Wells Fargo Securities, LLC is 550 South Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28202.

Compensation to Be Paid by Our Adviser

The Adviser (and not the Fund) has agreed to pay Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, from its own assets, an upfront structuring and syndication fee in the amount of \$1,144,623.80 for advice relating to the design and structuring of the Fund, including without limitation, views from an investor market, distribution and syndication perspective on (i) marketing issues with respect to the Fund's investment policies and proposed investments, (ii) the overall marketing and positioning thesis for the offering of the common shares, (iii) securing participants in the Fund's initial public offering, (iv) preparation of marketing and diligence materials for Underwriters, (v) conveying information and market updates to the Underwriters, and (vi) coordinating syndicate orders in this offering. If the over-allotment option is not exercised, the upfront structuring and syndication fee paid to Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC will not exceed 0.4402% of the total public offering price of the common shares. These services provided by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC to the Adviser are unrelated to its function of advising the Fund as to its investments in securities or use of investment strategies and investment techniques.

The Adviser (and not the Fund) has agreed to pay to each of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, UBS Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, from its own assets, an upfront structuring fee for advice relating to the structure, design and organization of the Fund as well as services related to the sale and distribution of the common shares in the amount of \$567,992, \$389,269.80 and \$358,139, respectively. If the over-allotment option is not exercised, the upfront structuring fee paid to each of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, UBS Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC will not exceed 0.2185%, 0.1497% and 0.1377%, respectively, of the total public offering price of the common shares. These services provided by these Underwriters to the Adviser are unrelated to its function of advising the Fund as to its investments in securities or use of investment strategies and investment techniques.

The Adviser (and not the Fund) has agreed to pay to each of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated and Wedbush Securities Inc., from its own assets, an upfront fee for services related to the sale and distribution of the common shares in the amount of \$78,811.60, \$130,000, \$125,000 and \$84,000, respectively. If the over-allotment option is not exercised, the upfront fee paid to each of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated and Wedbush Securities Inc. will not exceed 0.0303%, 0.0500%, 0.0481% and 0.0323%, respectively, of the total public offering price of the common shares. These services provided by these Underwriters to the Adviser are unrelated to its function of advising the Fund as to its investments in securities or use of investment strategies and investment techniques.

The amount of these structuring, syndication and other fees are calculated based on the total respective sales of common shares by the Underwriters receiving the fees, including those common shares included in the Underwriters' over-allotment option, and will be paid regardless of whether some or all of the over-allotment option is exercised.

In addition, the Adviser (and not the Fund) has agreed to pay the Underwriters, from its own assets, additional compensation of \$0.60 per common share sold in this offering, which amount will not exceed 3.00% of the total public offering price of the common shares.

Our Adviser (and not the Fund) will reimburse reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses related to the offering of the common shares incurred by certain affiliates, or associated persons thereof, and employees of the Adviser, including in connection with participation in the road show and related activities ("affiliate reimbursable expenses"). Some or all of such affiliate reimbursable expenses may be paid to Tortoise Securities, LLC, a broker-dealer affiliate of the Adviser that is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA"), and its associated persons. While Tortoise Securities, LLC will not act as an underwriter in connection with our initial public offering, it has provided marketing support for the Fund in connection with the offering. Marketing support services provided by Tortoise Securities, LLC included, among other things, assistance with organizing and scheduling roadshow presentations, assistance in presentations to underwriters and selected dealers and preparation and review of the Fund's marketing support services. The affiliate reimbursable expenses and the fee for marketing support services paid to Tortoise Securities, LLC and its associated persons will not exceed 0.3613% of the total public offering price of the common shares if the over-allotment option is not exercised.

Total underwriting compensation determined in accordance with FINRA rules is summarized as follows. The Adviser has agreed to reimburse the Underwriters for the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel to the Underwriters in connection with the review by FINRA of the terms of the sale of the common shares in an amount not to exceed \$30,000 in the aggregate, which amount will not exceed 0.0115% of the total public offering price of the common shares if the over-allotment option is not exercised. The sum total of all compensation to the Underwriters, Tortoise Securities, LLC and its associated persons in connection with this public offering of the common shares, including expense reimbursement and all forms of syndication, structuring and other fee payments to the Underwriters, will not exceed 4.4797% of the total public offering price of the common shares.

ADMINISTRATOR, CUSTODIAN AND FUND ACCOUNTANT

U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC will serve as our administrator and provide certain back-office support such as oversight and supervision of the payment of expenses and preparation of financial statements and related schedules. We will pay the administrator a monthly fee based on the daily net assets of the Fund, subject to an annual minimum.

U.S. Bank, N.A., will serve as our custodian. The principal business address of U.S. Bank, N.A. is 1555 North Rivercenter Drive, Suite 302, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212.

U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, doing business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services, will serve as our fund accountant.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Vedder Price P.C. ("Vedder"), Chicago, Illinois. Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP ("Weil"), New York, New York, advised the Underwriters in connection with the offering of the common shares. Vedder and Weil may rely as to certain matters of Maryland law on the opinion of Venable LLP, Baltimore, Maryland.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We will be subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act and the 1940 Act and will be required to file reports, including annual and semi-annual reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. We intend to voluntarily file quarterly shareholder reports. These documents will be available on the SEC's EDGAR system and can be inspected and copied for a fee at the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, DC 20549. Additional information about the operation of the Public Reference Room facilities may be obtained by calling the SEC at (202) 551-8090.

This prospectus does not contain all of the information in our registration statement, including amendments, exhibits and schedules. Statements in this prospectus about the contents of any contract or other document are not necessarily complete and in each instance reference is made to the copy of the contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement, each such statement being qualified in all respects by this reference.

Additional information about us can be found in our Registration Statement (including amendments, exhibits and schedules) on Form N-2 filed with the SEC. The SEC maintains a web site (http://www.sec.gov) that contains our Registration Statement, other documents incorporated by reference and other information we have filed electronically with the SEC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

INVESTMENT LIMITATIONS	1
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT STRATEGIES	5
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	19
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS	36
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS	38
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	39
MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	41
PROXY VOTING POLICIES	52
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	54
ADMINISTRATOR, CUSTODIAN AND FUND ACCOUNTANT	54
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	54
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	F-1

13,000,000 Shares Tortoise Essential Assets Income Term Fund

Common Shares of Beneficial Interest \$20.00 per Share

> Prospectus March 26, 2019

Morgan Stanley BofA Merrill Lynch UBS Investment Bank Wells Fargo Securities Oppenheimer & Co. RBC Capital Markets **Stifel** Wedbush Securities Inc. **B.** Riley Wealth Management **BB&T** Capital Markets **Brookline Capital Markets** D.A. Davidson & Co. **Incapital Janney Montgomery Scott JonesTrading** Ladenburg Thalmann **Maxim Group LLC Newbridge Securities Corporation Pershing LLC U.S. Capital Advisors**

Until April 20, 2019 (25 days after the date of this prospectus), all dealers that buy, sell or trade the common shares, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This delivery requirement is in addition to each dealer's obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to its unsold allotments or subscriptions.